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Financial Highlights

Revenue for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 decreased by
4.4% from HK$4,525,762,000 to HK$4,324,487,000 as compared
with the last financial year.

Gross profit for this financial year increased by 23.8% from
HK$691,753,000 to HK$856,432,000.

Other income, gains and losses for this financial year were losses
of HK$131,599,000 (2021: losses of HK$51,230,000).

Selling and distribution costs for this financial year increased by
8.0% as compared with the same in the last financial year.

Administrative expenses for this financial year increased by 6.6%
as compared with the same in the last financial year.

Impairment loss recognised on loan receivables and loan interest
receivables amounted to HK$56,390,000 (2021: nil).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2022 was HK$34,052,000 (2021:

HK$37,527,000).
Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company were
HKO.6 cent for this financial year as compared with HKO0.7 cent

earnings per share in the last financial year.

No dividend was declared for this financial year (2021: nil).
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights

Financial Position: BRI
2022 2021
—E- 8% T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FAT
Total assets BEBE 4,727,684 4,086,152
Total liabilities BEARE 2,002,361 1,426,856
Net assets BEFE 2,725,323 2,659,296
Net tangible worth EREEFE 2,181,770 2,008,617
Financial Ratios: g =R
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-_—%F
Gross profit margin EHx 19.8% 15.3%
Return on equity G B 1.3% 1.4%
Current ratio it B b 2 1.5 1.71
Gearing ratio BERBELE 39.4% 17.2%
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Chairman’s Statement

The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland China” or “China”
or “PRC”) has set an economic growth target of 5.5% for 2022,
announced by Premier Li Kegiang at the opening ceremony of the
National People’s Congress of the PRC (“NPC”) in March 2022.
The target represents a medium-to-high-speed of growth on a
high base, showing that China has been putting stable growth in
a more prominent position. Considering 2021, the economy grew
by 8.1%, which exceeded the Chinese Government’s target of 6%
set at the NPC last year. 2021 economic growth fully reflected that
the various policies centering around “Domestic Circulation” for
industrial revitalization successfully promoted the overall economic
development even under the strict COVID-19 prevention and
control measures imposed by Chinese Government.

During the financial year under review, the Group’s revenue
decreased from approximately HK$4,525.8 million to approximately
HK$4,324.5 million. Gross profit for the financial year under
review increased from approximately HK$691.8 million last year
to approximately HK$856.4 million this year. The auto dealership
business remained as our major income driver, accounting for
approximately 87.9% of our total revenue. Net profit attributable
to owners reached approximately HK$34.1 million in this financial
year as compared with a net profit attributable to owners of
approximately HK$37.5 million in the last financial year.

China’s Luxury Goods and Automobiles Markets

A number of updates and research reports from reputable
authorities, investment banks and global research institutions
indicated that China’s luxury goods market has achieved steady
growth among challenges and uncertainties. According to the
report named “A Year of Contrasts for China’s Growing Personal
Luxury Market” released by Bain & Company on 20 January 2022,
despite mounting global social and economic challenges, China’s
domestic sale of personal luxury goods (excluding Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan) is expected to grow by 36% to approximately
RMB471 billion in 2021, following its increase of 48% in 2020.
From a global perspective, the contribution of China’s market to
the global luxury market has increased from approximately 20% in
2020 to approximately 21% in 2021. The report anticipated that
the growth momentum will be sustained and China will become the
largest luxury goods market in the world by 2025 regardless of the
progress of international travel recovery in future.
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Chairman’s Statement

According to the research report named “Why Demand for Luxury
ltems in Mainland China Should Remain Robust” by HSBC Gilobal
Research, although China’s luxury goods market has been facing
certain integrated risks, operational difficulties, and short-term
headwinds, considering the favourable growth from 2022 onwards,
the research institution remains positive on the development of
China’s luxury goods market in 2022 and its long-term prospect.
The fourth China Deluxe survey published by HSBC Global
Research also showed that Chinese citizens have high willingness
to spend on luxury items and forecasted that the global luxury
goods industry will achieve remarkable revenue growth in 2022,
among which, the profit margins of top-tier brands are expected to
peak.

According to the Executive Meeting of the State Council of the
PRC chaired by Chinese Premier Li Kegiang on 13 April 2022,
with the purpose of promoting consumption to boost economy,
the Chinese Government encourages consumption in key areas
including automobiles and home appliances. Meanwhile, no new
restrictive measure on automobile purchase is allowed. For the
restrictions on purchase already in place, local governments
should increase the quota of new licence plate gradually. Statistics
from the China Passenger Car Association showed that a total of
approximately 2.65 million luxury vehicles were sold in China in
2021,
for 13% of total passenger vehicles. This marked the fourth

representing an increase of 4.9% from 2020 and accounting

consecutive year of steady growth in vigorous demand for luxury
brands. Moreover, China’s auto market sales in 2021 recorded its
first rebound and resumed growth since 2018.

1R 45 L 32 B AT 95 (HSBC Global Research)Ffr
BER—RFEAIREEFEAMEEEZRNE
k& R +558 9 (Why Demand for Luxury Items
in Mainland China Should Remain Robust) |
ZiﬁﬁgEiﬁﬁ:qu¢Etﬂ AT R — LR
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R WHRZERmENTEEEEEEED
18 -

BRE BB AN B - #Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%:
T _FNA+=ZHEHEHRPBEBEBKIRE

s@& TEBRFE ﬂ%ﬁil’ﬁi%iﬁk;é@'ﬁi
BRE RESATHEE JHIABEMIEIE

FREETEIE CEIERBENZRSIEINEEEE
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Chairman’s Statement

According to “China’s Luxury Car Market Research Report 2021”
published by Ocean Insights, the brand under Beijing Ocean Engine
Internet Technology Co., Ltd which provided industry-leading
insights on consumption trends, it stated that with the increasing
residents’ income and continuous in-depth consumption upgrades,
the main growth driver of China’s economy will shift from Chinese
Government and corporate investments to residents’ consumption
going forward. The demand for China’s luxury car market will
remain robust and the market will move towards high-quality
development. In the future, with the development of domestic
economy and the increasing household income level, the market
size of China’s luxury automobile has ample room for growth
and the corresponding demand will continue to grow. The report
predicted that proportion of China’s luxury automobile sales to total
China’s automobile sales will exceed 20% by 2030.

The Group believes that with China’s stable macro economy, the
steady improvement of the consumption power in middle-tier
markets, and the digitalization and upgrade of various industries
will further empower the high-quality development of retail
consumption. The luxury goods market is expected to maintain
a favourable growth momentum. We will strive to enhance our
marketing capabilities, optimize luxury products portfolio, and
explore new opportunities from time to time to further promote the
long-term and stable development of the Group.

RIEEEEH (LREES|EEERMERL
AIETHITRAIARARTHEBE AERE)
BRO2021PBEREEMHMRARE] K
KEEEE RO AL INFHEE T+ RN TER
£ FEKEETRERBNHETFBEBFMEE
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MEHNBEREERETR ERSEENH
fR o RKBEE B AR 3 R AE RIRAKF
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B BREFEER - ZMEEFD —_F=F
FHERERHEE2RITEREENNTR
BEHiB20% °

AEERSBERTVTREZREEE  Pimm
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Auto Dealerships

During the financial year under review, revenue of the ultra-luxury
automobile distributorships of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-
Royce recorded an approximately 6.8% decrease to approximately
HK$3,800 million, as compared with that of approximately
HK$4,076 million in the previous financial year. Rolls-Royce
recorded sales growth while Bentley and Lamborghini both
recorded sales decline. Rolls-Royce performed the best among
the Group’s three auto brands in terms of the increase in revenue
and gross profit with total sales of approximately HK$1,634 million,
representing an approximately 5.2% rise as compared with that of
approximately HK$1,553 million recorded in the previous financial
year. 225 units of Rolls-Royce were sold, representing a decrease
of approximately 3.4% as compared with 233 units sold in the
previous financial year. Among all models of Rolls-Royce sold
during this financial year, Cullinan performed the best in terms of
revenue and gross profit contribution.

According to an article from Rolls-Royce Motor Cars PressClub
titled “Rolls-Royce Motor Cars Reports Record Annual Results For
2021”, it mentioned that in 2021, Rolls-Royce Motor Cars delivered
the highest-ever annual sales results in the marque’s 117-year
history. The company delivered 5,586 motor cars to clients around
the world, up 49% on the same period in 2020. This overall figure
included all-time record sales in most regions, including Greater
China, the Americas and Asia-Pacific, and in multiple countries
across the globe.

Bentley recorded an approximately 14.9% decrease in sales to
approximately HK$1,706 million during this financial year, as
compared with that of approximately HK$2,005 million in the
previous financial year. 442 units of Bentley were sold, representing
a drop of 24.6% as compared with 586 units sold in the previous
financial year. Among all models of Bentley sold during this financial
year, Bentayga performed the best in terms of revenue and gross
profit contributions.

RO
RED

REEVBRFEE 55 #EERRSTHR
FEBRERBZRZRDL6.8%EL
3,800,000,000/& 7T ' i E—MBFE RN A
4,076,000,000% JT o 45 Hr #E H 2 88 & %8 &%
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#7/1,634,000,0008 7T 8 E — B BRFE 4
1,553,000,0007% JT 18 M1 495.2% © FT & 1 2 %5
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%45 (Rolls-Royce Motor Cars Reports Record
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Lamborghini recorded an approximately 16.3% decrease in sales
to approximately HK$369 million during this financial year, as
compared with that of approximately HK$441 million in the previous
financial year. 93 units of Lamborghini were sold, representing a
drop of 28.5% as compared with 130 units sold in the previous
financial year. Among all models of Lamborghini sold during this
financial year, Urus performed the best in terms of revenue and
gross profit contributions.

The overall gross profit of sale of automobiles increased by
approximately 40% during this financial year due to the increase in
average selling price of all of our three auto brands and hence their
gross profit margin.

Revenue of after-sales services recorded an increase of
approximately 16.6% during this financial year as compared
with that of the previous financial year. The gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 38.4% in the previous financial year
to approximately 33.4% in this financial year.

Non-auto Dealerships

During the financial year under review, the sales of our non-
auto dealerships division recorded an increase in revenue of
approximately 32.2% to approximately HK$437.5 million as
compared with that of approximately HK$331.0 million in the
previous financial year.

Gross profit margin of our non-auto dealerships division decreased
during this financial year from approximately 33.5% in the previous
financial year to approximately 30.3% in this financial year. The
decline was mainly driven by a decrease in gross profit margin of
the sales of audio equipment.

Among all brands under this division including watch, jewellery, fine
wine, audio equipment, menswear apparel and accessories, cigars
and smoker’s accessories and silver, home articles and health care
products, Bang & Olufsen performed the best in terms of sales
revenue and gross profit contribution during the financial period
under review.

RAMBRFEE BEEEZHEHEHERLH
16.3%Z #J369,000,0007 7t * i &£ — B B F
fE B 49 /5441,000,000/8 - FRE L 2 BIEHE
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13080 7 128.5% - R A FEE L 2B
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EXRBA&E-
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40% RIRNE T2 == w2 F19E
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38.4% N ZEARNBF K [E #933.4%
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REBEMREE ETEDHED S ERERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to further develop the non-auto dealership division, the
Group has newly engaged in sales of health care products and
also co-operated with Sichuan Liquor Group, a leading liquor
manufacturer and retailer in China, to produce our own branded

liquor — “BIER o 2 % Iz "

Others

During the financial year under review, the revenue from our others
division, which include the provision of property management
services, films and television program investments and money
lending business, recorded a decrease of approximate 26.7% to
approximately HK$86.8 million, as compared with approximately
HK$118.4 million in the previous financial year. The decrease was
mainly due to decrease of revenue in the property management
business.

Regarding the property management business, the revenue
recorded a decrease of approximately 31.2% to approximately
HK$81.2 million, as compared with approximately HK$118.1 million
in the previous financial year. The decrease was due to decrease in
the property management fee income and sub-lease income during
this financial year.

Regarding the film business, due to the recent outbreak of
community transmission of the Omicron variant of COVID-19, the
releasing schedules of our film investments have been further
postponed. No revenue was generated during this financial year.

Regarding the Earn-out Adjustments as defined and mentioned
in the Company’s announcement dated 29 October 2018 and
supplemental announcement dated 30 December 2018, the Target
Group (as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 29
October 2018) did not reach any profit target and therefore no
Earn-out Adjustment was triggered during the three years ended
31 December 2021. The period for the Earn-out Adjustments has
expired on 31 December 2021. Furthermore, all the Consideration
Shares (as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 29
October 2018) were released from the lock-up restriction in March

2022.

RE—TEREIFNEDHEIB A REEFH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Regarding the money lending business, the revenue recorded
approximately HK$5.7 million accrued interest income during
this financial year (2021: approximately HK$0.3 million). There
were 2 loan agreements where the borrowers failed to repay the
outstanding principal amounts and the accrued interests on the
maturity dates respectively. The Group has commenced legal
actions against the borrowers and the guarantors of the loans in
the High Court of Hong Kong with a view to recovering the loans
and other loss and damages. For the details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 1 April 2022 and 29 April
2022.

Equity Investment

As a long-term investment for capital appreciation and distribution,
the Group held shares in Bang & Olufsen A/S (“B&0”), a company
incorporated in Denmark whose shares are listed and traded on
NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S. Bang & Olufsen is a luxury audio brand
founded in 1925 in Struer, Denmark, by Peter Bang and Svend
Olufsen whose devotion and vision remain the foundation for the
company.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held 14,059,347 shares (31 March
2021: 14,059,347 shares) of B&O, representing approximately
11.45% of its total issued shares. The carrying amount of this
investment represented approximately 6.8% of the total assets of
the Group as at 31 March 2022.

No dividend was generated from this investment to the Group
during this financial year.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) of approximately HK$320
million as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: approximately
HK$520 million) represented the Group’s strategic investment on
B&0O. The decrease in carrying amount of the Group’s financial
assets at FVTOCI during this financial year under review was mainly
due to fair value change on the market price of the shares of B&O.
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RARBERFR LB ERREMIBAR
BE -BEFBEFE2HARFAPAZZE
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1 o
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A& B A Bang & Olufsen A/S ([B&O | ) %
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& o Bang & OlufsenB —AXEZZLMIE A
Peter Bang® Svend Olufsen® — L — A4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The share price of B&O dropped to Danish Krone (“DKK”) 19.35
per share as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: DKK30.22 per
share) as quoted on the NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S, representing
a decrease of approximately 36.0% during the financial year ended
31 March 2022.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
was approximately HK$4,324.5 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 4.4% as compared with that of approximately
HK$4,525.8 million recorded in the previous year. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in sales of automobiles. The table
below sets out the Group’s revenue for the year indicated:

R-ITE-—F=ZA=+—H fEnERITAB
B D BER AR FTHRBAOZ RE TR EFK
193 R (ZE—F=A=+—8:
BR30.22E =) - HERBE_T-__F
—A=+T—RLEMBFEATELI6.0% °

Bt %5 B B
M 3

HE-_Z-_—_F=ZA=1+—RHIFE X&£H
2 W 2k 49 54,324,500,00058 Tt * 8 & F 15
#94,525,800,00078 JT 8 > #14.4% © Yz 08
FERRAIEHE THEN - TREAVAEHE
R REE 2 W

FY2022 FY2021 Changes
“ECCHBEE “EZ-HMBEE 2E
Contribution Contribution
Revenue Source 22 ROR HK$’000 (%) HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 %
THET & (%) TET B & (%) FET %
Automobile segment RESS
Sales of automobiles AEHE 3,709,351 85.8% 3,998,437 88.4% (289,086) (7.2%)
Provision of after-sales services RIEEERSE 90,843 2.1% 77,885 1.7% 12,958 16.6%
Sub-total INEF 3,800,194 87.9% 4,076,322 90.1% (276,128) (6.8%)
Non-automobile dealership segment FEREHHED 437,458 10.1% 331,020 7.3% 106,438 32.2%
Others it 86,835 2% 118,420 2.6% (31,585) (26.7%)
Total @t 4,324,487 100% 4,525,762 100% (201,275) (4.4%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
increased by approximately 23.8% to approximately HK$856.4
million (31 March 2021: approximately HK$691.8 million) while the
gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
increased from 15.3% to 19.8%.

The increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to increase in
gross profit margin of the sales of automobiles. The gross profit
of the sales of automobiles increased by approximately HK$174.2
million during the financial year under review.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses was approximately HK$131.6
million losses for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
approximately HK$51.2 million losses). Such change was mainly
due to increase in fair value loss on investment properties, write off
of other intangible assets and impairment of goodwill on property
management business.

Impairment of Loan Receivables and Loan Interest
Receivables

The impairment of loan receivables and loan interest receivables
was approximately HK$56.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 (31 March 2021: nil).

The impairment arose from two borrowers who failed to repay the
outstanding principal amounts and the accrued interests at the
maturity dates of the two loan agreements under the money lending
business. The Group has commenced legal actions against the
borrowers and the guarantors of the loans by Writ of Summons
filed in the High Court of Hong Kong with a view to recovering the
loans and other loss and damages.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The impairment amount was calculated with reference to the
expected credit loss assessment performed by an independent
qualified valuer, by considering the probability of default with
published credit ratings.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The selling and distribution costs increased by approximately 8%
from approximately HK$467.2 million to approximately HK$504.5
million. The increase was mainly due to the increase in marketing
and promotion expenses and employee benefit expenses.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately 6.5% from
approximately HK$76.7 million to approximately HK$81.7 million.
Such increase was mainly due to increase in lease payment under
short term leases and employee benefit expenses.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 12.6%
from approximately HK$64.5 million in the previous financial year to
approximately HK$72.6 million in this financial year. The increase
was due to the increase in borrowing for purchase of automobiles
inventories and increase in interest expenses on lease liabilities in
this financial year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2022 were approximately
HK$4,727.7 million (31 March 2021: approximately HK$4,086.2
million) which were mainly financed by the total equity and the total
liabilities of approximately HK$2,725.3 million (31 March 2021:
approximately HK$2,659.3 million) and approximately HK$2,002.4
million (81 March 2021:
respectively.

approximately HK$1,426.9 million)

BELEC2R BB ERMGEEMET
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash Flow

The Group’s cash at banks and in hand as of 31 March 2022 were
approximately HK$151.5 million (31 March 2021: approximately
HK$246.5 million) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The Group’s primary uses of cash are to repay the Group’s
borrowings, to pay for purchases of inventories and to fund the
Group’s working capital and normal operating costs. The decrease
of the Group’s cash at banks and in hand was mainly attributable
to the increase in inventory level when compared with the year
ended 31 March 2021.

The Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its existing operations and financial resources for
financing future business expansion and capital expenditures.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 March
2022 were approximately HK$1,389.5 million (31 March 2021:
approximately HK$1,021.3 million). During the year, the Group
acquired items of property, plant and equipment at a total cost of
approximately HK$499.2 million (31 March 2021:
HK$104.0 million),

HK$10.0 million of property, plant and equipment were disposed

approximately
and a net carrying amount of approximately

of during this financial year (the net carrying amount for the year
ended 31 March 2021:
details, please refer to the note 16 to the financial statements on

approximately HK$4.5 million). For more
page 224 of this Annual Report.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties as at 31 March 2022 were

approximately HK$437.4 million (31 March 2021:
HK$379.9 million). The change in value of investment properties

approximately

was mainly due to decrease in fair value, the lease modification and
the differences in exchange translation incurred during the financial
year under review. For more details, please refer to the note 18 to
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the financial statements on pages 229 to 231 and the particulars of K& 52958 R E W1 -
investment properties on page 295 of this Annual Report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill as at 31 March 2022 was approximately
HK$333.2 million (31 March 2021:
million). The decrease in goodwill was mainly due to the impairment

approximately HK$385.7

of goodwill on property management business incurred during this
financial year, arising from increase in rental cost of one of the
sub-lease projects, one of the sub-lease projects expired in March
2022 not renewable after its expiration and decrease in property
management services income. For more details, please refer to the
note 19 to the financial statements on pages 232 to 236 of this
Annual Report.

Other Intangible Assets
The Group’s other intangible assets as at 31 March 2022 were

approximately HK$210.3 million (31 March 2021:
HK$265.0 million). The change in value of other intangible assets

approximately

was mainly due to the write-off of customers’ list from a property
management contract. The properties ownership being under one
of the property management contracts had been changed and
therefore such management contract became unexecutable. For
more details, please refer to the note 20 to the financial statements
on pages 237 to 238 of this Annual Report.

Loan Receivables

The Group’s loan receivables as at 31 March 2022 were
approximately HK$34.4 million (31 March 2021: HK$90.0 million).
The decrease in value was attributable to the impairment arising
from the loans default.

Borrowings

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2022 were approximately
HK$1,064.7 million, representing an increase of approximately
136.7% from approximately HK$449.9 million as at 31 March 2021.

The Group’s borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB. The
increase was mainly due to purchase of automobiles inventories
during this financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio computed as total borrowings and
convertible bonds over total equity increased to approximately
39.4% as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
17.2%).

approximately

Inventories

As at 31 March 2022,
approximately 95.5% from approximately HK$696.2 million as at 31

the Group’s inventories increased by

March 2021 to approximately HK$1,361.2 million. Such increase
was primarily due to the increase in automobile inventories which
comprised approximately 56.2% of the inventories of the Group.

The Group’s average inventory turnover days increased from 77
days in the year ended 31 March 2021 to 109 days in the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in RMB and HK$ while the production cost,
investments of the Group are denominated in RMB, HK$, DKK and
United States Dollar.

purchases and

The Group did not enter into any foreign currency forward contract
for this financial year. As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group
did not have any unrealised gain or loss in respect of the foreign
currency forward contracts.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

The Board considered that the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: nil). The Board
considered that the Group had no material capital commitment as
at 31 March 2022 in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (31 March 2021: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2022, land and building, deposits and inventories
of the Group with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$683.4 million (31 March 2021: approximately HK$693.8
March 2021:
approximately HK$200.5 million) and approximately HK$635.1

million), approximately HK$84.1 million (31
million (31 March 2021: approximately HK$47.4 million) respectively
were pledged to secure general banking facilities and other facilities
granted to the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 453 (31 March 2021: 438)
employees. Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged
to profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$70.2 million for this
financial year (2021: approximately HK$62.2 million).

The Group provided benefits, which included basic salary,
commission, discretionary bonus, medical insurance and retirement
funds to employees to sustain competitiveness of the Group.
The package was reviewed on an annual basis based on the
Group’s performance and employees’ performance appraisal.
The Group also provided training to the employees for their future
advancement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Supplemental Lease Agreement

By virtue of a lease agreement dated 23 August 2010, as
supplemented by three supplemental agreements dated 19 January
2011, 21 June 2011 and 17 January 2019, ¥ i # X 75 ¥ @ M 48 45
R R% (7 A IR 2 &) (Yang Pu Quan Tian Commercial Brand Network
Services Shares Limited*), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, leased the premises located at 1 B4t R T FAf5 1= £
N PAEE175R4E ~ 195742 (Building 17 and Building 19, Xinghuo West
Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC*) from it RW 5 &
HE%E TR AR (Beijing Chaoyang District Dongfeng Township
Agriculture, Industry and Commerce Company*) and it R T §Af5 &
HREMBARRA (the People’s Government of Dongfeng Township
of Chaoyang District in Beijing, the PRC*) (the “Lessors”) at the
original rent. The Lessors requested to increase the original rent
with effect from 5 June 2021 and the parties entered into the
supplemental lease agreement on 26 October 2021. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26
November 2021.

Significant Acquisition

On 8 December 2021, an equity transfer agreement was entered
into between t Rt A4 THE B R A A (Beijing Guangzhong
Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd.*), an independent third party,
being the vendor (the “Vendor”) and B 4R XX /L BB R A 7
(BO Online Culture Technology Limited*), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, being the purchaser (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to acquire and the Vendor
agreed to sell 70.4% of the entire equity interest in the K& 4@ #T
K E ¥ B R A Al (Tianjin Wenfu Xin Tian Di Real Estate Co., Ltd.*)
at a consideration of RMB220.0 million. Tianjin Wenfu Xin Tian Di
Real Estate Co., Ltd. is an investment holding company and its
principal assets are the properties located at 7 B 1t R EAG & ==
BoM40 E B M =R EHBE-1, 1, 2, 3K%7/E(Basement Level
1, Levels 1, 2, 3 and 7 of Tower B, International Wonderland, 40
Xing Fu Er Chun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC*). For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 8 and 9
December 2021. The acquisition was completed on 10 December
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Borrowers’ Default of Loan Agreements

The loan agreement in respect of a facility of HK$58.0 million

On 4 March 2021,
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a

Forwell Finance Limited (the “Lender”), an

loan agreement (the “1st Loan Agreement”) with a borrower (the
“1st Borrower”), pursuant to which the Lender agreed to grant to
the 1st Borrower a loan with principal amount of HK$58.0 million
(the “1st Loan”) for a term of 12 months, bearing interest at a rate
of 6.5% per annum.

Pursuant to the 1st Loan Agreement, the 1st Borrower had been
paying the quarterly interests on the 1st Loan to the Lender on
time during the term of the 1st Loan Agreement. The 1st Borrower,
however, failed to repay the 1st Loan with outstanding principal
amount of HK$58.0 million and the accrued interest on the maturity
date on 4 March 2022 and still fails to do so up to the date of this
Annual Report.

The Group sought legal advice and commenced legal action
against the 1st Borrower and the guarantor of the 1st Loan in
the High Court of Hong Kong on 20 April 2022 with a view to
recovering the 1st Loan and other loss and damages. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 4 March
2021, 1 April 2022 and 29 April 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The loan agreement in respect of a facility of HK$32.0 million

On 22 March 2021, the Lender entered into a loan agreement
(the “2nd Loan Agreement”) with another borrower (the “2nd
Borrower”), pursuant to which the Lender agreed to grant to the
2nd Borrower loan with principal amount of HK$32.0 million (the
“2nd Loan”) for a term of 12 months, bearing interest at a rate of
7% per annum.

Pursuant to the 2nd Loan Agreement, the 2nd Borrower had
been paying the quarterly interests on the 2nd Loan to the Lender
on time during the term of the 2nd Loan Agreement. The 2nd
Borrower, however, failed to repay the 2nd Loan with outstanding
principal amount of HK$32.0 million and the accrued interest on
the maturity date on 22 March 2022 and still fails to do so up to
the date of this Annual Report.

The Group sought legal advice and commenced legal action
against the 2nd Borrower and the guarantor of the 2nd Loan in
the High Court of Hong Kong on 29 April 2022 with a view to
recovering the 2nd Loan and other loss and damages. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 22
March 2021 and 29 April 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Litigation

Receipt of writ of summons and dismissal of the
unmeritorious legal proceedings

On 6 July 2021, the Company received a writ of summons (“Writ”)
of the High Court of Hong Kong (“High Court”) from the plaintiff,
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (In Receivership) (the “Plaintiff’),
in which the Company and its financial controller and company
secretary (the “Secretary”) were, among other defendants,
named as the defendants. In the statement of claim indorsed with
the Writ, the Plaintiff alleged that the 1st defendant, being the
beneficial owner of the Plaintiff, inter alia, breached his statutory
obligation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) by failing to make public
disclosures of interest to the Stock Exchange in respect of the
certain transfers of his ultimate beneficial interests in the shares
of the Company. The Plaintiff further alleged that by failing to take
action to rectify the 1st Defendant’s failure, the Company and the
Secretary also breached their statutory reporting obligations under
the SFO and conspired to injure the Plaintiff by unlawful means.
The Plaintiff thus claimed against, among the other defendants, the
1st defendant, the Company and the Secretary jointly and severally
for damages of approximately HK$143 million, interest and costs.
The Company had obtained a preliminary written advice from a
Senior Counsel whose preliminary view was that the Plaintiff’s
pleaded case against the Company and the Secretary lacks
sufficient particulars so as to disclose a viable claim on the face of
the pleadings and hence not sustainable at this stage.

On 9 September 2021, the Plaintiff’'s action against the Company
and the Secretary was dismissed by an order by consent made
by the High Court (the “Consent Order”). The Consent Order
includes, inter alia, the undertaking of the Plaintiff not to commence
any new action against the Company and the Secretary based on
the same cause of action or any causes of actions based on the
same or similar underlying facts and circumstances as the present
action, the Plaintiff’'s action as against the Company and the
Secretary be dismissed and no order as to costs. Further details of
the abovementioned matters were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 9 July and 9 September 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Issuance of convertible bonds under general mandate and
use of proceeds from the issuance of convertible bonds

On 25 January 2021, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with three subscribers, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to issue, and the subscribers conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, the convertible bonds with aggregate
principal amount of HK$100.0 million (the “CBs”) convertible into
400,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.25
per share (subject to adjustment). The CBs bore zero coupon
interest. The Company planned to utilise approximately HK$90.0
million out of the net proceeds of the CBs for development of its
money lending business and the remaining for general working
capital. The issuance of the CBs had been duly completed
and the Company had received net proceeds of approximately
HK$99.85 million from the subscribers. Further details of the above
transaction were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 25 January, 1 February, 4 and 22 March 2021.

As at 31 March 2022, the net proceeds from the issuance of CBs
completed on 9 March 2021 had been fully utilised as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

With the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and related
prevention and control measures, as well as the downward
pressure on China’s economy, the Group has been facing certain
challenges in sales of automobiles. Despite the significant increase
of the profitability of the Group’s luxury car sales during the current
financial period, the recovery of parallel imports of luxury cars will
put modest pressures on the sales quantity and the profitability of
the automobile segment of the Group in the upcoming years.

Regarding the Group’s non-auto dealerships segment, as the
demand for fast-moving consumer electronics remains strong, the
audio business is relatively robust. We are cautiously optimistic
towards the development of sales of B&0O products. It is also
expected that the home articles business will maintain the growth
momentum, while the inventories of watches, jewelries and fine
wines will further be destocked. For the liquor business, in light of
the Group’s new co-operation with a leading liquor manufacturer
in this financial year, the Group will proactively promote our own
branded liquor — “BIfR ¢ iR E2 %" and expects that it will bring
positive impact to the Group’s revenue in the near future.

Regarding the other business segments, the property management
business is still facing challenges under the COVID-19 pandemic
and the unfavorable property market factors in China. As far as the
money lending business is concerned, the Group has no expansion
plans in the next financial year especially taking into accounts the
on-going legal proceedings as mentioned in the section headed in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this Annual Report. For
the film investment business, the Group has a number of films in
the process of being arranged to release and currently has no new
investment plans in this segment.

In conclusion, even though the upcoming financial year may be
a year of challenges, we will proactively embrace challenges and
continue to adopt a prudent approach in operating our various
segments in the upcoming financial year.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in dealerships of luxury goods and
automobiles, property
management services, property rental services, film related

provision of after-sales services,

business including development and investment in films and
television program and money lending business. The Group’s
operations are mainly based in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the Group’s
segmental analysis, the important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of 31 March 2022 and the likely
future developments, is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
Annual Report.

Details about the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
is facing, are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Controls” of the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in
note 41 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: nil) while no
interim dividend (2021: nil) had been distributed during the year
as the Group would like to reserve more capital to operate and
develop the existing businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.
The Scheme was expired on 6 October 2012.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted and
the Scheme was terminated. The New Scheme shall be valid and
effective until 19 August 2022.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the New Scheme as at 31 March 2022 was
297,982,885 shares (including options for nil share that have been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised), representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of
the adoption of the New Scheme initially.

The Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s business. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include any Director (including
executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-executive Director),
any employee, or any consultant, advisor, customer and business
associates.

There was no outstanding share to be issued under the New
Scheme as at 31 March 2022 (as at 31 March 2021: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 47.6% and 98.6% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top
five customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue.

At no time during the year under review did a Director, an associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers for this financial year.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 144 and 145 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of this financial year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during this financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 151 and 152 and note 35
to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(o) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

In the opinion of the Directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$125,992,000 in surplus (2021: HK$359,173,000 in surplus).

SHARE CAPITAL
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Details of the movements during this financial year in the share ZARRAGRARKT HEE AN 2 EBFHIGEH R
capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial Bf#§#RKMTE34 »
statements.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED KB EBHR A A 29

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3



EEEWRE
Report of the Directors

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds of the Company with principal amount of
HK$10,000,000, HK$55,000,000 and HK$35,000,000 were issued
on 9 February, 23 February and 9 March 2021 respectively for cash
which were convertible into shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment) and should be matured
on the third anniversary of the date of issue of such convertible
bonds. Convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$90,000,000 were converted into 360,000,000 ordinary shares
during the financial year. As at 31 March 2022, the convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 remains
unconverted and should be matured on 8 February 2024.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2022 are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 296 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during this financial year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during this financial year and up to
the date of this Annual Report were as follow:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Ma Chao

Mr. Zhao Xiaodong
Mr. Zhu Lei
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Jian Wei (passed away on 28 August 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Gao Yu

Mr. Liu Honggiang

Mr. Liu Xiaoyi

In accordance with bye-law no. 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director is
for the period of two years and renewable for one year up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with code provision B.2.3 of Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), serving more than 9 years could be relevant
to the determination of a Non-executive Director’s independence. If
an Independent Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution should include the reasons why the
board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.
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In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) of the Company’'s Bye-
laws, Mr. Ma Chao, Mr. Zhu Lei, Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo and
Mr. Liu Honggiang will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In addition, as Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo has served the Company
for more than nine years, his appointment will be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 69 to 79 of this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 28 to and elsewhere in the financial
statements, there are no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of this
financial year or at any time during this financial year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company disclosed
that no Directors of the Company is considered to have interests
in any business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during this financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-law no. 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
the Directors, secretary or other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all losses or damages which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office,
or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be (i) notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) as recorded in the register required to be
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
(il as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

REQFRG HEARODREZZHFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interest
EEpS g7 BEROHE HEZHSYIEIHL
(Note 2)
(M15E2)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Interest of controlled 10,640,000 0.19%
B SAST St corporation (Note 1)
wHEE S (1)
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.02%
=R EE BEmEAA
Mr. Liu Honggiang Beneficial owner 296,000 0.01%
BB kHE BEmEA A
Note: Bt 5 -

(1)  These 10,640,000 Shares were held by Keyking Mission Group
Co., Ltd, a company is wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang.
Accordingly, Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang was deemed to be interested in
these Shares.

(2)  The denominator used is 5,471,953,447 shares, being the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company had any interest
or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provision of the SFO), or (i) as recorded in the register required
to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO; or (iii) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The New Scheme was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
August 2012.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that,
a Director or chief executive of the Company, the following

other than

shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

i IR

T8 BB ARRR T — _i)\ﬂ +
Elﬁiﬁzﬂxﬁﬂiﬁ’“tﬁ iE FRZER
B
FERRRAQDTRGRHEE
Rz =

RZZBZ_F=A=1+—H RARFAREZ
7 R E RPIFIB6IRZ R EFE < B
R BRARAEEFHNRZRSTHAEIN TR
REMGEARARENARR AR KRR AR
th 2 HERAE R &

NP
KRB

Long position or short position in the shares RBROZHFRERIAXR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares Interest
BERESEB 56 g 4= ERBNEs
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(FFEE1) (Ff5E2)
Mr. Sze Ching Lau Beneficial owner 797,200,000 (L) 14.57%
)5 R 5T A& EmEA A
Mr. Lam Chi Kin Beneficial owner 354,720,000 (L) 6.48%
MEREE EmlEA A
Ms. Tam Cho Wai Josephine Beneficial owner 340,000,000 (L) 6.21%
BEBEL L EmlA A
Notes: Bt 5 -

(1) The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position”in such Shares and
the letter “S” denotes a person’s “short position” in such Shares.

(2)  The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
5,471,953,447 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2022.

(1) FEHILIEREBALIRZERNDZ[FE]
NFEISIHEBEBALTRZERD 2 %
ale

2 BEEIHER-Z-_—_F=A=+—A82
5,471,953, 447 B B1TIR1D B EEFE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
(including any interests in options in respect of such capital), which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during this financial year was the Company,
fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.
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The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorization of the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting each year. The
emoluments of the executive Directors are subject to review by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, and their remuneration
is determined with reference to the Directors’ qualifications,
experience, duties, responsibilities, performance, results of the
Group and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted the New Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the completeness
and accuracy of disclosures of continuing connected transactions
(“CCT") and the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules in
respect of such transactions.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed all CCT as shown on pages 37 to 41 and confirmed in
this Annual Report and accounts that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(3) according to the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

EXEQRAEBRESTM o —RED  MxE
NABFRBERBEFAG LEARARRE
B-HITEZTZMEARARAFHEZE SR
A MEHEMERIE2REZTZER £
B BEE KRR AKEXERTLERTS

ARFEEAFHBRDEFRA KIS
EE

ARBEERFERERFIRBEFTH LI TE
HREEEARARARZEXZET LD

RAIBE-

RRARZBIUFRITERDEHEITER41R
PIRZFBRERER S YR AFHRNIEKE
R 2ERXHT:
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NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7 37

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3



EEEWRE
Report of the Directors

BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO
Limited has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed
that:

(@) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(c) with respect to the aggregate amount of the CCT, nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the relevant annual caps as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

1. Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement IV”) entered
between Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited (“BJDT”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr.
Kei Kin Hung (“Mr. Kei”), who is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhu
Lei, an executive Director of the Company, dated 30 June
2011 in relation to office rentals incurred from the operations
of the Group’s business in the distribution of luxury goods, of
a portion of office having a gross floor area of approximately
1,280 sg.m. at Level 3 of Tower A and a portion of Level 7 of
Tower B, International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San
Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.
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An agreement was entered into between Mr. Kei, BJDT and
Sparkle Roll Retail Net Development Limited (“SRRND”),
dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to which the tenant of the Beijing
Leasing Agreement IV was transferred from BJDT to SRRND,
with the same agreement terms.

On 6 March 2018, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Kei and
Beijing Wenfu Hengye Technology Development Co., Limited
(“Beijing Wenfu Hengye”), an entity wholly-owned by Mr.
Kei, the Group had conditionally agreed to purchase the
entire equity interest in Beijing Wenfu Hengye pursuant to the
Acquisition Agreement, and this acquisition was completed
on 31 August 2018. Under the Acquisition Agreement, the
rental under Beijing Leasing Agreement |V in relation to Tower
A, International Wonderland No. 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li
Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC are ceased. Only the
office rentals in relation to a portion of office having a gross
floor area of approximately 310 sq.m. at Level 7 of Tower B,
International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC should be still considered
as continuing connected transactions.

The Beijing Leasing Agreement IV was expired with effect
from 30 June 2021.

Beijing Leasing Agreement V

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement V”) was
entered between SRRND and Mr. Kei dated 26 June 2013 in
relation to rentals of showroom incurred from the operations
of the Group’s luxury automobile business, of a portion of
showroom having a gross floor area of approximately 1,429.2
sg.m. at parts of Levels 1 and 2 of Tower B, International
Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.

An agreement was entered into between SRRND and
Sparkle Roll (France) Limited (“SRF”), dated 31 December
2019 pursuant to which the tenant of the Beijing Leasing
Agreement V was transferred from SRRND to SRF, with the
same agreement terms.
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Beijing Leasing Agreement VI

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement VI”) was
entered between SRRND and Mr. Kei dated 26 June 2013
in relation to office rentals incurred from the operations of
the Group’s business in the distribution of luxury goods, of
a portion of office having a gross floor area of approximately
840 sg.m. at parts of Level 3 of Tower B, International
Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.

An agreement was entered into between SRRND and SRF,
dated 31 December 2019 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement VI was transferred from SRRND to
SRF, with the same agreement terms.

The ownerships of Levels 1, 2, 3 and 7 of Tower B, International
Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC under Beijing Leasing Agreements V and VI were transferred
from Mr. Kei to REX R AME ZEH R 2R (Tianjin Wenfu Xin Tian
Di Real Estate Co., Ltd.*) (“TJWF”), an independent third party, on
1 and 2 December 2021.

An agreement was entered into between TJWF, Mr. Kei and
SRF, dated 3 December 2021 pursuant to which the Beijing
Leasing Agreements V and VI were terminated with effect from 31
December 2021.
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LIST OF DISCLOSED CONTINUING AEEHEHBAEALITLZAT
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO #HEFERERZ 25X
BY THE GROUP WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

Annual Cap for
the year ended Rent paid for the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Bz—-ZE—-—
ZA=t—H
tEEZ BE-_ZE-__%#=HA=+—H
FELR HTFEEZEMAES
Equivalent to
RMB’000 RMB’000 HK$’000

AR®T T ARBT T TRELEE

1. Office rentals in relation to the Beijing 1. BB R HEHREIVL
Leasing Agreement IV BAEHE 1,140 270 321

2. Rentals of showroom in relation to the 2. BRI REERZEVZ
Beijing Leasing Agreement V EEfAc 13,200 9,900 11,833

3. Office rentals in relation to the Beiling 3. BB RMEMZEVIZ

Leasing Agreement VI BAEHS 3,360 2,520 3,012
Total HBE 17,700 12,690 15,166
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EHARNRERE
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout ARRRBE_T-__F=HA=+—HBLHF
the year ended 31 March 2022. EA—BEHBEH L ARTRE -
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 was
audited by BDO Limited (“BDO”). There has been no change
of auditor in any of the preceding 3 years. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection
and has adopted relevant measures for environmental protection
in order to ensure the compliance by the Group of the prevailing
environmental protection laws and regulations. Details of the
environmental policies and performance of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 80 to 136 in this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the operations of the Group are mainly carried
out by its subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. The
operations of the Group should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Group has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had adopted, applied
and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2022 except
for the deviation from provision C.2.1 of the Code since 1 January
2018.
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Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 45 to 68
in this Annual Report.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME, CHANGE OF
STOCK SHORT NAME AND AMENDMENTS TO
THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
BYE-LAWS

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 21 September 2021, the English name of the Company has
been changed from “Sparkle Roll Group Limited” to “New Sparkle
Roll International Group Limited” and the secondary name of the
Company in Chinese of “¥TIEBH B KB AR A F" has been
adopted with effect from 28 September 2021 pursuant to the
Certificate of Change of Name and the Certificate of Secondary
Name issued by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. The
Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-
Hong Kong Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies
in Hong Kong on 25 October 2021 confirming the registration of
the new name of the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong).

The stock short name of the Company for trading in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange has been changed from “SPARKLE ROLL” to
“NEW SPARKLEROLL” in English and from ‘B3 & E" to “FTRH"
in Chinese with effect from 1 November 2021. The stock code of
the Company on the Stock Exchange remains unchanged as “970”.

The Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws of the Company
have been amended and restated to reflect the above change of
Company name. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 24 August, 26 August, 21 September and 27
October 2021.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held at 4:30 p.m. on 27 September 2022 at
United Conference Centre, 10/F, United Centre, 95 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong and a notice of annual general meeting will
be published and despatched in due course.
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Report of the Directors

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF HONG KONG
BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

With effect from 15 August 2022, the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited (the “Branch Share Registrar”), will change its address
from Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong to

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

All telephone and facsimile numbers of the Branch Share Registrar
will remain unchanged.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22
September 2022 (Thursday) to 27 September 2022 (Tuesday) (both
days inclusive) during which period, no transfer of the shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged before 15 August 2022)
or 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong (if the transfer will be lodged on or after 15 August 2022)
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 September 2022
(Wednesday).

On behalf of the Board

Zheng Hao Jiang
Co-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The Board agrees that corporate
governance practices are increasingly important for maintaining and
promoting investor confidence. Corporate governance requirements
keep changing, therefore the Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure that all practices
can be met with legal and statutory requirements. Throughout
the year ended 31 March 2022,
principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code

the Group has adopted the

(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
Company has been in compliance with the Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2022 except for the deviation from provision
C.2.1 of the Code since 1 January 2018.

According to provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang is
the chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2018 and the Co-Chairman
of the Board (the “Co-Chairman”) with effect from 8 July 2020,
responsible for overall strategic development, project management
and client management of the Group. Mr. Ma Chao, an executive
Director, was appointed as a Co-Chairman with effect from 8 July
2020. The Board believes that vesting of the roles of both Co-
Chairman and chief executive officer in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring consistent leading within the Group and will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively; and considers that such arrangement will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management and that the Company has sufficient internal
controls to provide checks and balances on the functions of the
Co-Chairman and the chief executive officer. Nevertheless, the
Board will review such arrangement from time to time in light of the
prevailing circumstances.

In addition, the Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), comprising exclusively Independent Non-executive
Directors, is free to directly communicate with the Company’s
external auditors and independent professional advisers when it

considers necessary.

TEERER

AEEHNERRKIZEEE R - EFEF
%['/JE%a/uﬁ%EiTEC?‘E%Ikm?xéﬁf
DBRBER XERZERTEEE
- EEe TR ED %%xﬁ%%ﬁ'uﬁﬁ%
FIAERENTAERIEERE - REE=
T _HF-A=1T—HULEREAFE FAEE—
ERMEDRANME T HAE < BREART
Al (TR 2 RAI K 57 RIS - AR BIR &L
E-T-__F-_A=T-HUEEREFE—H

BSFRIZEE AT N\F—A—HBHE
1% B ST B SCC.2.1BR S o
BESFAEXC21  FHFEERITREH AR

EEESD  WAMEHR— ARKIRE - EHETE
- N\EF-A—HREAARAESTS
TREFTRER - YBE-_FT_TFLAN\RHE
REFEHMEIE (BMEXE]) BELXE
ErBERRRER HEEEREFPEE -H
TEFRBALREZERBELTE BT
ZELAN\BRER -BEFERR BAR—A
TR EERFEEERITRAER BT EA
MRERASEAT 2 EBRELRGEARR

A7) R R B RUEE RIETTRTE : WRRE
ZHETERESTSRERE 2RNED
NiER ¥ BERRTF 2 ABEHESI R AERZ K
TR FE B AT IR AR 2 BB R - BB ANt
BEEgRTENBATRBI AL

Uboh - 2BV IFRITEF AN AR B EZ
§1\5<r$*?§ﬁ J)TE/\/\HL,;%/Z‘EHTE
HERDFIIMNIZBAI R B EXEREE
B 4%

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7 45

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3



B EERRE
Corporate Governance Report

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities
transactions by the Directors. After having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to
the date of this Annual Report.

The Company also adopted the Model Code as guidelines for
its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company in respect of
their dealings in securities of the Company. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors and five
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Chao (Co-Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Xiaodong (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Zhu Lei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Gao Yu

Mr. Liu Honggiang

Mr. Liu Xiaoyi
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The biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report.

The Company has five Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board.

At least one of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. All the Independent Non-executive Directors have signed the
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules to confirm their independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts
and major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
business is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge
of each department. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, status and updates on the latest developments in
order to enable the Directors to discharge their duties. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

During the year under review, Mr. Zhao Xiaodong, Mr. Gao Yu and
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi retired and were re-elected as the Directors at the
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently five Independent Non-executive Directors. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment for a term of two years and then renewable
for one year. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least every three years.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Pursuant to the code provision B.2.3 of the Code, serving
more than 9 years could be relevant to the determination of
a Non-executive Directors’ independence. If an Independent
Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders. The circular to shareholders
accompanying that resolution will include the reasons why the
Board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.

During the year under review, Mr. Gao Yu was re-elected in a
separate resolution at the annual general meeting held on 21
September 2021.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 5 Board
meetings were held in 2021/2022. Individual attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and the Nomination Committee
meeting during 2021/2022 and the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 21 September 2021 (2021 AGM”) is set out
below:

ERREERR

EZeTHRTERBHAER o MBREE
R UARBHERKTE - R_T=— =T
CIFEERITAREEEEH N —
T CHFE BRESERETS SR
ENEESCH YNEBESSE REESR
geHEMARFR_E-_—FNALA=-1+—8
B BRRAAFASE ([ ZE=—FRREF
REDZEARNBEREHEINWAT :

Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERE EERE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee 2021 AGM
—EB--F
Director = EZg ENRZEE FMZEe BEEZE8 RREFAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BT A 55  NATER 1 N/A T A 11
Mr. Ma Chao BHEE 5/5 N/A T E A N/A T EF N/A 1N 0/1
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong BIREE 5/5 N/A A A N/A T A N/A i A 0/1
Mr. Zhu Lei KELE 5/5 N/A 138 A 11 N/A 148 3 01
Non-executive Director HHTEFE
Mr. Qi Jian Wei RRRAEE(RZZ_—F 7 NATEER NATEE NATER 0/0
(passed away on 28 August 2021) NAZ+ N\ BEH)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHIHTEE
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo ERERAE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1 11
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BREZEETE)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong MEE % E 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/ 1/1
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) — (#MWZE 8L /E)
Mr. Gao Yu BREE 5/5 2/2 N/A T N/A R @A 0/1
Mr. Liu Hongqiang BRBEE 55  NATER N/A REA 1/ 1/1
(Chairman of Nomination Committee) (1EEZE58FFE)
Mr, Liu Xiaoyi fEs ka 55  NATER 11 NATER 17
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Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail.
Draft minutes are circulated to Directors for comments within
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for
Directors’ inspection.

INDUCTION, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
OF DIRECTORS

Every Board member has received a guidance book on Directors’
duties and liabilities upon joining the Group, which also lays down
the guidelines on conduct for the Board and Board committee
members and other key governance issues, including but not
limited to Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations that they are required to observe during their service
in the Board. The updated guidelines will be provided from time to

time as and when appropriate.

A formal and tailored induction programme will be arranged for
each new Director, which includes a briefing on the Group’s
structure, businesses and governance practices by the senior
management. To seek continuous improvement, the Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training sessions, particularly on
corporate ethics and integrity matters, risk management, and new
relevant laws and regulations, from time to time.
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To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant and in compliance with code provision C.1.4
of the Code, the Company shall arrange and fund suitable training
for the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
During the year under review, the Directors participated in the kinds

of training as follows:

AREREERENESSHFLABREEE
Bl AR REST T2 FAMEXCA.4 AR
AL NEDNESTRIABEEI NBERR
EHRECMBE KRG -REBEFAN EFE
SEA TR

Director Kind of Training
2= I EE
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BT AB
Mr. Ma Chao BHtE A,B
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong HNRETE AB
Mr. Zhu Lei KREFLE A,B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTEE

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo =ZRIRESE AB
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong B & & AB
Mr. Gao Yu SREE AB
Mr. Liu Honggiang BIREEE AB
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi BlmmkLE AB
A:  Reading materials on legal and regulatory updates. A: BRZEREESMAER ZEY-

B: Attending training seminar organised by The Hong Kong B:

Institute of Directors relating to (i) 2022 update changes to the

Listing Rules and the Code and (ii) key corporate governance

requirements as seen from recent enforcement cases

involving listed companies.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination
Committee has recommended and the Board has adopted the
following measurable objectives:

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall be Non-
executive Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors;

(i)  a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications; and

(iv) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have China
related work experience.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
with the Company. The Company also takes into consideration
of its own business model and specific needs from time to time
in determining the optimal composition of the Board. The Board
Diversity Policy focuses on ensuring a balance composition of
skills and experience at the Board level in order to provide a range
of perspectives, insights and challenges that enable the Board to
execute its duties and responsibilities effectively, support making
good decision in view of the core businesses and strategy of the
Group, and support succession planning and development of
the Board. The ultimate decision in selecting the members of the
Board will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates bringing to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to take
opportunity to increase the proportion of female members over
time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for the Board’s appointments so as to achieve
an appropriate balance of gender diversity with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
gender diversity in the Board. Although the Group currently has
certain proportion of female senior management, the Nomination
Committee will aim to recommend at least one female Director
candidate to the Board for its consideration and seek to achieve
the target of adding at least one female Director to the Board by
31 December 2024.

The Nomination committee is responsible for ensuring the
diversity of the Board members and compliance with relevant
codes governing board diversity under the Code as set forth in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. While the Company recognises
that the gender diversity at the Board level can be improved given
its current composition of all male Directors, the Company will
continue to apply the principle of appointments based on merits
with reference to the Board Diversity Policy as a whole and are
committed to provide career development opportunities for female
staff.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
and the Company’s diversity profile (including balance of gender)
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The
Company will also disclose in its Corporate Governance Report
about the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy on an
annual basis.
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NOMINATION POLICY

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate.

° Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment and experience;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service; and

° In the case of independent non-executive Directors, the
independence of the candidate.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive.

Subject to the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, retiring
Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.
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Proposed candidate will be asked to submit his/her necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with his/
her written consent to be appointed as a Director and to the
public disclosure of his/her personal data on any documents or
the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her
standing for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the relevant circular to the Company’s
shareholders, the nominated persons shall not assume that they
have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the
general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and to invite
nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
Company’s shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment
period for the Company’s shareholders to make the nominations.
The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any other
information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the
circular to the Company’s shareholders.
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A shareholder of the Company can serve a notice to the Company
Secretary within the lodgement period of its intention to propose
a resolution to elect a certain person as a Director, without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination, other than those candidates set out in the circular to
the Company’s shareholders. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by a
supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available,
and the simple majority method will be used to determine who shall
be elected as a Director, shareholder’s proposed resolutions shall
therefore take the same form as the resolutions proposed for the
candidates recommended by the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and has adopted a written guideline on corporate
governance functions in compliance with the Code.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarised as follows:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(iliy  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and
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(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
as set out in the Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and monitored the training
of the Directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of the Board of Director. The revised terms of
references were effective from 1 January 2019.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the
Remuneration Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the
Remuneration Committee is to exercise the power of the Board
to determine and review the remuneration package of individual
directors and key executives, including salaries, bonuses and
benefits in kind, considering factors such as time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and key executive, employments
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance
based remuneration so as to align management incentives with
shareholders interests. The Remuneration Committee is also
considering all relevant remuneration data and market conditions
in addition to considering the performance and responsibility of
individual directors and officers by linking their compensation with
performance and will measure it against corporate goals. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the remuneration package of the Executive Directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about its proposals
relating to remuneration of the Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if it considers necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors. Its present
members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Liu Xiaoyi

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhu Lei

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in 2021/2022
to review and approve directors, and senior management’s
remuneration. The directors fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2021/2022 are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during 2021/2022:

° Review of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-executive Directors), with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share option scheme with
recommendations to the Board for approval.
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The annual remuneration of the members of the current senior
managements of the Group by band is set out below:

Emoluments Band

B < 48 5l

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
=870 £1,000,000/% 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
1,000,001/ 7T 2,000,000/ 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October
2008 and currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Honggiang (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok
Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board member, assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer.

The Nomination Committee has adopted written nomination
procedures specifying the process and criteria for selection of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The Nomination
Committee shall, based on criteria such as skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations, identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of appointment.
The Non-executive Directors and all Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of two years and
renewable for additional one year, and are required to retire
and eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in every three years in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting in 2021/2022. Below
is a summary of principal work performed by the Nomination
Committee during 2021/2022:

° Recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors.

° Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the Board committees.

° Assessment and confirmation of the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors according to the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls and discussing with the external auditor for the
nature and scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were formulated and adopted in March 2005 and
revised in January 2019.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its present members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Gao Yu

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Choy Sze Chung,
Jojo, has appropriate professional qualification in accounting
and extensive experience in accounting and auditing matters.
Senior management and external auditor shall normally attend the
meetings. The Audit Committee held 2 meetings in 2021/2022 with
representatives from the external auditor of the Company, for the
purpose of discharging the aforesaid duties.
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Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2021/2022:

° Review of the annual financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2021 and the interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2021, with recommendations to the Board for
approval.

° Review reports from the auditors to the Audit Committee.

° Review of the internal controls and the risk management
systems of the Group.

° Review of the connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

° Review of the financial budget of the Group.

° Review and make recommendation to the Board on the
reappointment of the auditors.

° Review and approve the remuneration, other terms of
engagement, the nature and scope of the audit and the
reporting obligations of the auditor.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the appointment of the external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditors are appointed by resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the Directors are authorized
to fix the remunerations for the auditing services.
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The fee paid or payable to the auditors for annual auditing services
for the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$2.1 million (2021:
mainly audit of annual financial statements, agreed-upon

HK$2.3 million). Auditing services include

procedures on interim financial information, review of the continuing
connected transactions and the annual results announcement
of the Group. BDQO'’s affiliated companies have performed other
non-auditing services during the year with aggregate service fee
of approximately HK$0.295 million (2021: HK$0.341 million).
Non-auditing services include mainly provision of professional
services in compliance review, review on Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Group. The Audit Committee has
considered, based on the policy developed by them in this regard,
and made recommendations to the Board for these non-auditing

services conducted by the auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board and the Board
committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its shareholders, and facilitates induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and that it has regard to them
when making decisions. The Company Secretary also advises
the Directors on their obligations for disclosure of interests in
securities, connected transactions and inside information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the Listing
Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the annual

reports of the Company.

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The
Company Secretary is appointed by the Board and reports to the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.
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Mr. Li Yat Ming, the Financial Controller of the Group, has been
appointed by the Company as the Company Secretary. He is
also the primary contact person of the Company. For the year
under review, Mr. Li has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge. The
biographical details of Mr. Li are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS - CONVENING OF GENERAL
MEETING

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meetings, for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The chairman
and Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meetings. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held every year within a period of not more than
fifteen (15) months after the holding of the last preceding annual
general meeting.
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Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a general meeting of the Company and put forward agenda items
for consideration by shareholders. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting. Shareholders holding an aggregate of not less than one-
tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisition themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken
by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put to vote at the annual
general meetings will be taken by way of poll. The chairman of
the annual general meetings will explain the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll at the commencement of the annual general
meetings.

After the conclusion of the annual general meetings, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company.

The Company shall maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and investors, and would regularly review the
communication strategies between the Company and its
shareholders. Upon review, the Board is of the view that the
communication strategies between the Company and its
shareholders were well implemented and maintained effective
during the financial year under review.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In addition to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, additional information is
also available to shareholders on the Group’s website.
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A resolution in respect of certain proposed changes to the Bye-
laws of the Company was passed in the special general meeting
of the Company held on 21 September 2021. An updated
constitutional document of the Company was published on 27
October 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Company may
declare dividend according to the recommendation of the board of
directors of the Company. No dividend shall be paid or distribution
made out of contributed surplus if to do so would render the
Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or the
realisable value of its assets would thereby become less than its
liabilities.

The Company may in its full discretion decide not to declare
dividend due to various reasons, including but not limited to
maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and reserving more
capital to capture opportunities, etc.

According to the Bermuda Companies Act, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if: (a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are as follows:

New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited
Rooms 2028-36, 20th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2299 9902

Fax: (852) 2802 8577

BBARRIzETRARMRIEZEE 2 AFE
RERZE-_—FNAZ+—HEITZAR
ARERFAAS LRB - AARER T —
FTAZTEAERCEH 2 ER o

IR B BUR

RERNRBZABER  ARA]AREART]
EXgZHBEATIREE - MILBUTBAMIK
MERB AL D IRE B EARRRE NN E
AMaE HEEANEZRFESRLINEER
& AP BRE R BRI R IER DK -

ARR A 2BBEERTRRERE NEIK
BE REBREINRNGEFUABELRS
B URRBEZESEERES -

REBEERERRE i (@ANRRIREREIK
NRENZNEREE : K(O)BEERTERFE
RELEDREBEEEETRA RO EE
BRZ MM IR RRABRA R BHRE RIK
TR B EH 2K -

BRROESSEHZER

REANRARBIREAG FRESSELE
B SEREARINENEERNANEESR
HERAREEEE - RAWMEZHEER D
T

FRARBEEEBRA A
BB BT B B30

18 E A0 201£2028-36F
&5 1 (852) 2299 9902

{8 & : (852) 2802 8577

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7 65

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3



P EEREE
Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has an on ongoing responsibility for maintaining the
Group’s system of internal control and for the assessment and
management of risk and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
the interests shareholders as a whole, investment to and by the
Company and the Company’s assets. To meet its responsibility,
the Board has entrusted the Audit Committee and appointed
professional internal control consultants whose responsibility is to
assess the risks faced by the Group and review the internal control
systems of the Group, which include the financial, operational
and compliance controls functions. The risk assessment report
will document the major business risks while the internal review
report will provide the factual findings of (i) whether the internal
control procedures, systems and controls of the Group are suitably
designed to achieve their specified control objectives (ii) whether
they have been placed in operation, and are operating effectively;
and (i) whether the specific controls objectives are achieved during
a specified period from the testing and review.

During the year, the Board has conducted review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and control
issue. The internal control review report for the year listed out the
findings of the weaknesses in respect of the relevant cycles and
procedures with recommendations proposed for the Company
to further improve its internal control system. The results of the
review and the risk assessment report have been identified and
appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the
risks. The Board, based on the review of the Audit Committee,
considered that the Group’s internal control system was effective
and the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the accounting and financial reporting
functions were adequate for the year under review.
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The Company has reviewed the inside information policy from
time to time and kept its content up-to-date. The updated inside
information policy for the handling and dissemination of inside
information has been circulated to the Directors, the senior
management and the relevant employees when they are employed.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy for
employees and those who deal with the Group to raise concerns
of possible improprieties where all concerns are addressed to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee, one of the member of the Audit
Committee and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Company has also established an anti-corruption and bribery policy
to promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management
has provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board
to enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval including the updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the Company generates or
preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives have been prepared and included in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies of the note 4 to the financial
statements. The Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in financial reporting. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 137 to 143 in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited

Zheng Hao Jiang
Co-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 55, Mr. Zheng graduated in the Law Department (Economic
Law Speciality) of Peking University, the PRC in 1990 with a
Bachelor degree in Law. Mr. Zheng has over 22 years’ experience
in Beijing in the areas of equity portfolio management, capital
market analysis management and financial advisory. He is a
founding member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior
Executives Association and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He is currently a General Manager of
Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. Mr. Zheng joined the Group in
October 2006.

Mr. Zheng has an interest in such number of shares under Part
XV of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
Annual Report.

MA CHAO (Co-Chairman)

Aged 39, Mr. Ma graduated from Beijing Jiaotong University,
the PRC with a Bachelor of Administration in 2005. Mr. Ma has
extensive experience in finance, investment and merger and
acquisition projects.

Mr. Ma also served as an executive director of Heritage
International Holdings Limited (now known as China Shandong
Hi—-Speed Financial Group Limited) whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 412, from April
2015 to November 2017. He also served as an executive Director,
co-chairman and chief executive officer of Chong Kin Group
Holdings Limited (HK stock code: 1609) from January 2021 to
November 2021. Mr. Ma joined the Group in June 2020.
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ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 54, Mr. Zhao, graduated in the Information Technology
Department of Beijing University of Chemical Technology, the
PRC in 1990 with a Bachelor degree in Engineering. He has
over 18 years of experience in the areas of wholesale and retail
management of luxury goods in Beijing.

Mr. Zhao was a Member of Supervisory Board of Cultural
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock
code: 600715) from October 2015 to December 2021.

Mr. Zhao was the executive Director, the Deputy Chairman and
the Chief Operating Officer of the Company from September 2008
to December 2015. He had also been a Consultant from January
2016 to 15 April 2018 in respect of the watch and jewellery
business of the Group and has been re-designated as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Group since 16 April 2018.

ZHU LEI

Aged 48, Mr. Zhu obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Russian
from the Department of Foreign Languages and Literatures of
Beijing Normal University, the PRC in 1998. He has over 20 years
of experience in management and sales of watches and jewelry and
management and operation of golf clubs. Mr. Zhu joined the Group
in May 2011 and has since held several positions in the Group,
including but not limited to the executive director of the marketing
department of our Beijing headquarter, the operating director of
Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development Limited, the
director of the fine wine business of the Group and the general
manager of Sparkle Roll Online (Beijing) Business Service Limited.
He is currently the General Manager of Sparkle Roll Honour Club
and General Manager of Rolls-Royce Tianjin of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 63, Mr. Choy is the Vice Chairman of National Resources
Securities Limited. He has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport,
United Kingdom and Master of Business Law Degree from
Monash University, Australia. Mr. Choy was awarded Fellowship
by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration and
Honorary Doctorate of Management by Lincoln University in 2019.
Mr. Choy is also an independent non-executive director of Luye
Pharma Group Limited (HK stock code: 2186), Zhaojin Mining
Industry Company Limited (HK stock code: 1818) and First Credit
Finance Group Limited (HK stock code: 8215).

Mr. Choy is also the Permanent Honorary President and Vice
Chairman of the Institute of Securities Dealers Limited, a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a fellow member of
Institute of Financial Accountants in the United Kingdom, a fellow
member of the Institute of Compliance Officers, a fellow member
of the Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a member of the
fourth session, the fifth session and the sixth session of the Chief
Executive Election Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (Financial Services Subsector), a member of the Election
Committee of the 12th and 13th National People’s Congress of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a member of the 11th,
12th and 13th Shantou Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee, an honorary president of Shantou Overseas Friendship
Association, an honorary president of Shantou Overseas Exchange
Association, an honorary principal of Chen Po Sum School and
a director of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community
Organizations. Mr. Choy joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Choy has an interest in such number of shares under Part
XV of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
Annual Report.
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LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 68, Mr.
University of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive

Lam holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the

director of Wah Sun Hangbags International Holdings Limited (HK
stock code: 2683) and Convoy Global Holdings Limited (HK stock
code: 1019) which was delisted on 4 May 2021.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Southwest
Securities International Securities Limited (HK stock code: 812) and
China Brilliant Global Limited (formerly known as Prosten Health
Holdings Limited) (HK stock code: 8026) until his resignation on 19
September 2016 and 12 February 2018, respectively.

Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently a China-appointed
Attesting Officer,
Territories and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages. Mr. Lam joined the
Group in October 2007.

Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
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GAO YU

Aged 48, Mr. Gao graduated from Stanford University, United
States with a Master’s degree in engineering-economic systems
and operations research as well as from Tsinghua University in
Beijing, the PRC with dual Bachelor’'s degrees in engineering and
economics. He currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (HK stock code:
3818). He is a non-executive director of China Feihe Limited (HK
stock code: 6186) and Home Control International Limited (HK
stock code: 1747). Mr. Gao is also a director of Shandong Buchang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code:
603858).

Mr. Gao has resigned as an independent director of AMTD
International Inc. which is listed on New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: HKIB) since February 2022.

Mr. Gao was a managing director in the Private Credit & Equity
Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, the co-chief investment
officer of Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia, Head of its China
Investment Operations and Chairman of RMB Fund’s Investment
Committee until July 2022. He was also a member of Morgan
Stanley’s China Management Committee. Prior to joining Morgan
Stanley Asia Limited in August 2005, Mr. Gao worked in Citigroup’s
Investment Banking Division in Asia for about five years. He also
worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s Debt Capital Markets
Group in New York. Mr. Gao joined the Group in September 2010.
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LIU HONGQIANG

Mr. Liu, aged 41, graduated from the North China University of
Technology, the PRC with a Bachelor degree in Economic Laws
in 2002. In addition, Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business
Administration jointly awarded by The School of Economics and
Management of the University of Science and Technology Beijing,
the PRC and University of Texas at Arlington, United States, and
a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from the
University of Texas at Arlington, United States.

Mr. Liu has over 10 years’ experience in the legal and investment
field and is also a qualified lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Liu worked in
law firms in the PRC, including Hogan Lovells International LLP.
He founded Higgs Capital Group Limited and served as the Chief
Representative of the Association of Corporate Counsel Beijing
Office and an executive partner of Songshan Capital Management
Company Limited* (& ILEAREEBRAF) . He currently serves
as an executive director of 21 Capital Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu joined the
Group in February 2020.

Mr. Liu has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV
of the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
Annual Report.

LIU XIAOYI

Aged 37, Mr. Liu graduated from London South Bank University,
United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts, majoring in Accounting
and Finance. He is a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting,
audit and compliance and was a revenue accountant of a specialist
recruiting firm in Hong Kong and an associate and an assistant
manager of a sizeable audit, tax and advisory firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Liu is currently an accounting manager of a brokerage house in
Hong Kong. Mr. Liu joined the Group in October 2020.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
LI YAT MING

Aged 42, Mr. Li is the Company Secretary, Financial Controller
and Authorised Representative of the Company and he joined
the Group in July 2009. He has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, financial management, taxation and company
secretarial fields. Prior to joining the Group, he had served in
an international accounting firm. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Postgraduate Certificate in Corporate Compliance
from The University of Hong Kong School of Professional and
Continuing Education. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and also is a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association.

JIA HAI TAO

Aged 54, Mr. Jia graduated from the master’'s programme in
business economics ( ¥ & &2 H %) of the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, the PRC in 1998 and is the
General Manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. Mr. Jia has
held various senior management positions since 1998 in the fields
of sales and marketing, and in these positions, he was responsible
for the marketing of computer equipment at KeHai Group* (£H/&
&£ @), consultancy and marketing of life insurance at Sino-US
MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd.* (REKXRHEHE AFREKAE) and film
studio marketing at Beijing Sparkle Roll International Film Studio
Management Limited* (it B R EZHEEBR A A) . Mr. Jia
joined the Group in September 2012 and has served in various
capacities, including deputy general manager of the automobile
dealership division, deputy general manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing,
deputy general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of
the Group.
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LIU JING JING

Aged 48, Ms.
Technology, the PRC in 1997 with a Bachelor of Engineering in
P EAS H ) and is the Head
of purchasing of the automobile dealership division and deputy

Liu graduated from the Beijing University of
air-conditioning and cooling (2=

general manager of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. Since 1997,
Ms. Liu had been working in the area of public relations with
Beijing Dongan Group* (L RE L& ® ), Shidu Mall* (& H
&) and Zhongshang Department Store* (FRE B S ). She joined
the Beijing Bentley Group in 2001 as assistant to president and
was responsible for handling commercial vehicle orders, vehicle
purchase and liaison with foreign vehicle manufacturers for more
than 20 years. Ms. Liu joined the Group in July 2008 and has
served as assistant to president and purchasing manager of the
automobile dealership division of the Group.

CHEN LING

Aged 43, Mr.
Technology, the PRC in 2001 with a Bachelor of Engineering

Chen graduated from the Beijing Institute of

in computer science and from the University of Wollongong
in Australia in 2009 with a Master in Information Technology
Management. He is the General Manager of BANG & OLUFSEN at
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group, and Head of the e-commerce division of the
Group. Mr. Chen has been engaging, and has accumulated rich
experience, in corporate management and information technology
management since 2010. Mr. Chen joined the Group in July 2013
and was assistant to president of the automobile dealership
division of the Group and training manager of B&O PLAY at
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development Limited.
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QU JING

Aged 41,
in fashion design and performance of the Beijing Institute of

Ms. Qu graduated from the undergraduate programme

Fashion Technology, the PRC in 2001 and is the General Manager
of Bentley Beijing, of the Group. Ms. Qu has been engaging in the
sale of Bentley vehicles for various years after graduation and later
joined the Group in June 2010. Prior positions at the Group include
Head of the sales department of the wine division, Beijing Sparkle
Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao) and Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group.
She has extensive experience in cross-selling of various product
lines of the Group and handling VIP relations.

LEI YUN
Aged 55, Mr. Lei graduated from the undergraduate programme in

EHEE ) of the Academy of Arts & Design, Tsinghua
University, the PRC in 1992 and is the General Manager of Bentley

decoration (%

Tianjin of the Group. Mr. Lei has been engaging in public relations
planning, advertising and media and design for over 20 years since
1998 and has extensive experience in product management and
marketing. Mr. Lei joined the Group in August 2015 and has served
deputy general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of
the Group.

CHENG BIN

Aged 49, Ms. Cheng graduated from the Kwantlen Polytechnic
University in Canada in 2008 with a Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting. She also is the Chartered
Professional Accountant, Certified General Accountant (CPA, CGA).
Ms. Cheng currently is the assistant operating director and Head
of the marketing division of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. She
had served as auditor and financial controller at BDO Canada and
Canada JinBi International Limited* (12 A4 ZHEAR A 7))
since 2008. She joined the Group in March 2013 and held the
position as the Head of the watch and jewelry division and the
Head of the marketing and media division of the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ZHANG BING

Aged 51, Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai Railway University,
the PRC in 1995 with a college degree in financial accounting and
obtained the national intermediate accountant qualification in May
2000. He is currently the assistant financial controller of the Group
and the manager of the financial department of Beijing headquarter
of the Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2008 and has
served as the accounting supervisor of Bentley Beijing, Rolls-Royce
Beijing and Lamborghini Beijing, and the accounting supervisor
of Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading Development Limited.
Since joining the Group, Mr. Zhang has accumulated extensive
experience in financial management of luxury automobiles industry
and watch and jewelry retail industry.

GUO YING

Aged 47, Ms. Guo graduated from Capital University of Economics
and Business, the PRC in August 1998 with a Bachelor of
Economics in computerized accounting and has served as an
accountant of Beijing Shiyuan Urban Construction Integrated
Development Company* (It R tIRB M EREEFHERQR), a
personnel assistant of Beijing Celebrity Horse Technology Limited*
(IERBABEERFARAA)and a human resource manager
of Beijing Bentley Group Limited* (1t REFEEHBPR A a)). She
is currently the human resources director of Beijing headquarter
of the Group. Ms. Guo joined the Group in May 2011 as the
manager of the personnel department. She has been engaging in
human resources management for over 20 years and has relevant
professional background and extensive experience.

R

BESR REE-NNAFAEEERS
B EeEEREMBETERX —TTTFA
AESBERDRGFTEER - WIREAEED
I B 75 A B e AN SR B AL A BB TS HB AT IR - OR
EER-_TZENFLAMALREER SEEE
Mibw - BHHAIE R WEEEILREIES
A MEBRERS (ER)BHERERAA
TERR - REEMAREBEUR  ERENR
BTEMEZRETETEMBEETER

88 = g
BEELR-

LiE

BEATR BREIR—NAANFENAKRER
MEXENTEEHEEREIAREEAEEL
BX BAKBERELBM  WREEILRT
RETEREEHERR G IERBAR
SRRERRAAEENIERENEERS
RAOFIAFLKE - FREANKEILRAEAT
BREE -HRITN_T——FRHAMALRE
EAFEE -RUFANEREETIE
w20F - AEHEAERE R NEENER-

78 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43



EEREREEAEZERE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

WEN Ql

Aged 46, Mr. Wen graduated from Training School of Beijing
Communist Party Committee, the PRC with a college degree in
economic management in 2005. He is currently the deputy general
manager and after-sales and maintenance manager of Rolls-Royce
Beijing of the Group. Mr. Wen joined the Group in May 2011 and
has served several positions in the Group, including the executive
assistant of Beijing headquarter of the Group, deputy manager
and workshop director of branded automobile aftersales service
division, the deputy general manager and sales manager of Bentley
Beijing and the general manager of Bentley Tianjin of the Group.
Since joining the Group, Mr. Wen has served in various capacities
and possesses different kinds of professional background and
after-sales maintenance service management experience for
luxury automobiles and sales management experience for Bentley
automobiles.

*  For identification purpose only
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (hereafter collectively “the Group”, “we” or
“our”) pay most efforts to maintain the position in luxury goods
dealerships. We make extra efforts to provide optimal and quality
services to attract customers while reducing our environmental
footprint in our business operation to maximise our added value.
We are pleased to publish our sixth environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) report (the “Report”) to show the efforts we
made over the past year and our strategic approach in meeting
the expectation of our stakeholders, as well as uplifting the ESG
performance of the Group.

Reporting Scope

The Report covers the ESG performance during the period from
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the “Reporting Period” or
“2022”) and includes our major business operations in automobile
dealerships in Beijing and Tianjin, the PRC, namely Beijing Mei He
Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited, Beijing De Te Motors Trading
Limited, Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development Limited and
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading Development Limited. The scope
remains the same as that in the Report in 2021.

Reporting Standard

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Comply
or Explain” provisions of ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (‘HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”).
The Report has been reviewed and approved by the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”).
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In this Report, we adopt the reporting principles of materiality, HKFIERAREANFHN TXHAESZHE -2

Reporting Principles

quantitative, balance and consistency, as described below: b~ Pl Rk — B ERIRA
Description
iU

BE R /7 A

Materiality
EEM

Quantitative
21t

Balance
i

Consistency

— B

Opinion and Feedback

We made a consensus on the material topics through internal discussion and
participation of key stakeholders. The outcome is summarised in the section —
Materiality Assessment in this Report.

BMERANT T wmEARENEN2EAREEZEENRB -ERNERE [EE
MERTAE ] — &L o

To ensure that the effectiveness of our ESG policies and management systems,
we presented our ESG performance with the aid of environmental and social
key performance indicators (“KPIs”), with reference to the HKEx ESG Reporting
Guide.

RERESGHE R BB RGN M2 BB MESGHREIES| - FARE kit
2HARESIERE ([KPIs]) £5|ESGHERK

All environmental and social KPls were computed and presented with reference
to the HKEx ESG Reporting Guide and robust methodologies were adopted as
illustrated in the respective sections of the Report.
FAERRERTEHBERIERA2 R IFMESGREE S| WA REREEEH T
MEAI R EFERES -

Comparisons with the data in the last two years have been included to provide
an unbiased picture of our ESG performance over time.

BPTERBRBENEFHOLEREE U TNRITEDE2MESCGE M ERE L -
The Report has been prepared based on the same methodologies, standard and
reporting scope as compared to the previous years.

BECRAEZFHARNTE BERREBERE -

RRERE

We would appreciate your feedback or opinions on the FHfiEd B TIHBRERENRENT R #
Report in order for us to drive continual improvement in our B I I3 B IR FTESGLE K - BULBE RS 5 1B B H
ESG performance. Please feel free to contact us via email at  info@hk970.comEz F {58 & -

info@hk970.com.
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ESG GOVERNANCE

The Board’s responsibilities include:

° overseeing all ESG issues and strategies of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the Group’s ESG report;

° setting the appropriate ESG targets for the Group; and

° monitoring the target achievement progress.

The ESG risk management function is delegated to the Board’s
Audit Committee. The committee reviews and approves the risk
assessment and reports to the Board for the adaptation of risk
control measures.

The senior management members of each subsidiary are
responsible for implementing the ESG policies and targets. Besides

the Group’s policies, each subsidiary is also required to follow the
ESG guidelines and requirements provided by the vehicle suppliers.

The Board

EXY

ESGE A

BEG I BERE:

o EEAEERAESCEERER:

o BUAEMESGRE

« ATEEHTHEYZESCEE: R

. EEERAEIEE-
EEQCBESCAREEREERET Y B

ZEREg- Eiéi?ﬁ?ttjzﬁii‘\E#&ﬂﬁﬁ
At AEEE 2 SRR R HHE i

EWB ARz EMREEAB A EEHESGH
RRBER -BAKBEZBEIN ZSHELRF IR
REST TR B R T B 2 ESGHE S| RARE -
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NN
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Oversight
=E

v

Audit Committee

BEREEY

Review and Approve

=it

v

Senior Management of Subsidiary

MEBARSREERE

Policy Execution

HITEUR
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ESG RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group engaged a third-party consultant to conduct an ESG

risk assessment to identify the material risks that can impact the

Group’s operation to a significant degree. The following highlights

two of the material risk items and the Group’s response:

Risks
s

Quality and Product
Safety Risk
EmBERRZRER

Changing Consumer
Needs Risk
HEBEZEWE ZRR

Importance

BEEHM

It is essential to maintain high product
quality to ensure the safety of users.
A poorly serviced vehicle could pose a
serious danger to the passengers and
the public, which could damage the
reputation of the Group and affect its future
cooperation with clients.

RREARZ2 AVERFERBER K-
REPMEZAEAHRERLARBKREESR
R EMBEAKEBE FERKRERP
ZatEe

Our clients are expecting more diverse
services more than simply repair and
maintenance. Failing to improve the scope
and depth of our services could damage
the Group’s reputation and lose customers.
BMOEPHETZ b 2R T IERE
BIZHRERE -RERARBEEMNRE K
EREEAEECEBE EESHMREER -

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7

ESGE & & &

AEBEERFEE = BFEITESGR R -
ABBI AR AREEBRBEEATEZER
BB o TR 25IMARRIAR RAKEZ
Bl /&

Our Responses

EMNzmrE

We have established quality assurance
standard to guarantee the quality of
products, as well as the health and
safety of our customers. We also
require our employees to follow relevant
guidelines, procedures and requirements
in pursuing high quality standards. Refer
to the “Product Quality and Safety”
section in this Report for details.
BMRERERZRE REEMEERK
ERERER e HMTMERERETHE
BiEs BFREAE BERSKTFmER
o FER2HARE [EMEERLE]
—Epe

We are committed to delivering
excellent services to our customers,
and established relevant management
procedures to satisfy their changing
needs, in order to enhance our brand
image and cultivate customer loyalty.
Refer to the “Customer Satisfaction”
section in this Report for details.

BMABEREPIRESBERE 2 HIET4E
BERREF mERPHAMARZFE
RmEARMzmBEEE BERER
F-#BEHA2HARS (TP MEE] —

i
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Maintaining a lasting and genuine relationship with our stakeholders
plays a crucial role in identifying the ESG risks and opportunities of
the Group. Through on-going discussion and communication with
our stakeholders, we understand their opinions and expectation
towards the performance of the Group, thereby formulating
appropriate management systems, policies and procedures in
response to their needs. Our stakeholders and communication
channels include the following:

Stakeholder Groups
B4 &4 Bl BRERE

Investors and Shareholders

REERBR

Corporate website
YNGIFG R

Annual general meeting

BRRBFAE

FOESAREEMTMG

BERMzFHDERBRAMEHNZ BERES
BIASKEESCR BRI HKE T HAERTEE
ZAB- RABESOERESIWLER T
RESHAREER B R REE i b5
CEKRETEZEEEERR BRRNIEF-
BAZBENERBBREBEATREA:

Communication Channels

Annual and interim reports

FHREFPHES

Corporate announcements

/'\—J/'\tt

Customers

BF

Corporate website
NGIFG R

Annual and interim reports

FHREHBMRE

Feedback from customers

EP K&
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Stakeholder Groups
45 E4A R

Employees

(=

Suppliers and Business Partners

HERREHBH

Government Authorities and Regulators

B BB P I BE M

Communities

&

Media
g

Communication Channels

BERE

Training and orientation

Bl e E

Intranet and opinion box

WEEE KRB RAA

Regular meetings and performance review
EHI S & MR

Procurement process
R
Regular communication (e.g. email, meetings, on-site visit etc.)

EHER(JIWNER gH BEMFHF)

Documented information submission
REXMHEH
Forums conferences and workshops

uHH N Eﬂ#&ﬁﬁuTA

Corporate website
YNGIE W
Community participation

fLEm 28

Corporate website
YNSIFEER
Corporate announcements

/'\—J/'\tl:

Interviews and networking platforms
MAKRABETE
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Assessing Materiality ESG Issues

1 Identification

HESGEEZEEM

Engagement Prioritisation

Validation
>

Review the results of
materiality assessment for
ESG reporting and
performance improvement
in future

iR
Identify and map a list of Conduct stakeholder Prioritise the most material
ESG topics engagement exercises ESG topics through the
AR RIREESGERRAEE EITHNE ST materiality assessment
BREBHTMERARERZ
ESGEEHEER
\. J \. J \.

BEREEMEERUER
BRIEITESGEER B AR

We invited our stakeholders to complete an online survey and
rate the 27 ESG issues relating to environment, employment and
operational practices and community engagement according to the
importance and relevance both to stakeholders and the Group’s
business. The responses were then consolidated and analysed
in the form of a materiality matrix. The results were reviewed by
the management of the Group to continuously improve our ESG
performance in the material issues. We respond to these issues in
the relevant sections in this Report.

BMPBBRHEESHE LRSS R27TEBER
RE EREREEBHIANTESEESGHA
RO ERAEEEB 2EEE AR
Mz EREETHD HMEREREENR
ERES AT AREERE EREAEEEIEE
BH URENERMEEEHRE L ZESGHE
Mo BFIMNABENEFAEE R FZE
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Materiality Matrix

R EEMIEE
Medium Priority XEZE High Priority ﬁ&f&é
0® ©
d o
. (2¢)
: (i
[<]
g5 o O
o. 02
i 3° o @ o
H
d 6
5 )
9%
Low Priority BR&Z & Medium Priority /R EZE >

Significance to the Group’s Business & Operation

Environment
R

HAKEXREREBECERN

Social
HE

Employment Operation

Air emission 9. Labor rights 18.  Customer satisfaction
BERHERR S IREN EEMEE
Greenhouse gas emission 10. Labor-management relations 19.  Customer service quality and
BE R BEMIR complaints handling
Climate change 11.  Employee retention XEREE = RIEFEE
RIREE HEER 20. Customer health and safety
Energy efficiency 12.  Diversity and equal opportunity EEREHEZS
RER RS Zalt R FEHE 21.  Marketing and product and service
Water and effluents 18.  Non-discrimination labelling compliance
K K2 REIK FELLAR EHAREmERBEEHES R
Use of materials 14.  Occupational health and safety 22. Intellectual property
HEHE A BEREELZE B E
Waste management 15.  Employee training 23. Customer privacy and data protection
REZEYE IR & 85357 B LR KB BHRE
Environmental compliance 16. Employee development 24. Responsible supply chain
RIRAH EEERE management

17.  Prevention of child labor and forced BEACHEREERE

labor 25. Business ethics
BilEE T Rkl T [EESEE
26. Socio-economic compliance
HELEAR

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #7 /2 2K B} & B F IR 2 A

Community
HE

27.

Community investment

HE&RE
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During the Reporting Period, the five most significant ESG issues
to the Group identified by the materiality assessment are within the
area of operational practices, including:

1. customer service quality and complaints handling;

2. customer privacy and data protection;

&), customer satisfaction;

4.  customer health and safety; and

B business ethics.

The Group will continue to improve our ESG performances,
especially in the above-mentioned aspects in response to the
feedback from our stakeholders.

SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

One of the key factors that make the Group stand out is our
consistent delivery of high quality services. Not only do we meet
the high service standards of luxury automobile manufacturers, but
also the expectations of users. By strictly monitoring and carefully
inspecting our products, we ensure that our customers are satisfied
with the purchase experience.

Product Quality and Safety

The Group has stringent quality assurance standards on all of our
luxury automobiles to guarantee the quality of the products and
safeguard the health and safety of our customers. Specifically, we
adopt the following practices:

° new automobiles purchased from our suppliers are carefully
inspected to ensure that they function properly;

RBERR E2UFEIR 2 AEB AR

EZESGHRENBNE BB &K 81

1. BPREERREBRFEE:

2. BEFILBRERHRE:

3. EPFmEE:

4. FPREEZE:R

EL

5. MBWEER-
AEBEFHBERNEZESCER Fhl2 L&
S BREER D ERE-

RBEE

RUEB—HRZEBERY REP-BHSTAE
B R 2 EREAE RATSBRTEL
ERCBERGEEZG TmERARZH
L RFEBERER R ARBER BR
Bz EPRSEONBEZEERR

EREERZZR
AEESEBRAEREREZMERE

B REEREERAEFPREERZE - AR
& RIS REA T

s REEBFTBAZAESEFARR
REFELE
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o relevant laws and regulations such as the Regulation
Concerning Management of Compulsory Product Certification
of the PRC must be complied by our suppliers to maintain
quality standards. We reach a mutual agreement with
suppliers on the quality checking and satisfactory conditions
of the automobiles prior to car delivery;

° a pre-delivery inspection system is adopted to perform
functional checking in Tianjin’s operation and confirmation of
“Pre-delivery Inspection Agreement” must be signed with our
customers;

° the after-sale service standards we provided to the customers
are reliable and responsive; and

° detailed guidelines, management procedures and requirements
are provided to our employees in pursuing high quality
standards and protecting the safety conditions of our products
by all means.

Furthermore, in protecting the brand marks of the Group and
aiming to ensure the information truthfulness, our marketing
department is responsible for screening out any fraudulent
advertisement and promotional materials.

During the Reporting Period, no products sold was subjected to
recall for safety and health reasons.

o HEBUAET (hEBHIMERDE
BEME) SHEARERARERE
FE- RPN TERRTERER
B REEMNNEEEE AT &

P

. BPRAZFrREHEE ERKEL
BREITIIRERE - ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁf% [
/TTJLH' %ﬁ‘lﬁj J ﬁ@ub =

o BRMAEFRETEMREES &% RS
Z R

ST

s HfiREEBRHEFMAES EEEFR
BE BRSKTRERE BEXEDA
REERZE-

BE RREAKEzmEERLERENZ
BEREM B g AR ERSEMNERRE
EREEMH -

RBEHA BECEEMR L2 EEREH
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group commits to delivering excellent standard of services
to our customers. We have established a Customer Satisfaction
Management Procedure (the “Procedure”) to govern our after-sale
services, enhance brand image and cultivate customer loyalty. After
studying the problems within the automobile after-sales service
industry in China, the Procedure sets out the following directives
to maintain and improve continuously the degree of customer
satisfaction:

Enforcing Rules and Regulations

BITHRRAIRRE

EFmEE

AEEAGHEREPIREEHRE - B HIFT
—EZEPREEERRR ([BF]) 1t
REERRE BRARBETRIEELESR
F-EMRPBENECSRREITENRER

BRRZRFHEIATIES  TEHAERL R
ERXPMEE:

Increasing Service Depthness

DN3SRRES R E

90

Establish and improve various rules and regulations
and enforce them well to ensure that all procedures
are fully implemented

217 g N BT RIERARIAE U RFIERRRF
BT B

Establish advanced servicing facilities to offer
services beyond simple repairs and consultations
BT SeE SR E S LR B E R IE A2
BR#%5

Use parts only from official and legitimate sources

RAERARBESREEREZ SN

Customer Satisfaction Directives

ERREEET

Cultivating Corporate Image

FERyATE

Build a quality-oriented corporate culture

BEUAEABHEENIE

Enhance the overall quality of after-sale service
personnel in order to develop a positive corporate
image and build trust

RASEBEHBASBERE UBTFEEETRERERE

Improving Service Experience

e EIRFSASER

Improve the environment of service locations and be
attentive to details in each cycle in the service
process

B RISRAIRIA B RISIEF P R EIRET 2 48RS
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Besides services quality, the Group realizes that its corporate
image will also affect customer satisfaction. Hence, we strive for
continuous improvement of customer perception of our business.
First and foremost, we create a comfortable and enjoyable
environment to serve our customers. In this regard, we established
requirements for our frontline staff in terms of manner in greetings
and handling enquires and service requests by our clients.

We also pay attention to our social responsibility. In this day and
age, mere quality service cannot guarantee business success.
Instead, we believe that a business with a demonstrably strong
commitment to its corporate social responsibility will enjoy a higher
relative advantage within the industry.

Building trust with existing customers will help us establish a
strong base of loyal clients. We do this by not limiting our focus
on the vehicles we sell and service, but by showing care for each
customer on a personal level. In a word, we provide tailored advice
and services. Through close communication with our clients, we
can also obtain honest opinions from loyal customers so that we
can keep improving ourselves.

Handling Complaints

Customer feedback is essential for us to continuously improve our
services. The Group implements an effective complaint handling
mechanism to improve our customers’ satisfaction. We follow our
integrated complaint handling procedures and carefully handle
complaints we received through channels including email and
telephone to ease our customers’ concerns.

After receiving a complaint, the customer service team will log and
pass the case to the after-sales manager, who will assess and
discuss with relevant departments to formulate a solution. We aim
at completing this process and providing timely initial feedback
to clients within 3 hours of receiving the complaints. Each valid
complaint will be assigned and handled by a designated service
agent, who will liaise with the clients until the complaint is resolved.
We also regularly report to the suppliers to keep them informed of
the details of the customer complaints.

FRIRBE RN AREBBEETRNETE
EPMBE -Hit RAUBHTHETE, Y
AEBER 2B - RIIE RHETEIRAR
RIEEGEP 3t HPIERATARB THIE
FHLEREUNEEEPEANRBER
ZHE °

BHTEERMOLERT - SKSH ER
RBERCDTREREXBAFIEE -HR
HAEERERBLBERAZLELEEE
LR AN R HR

HEBEFPRVYEESBHRMELEEN
BHEFEPER - /UL BHATEREERME
EMRENTEARE  MERBEAEERELE
—UEF RHEBLERNRE - BBEEP
ETEE BAMGARIERRTESENE
BZBR EMBEIFEE LRS-

BRFEE

BEPZREDBRMATHAERB < ER- BT
RABRPZREE AEEEHRBERZRFE
RS HFTBRBARSIRFERIEEFRERE
BRAEHNEFEREERB KT UBEE
F RS

RIZERRE TP IREEB KL ERLE
RERRGEIERIE  ERRGEERSHETT
ATy I 22 4 A BB P & & Il TE AR R 07 2R © AP
Z B R RNEE IR FRIME/NEFA KA EIE
FRERAZEPRHEVZEE -8 FKILH
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Upon closure of the complaint, a customer satisfaction survey will
be sent to complainants to obtain their opinions on the complaint
handling. With the aid of customer complaint record, management
will identify and review the case so as to improve our quality in
customer service.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive product or
service related complaint.

Intellectual Property, Customer Privacy and Data Security

The Group highly respects the confidentiality of our customers’
privacy and intellectual property. To maintain a trustful relationship
with our customers, we take our customers’ privacy confidentiality
seriously. We strictly comply the relevant law and regulations
including Law of the PRC on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests.

The access and use of clients’ intellectual properties, such as
trademarks, product designs and other technical specifications,
are governed by the terms and conditions set out in the dealership
agreement with the suppliers. Furthermore, we request our
customers to acknowledge the appropriate use of personal data
by signing the Customer Personal Information Privacy Statement,
while giving them the full rights to reject any unwanted uses.

We establish several measures to protect our customer’s
confidentiality and data.

We keep most of our information as encrypted electronic copies,
with access rights limited by a comprehensive authorisation matrix.
As illustrated in the staff handbook, all employees are required to
sign a non-disclosure agreement, and are prohibited from transfer
of customers’ and employees’ privacy materials, trade secrets and
intellectual property to any third party.

The Group will take immediate disciplinary actions if any violation is
discovered. Similarly, employees who discover and report serious
breach of data security policy will be rewarded accordingly. Each
department will conduct customer data privacy risk review every
month.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to the privacy matters and

confidentiality.

Supply Chain Management

A long-term, stable and reliable relationship with the suppliers is
a key to sustainable development in our business. Considering
our service-oriented business nature, we place great emphasis on
assessing suppliers based on their service delivery, product quality,
after-sale services, financial conditions and appraisal from partners
in the industry. Nevertheless, as we have committed ourselves
beyond simply providing good services, we also require all our
suppliers to adhere to our following Supplier Environmental and
Social Code of Conduct:

1. Suppliers must fully comply with national and local legal or
regulatory requirements;

2. Supplied products must meet the relevant national standards;

3.  Suppliers must adhere to the principle of free and fair trade;

RBERAR AEESEBERBBELEFEER
REMEZ BEERER -

HEREER

HEENREA BERAUSEERDERMES
ARFERR AR - ZRIRMAREAEEAZ
EBME BMEFEREHER 2%
REERERIMERE EnEx EERE:
R R ERBHTE AT - BRI
EIEIETRREEBERE - KM IFERR
BEHERETRMATHERRERE ST
#SFAl:

1. HERCEEEESTBER MM ITARE
MME
2. HEBZEMUANGHBEREE

3. HERLARTAEBRAFEZRA:

4. Suppliers must guarantee the labour rights of their employees, 4. HEENVERERERELTIHEN BB
including but not limited to abolishment of child and forced TRABAGET kogml% T :
labour;

5. Suppliers must not insult, abuse and intimidate their 5. HEFTEEEF EFERHEER &
employees; and

6. Suppliers must not discriminate employees based on the 6. HEFMTEERER Fit Ml =&
ground of ethnicity, age, sex, religious belief and any other B0 R AE ] B fh 38 | R 4R B B
reasons.
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Furthermore, we also pay attention to environmental risk in  th4h HMAERFEBEEO ZRBRER  WE
our procurement practice, which is governed by the following BRI\ TRBREESIERE FIAEE:
Environmental Procurement Management Policy:

Environmental Procurement Management Policy

BERBEERE

° Any equipment that may pose environmental impacts and associated with the manufacturing process
should be validated with reference to their environmental performance, for example, energy efficiency
and biodiversity.

ERATEF ERFHAHEERERABZ REBEEREFAHLRBER IR EREM S KL -

° Relevant documentation will be requested from the suppliers and assessed with their fulfilment of our
environmental standards during the procurement process.

ERBARTHERHEEBEREEXG  LHGRFEINRMARBEENZBER -

° Environmental commitment from the suppliers should be clearly stipulated in the cooperation contract.

EEEHARBRETARERIEL ZREAR -

o Products listed in the “Catalog of Toxic Chemicals Strictly Restricted in China” are prohibited.

BEEB (PEERRFINEFTLEMAL) NI ZER-

o Higher preference will be given to products with international certifications such as ISO 14001 and ISO
50001 or green labels in the procurement process.

\_ TEEBIE R B E EE SISO 14001 %I1SO 50001k G BB B LR RBZESR - -

To create fair and open competition for the suppliers, we obtain  AalE AT AR ZmEIRE FHIER KR
proposals from at least three prospective suppliers by considering Z Vb =Z B HEPZNEZEZ ZEEFE
their prices and product quality such as whether quality ZEW&F DEZ R ETRELREEE
management certificates are attained. For the luxury automobile RFE-FHB=AEZZHLHEMs  RFASUEH
components, we procure from official or authorized brands to jz%%u%ﬁ@.ﬂi? BURERMERERE Z &
guarantee the quality, safety and compatibility of our products and CBEERFEAM-

services.
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The Group also assesses the quality of all the purchased goods
before accepting them into the inventory. For defective items, we
will return to the suppliers. In addition, the Group fully understands
the importance of business integrity to a long-term and trustful
relationship with suppliers. As written in the staff handbook,
receiving any form of benefits or gifts from our suppliers in
exchange for confidential business information is strictly prohibited.

During the Reporting Period, we have worked with 8 suppliers,
including 5 from China, 2 from the United Kingdom and 1 from
[taly.

BUSINESS INTEGRITY

Integrity and honesty are crucial to the Group in order to maintain
a trustful and cooperative relationship with our employees and
stakeholders. We strictly comply with the relevant rules and
regulations, including the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
and the Anti-monopoly Law of the PRC. Any form of bribery, fraud,
and money laundering are unacceptable to the Group.

We have established a departmental leadership accountability
system. Department heads are responsible for monitoring the
business conduct of their subordinates, especially those who have
frequent communications and contact with external parties and
clients.

We have high ethical expectations of our staff, which is stated in
our Prevention of Bribery, Extortion, Frauds and Money-laundering
Policy. Employees are forbidden to exploit their position to exact
any benefits, which include money, gifts, luxurious entertainment
and hospitality. We also strictly banned any unethical and
unprofessional means to secure business opportunities. Violations
of this policy will result in disciplinary actions, including an official

warning and termination of employment.
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In contrast, we recognize and reward those who are honest,
faithful to their duties and remain steadfast in defending their
integrity and the Group’s reputation. We have set up a whistle-
blowing mechanism for our employees to report any suspicion of
ethical misconduct. This system covers misfeasance, accepting
unauthorized rebates, misappropriating company assets, abuse of
authority, leaking the Group’s commercial secrets and intellectual
properties, and any other violation of relevant laws and regulations.
Complaints can be filed through emails, hotline or in-person. If
any business misconduct is identified and confirmed, the Group
will investigate and take action promptly. The Group maintains
confidentiality of the reports, and protects the reporting employees
from any harassment, revenge and other discrimination.

In December 2021, we organized an anti-corruption training for 22
employees in our Beijing repair workshop in the PRC. We reiterated
our anti-corruption policies and regulations, and how to observe
these rules in the everyday operations in various stages of our
business activities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not in breach of
relevant laws and there was no legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group and its employees.

MR- HMEELEBAE ROBTRIBEN
MERERASERECEE - RMADKRLE

HBHE - REEERETAERBETETR-
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ERER AR EEELIRF - HERL
REEMBETRRE AKRERLAASTR
REITE) - ARBEERBERT - UWIRER R
BERXRE RERHMEKSR -

RZFB-—F+=-A RASTEILREEST
B2ERELHIRESEI - RMERRES
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CARE FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that it is critical to create a pleasant work
environment for the employees with the spirits of our Group:
“Integrity, Trustworthy, Innovative and Excellent”. We treasure
our employees most as their contribution is the key to business
development and success. Therefore, the Group advocates
for providing a fair and non-discriminative environment for the
employees to explore their potential and growth with the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group employed 161 employees,
all of which were full-time employees based in China. The overall
turnover rate of employees is 18%.

Gender Profile Age Profile
£ B BER FHBR
6% ——
24%
76%
Male Female Below 30 30 to 50
B omy B oy B 305~ @ 30%505%
Over 50
505 BA

HERES

AEERERRERIAETHEREDREN
SEHE TE 8% 28] Bz
BEZERUIEHER LK 26 - Bk
PEmMZmE  Bit ~AEBEREREER
REAFIHBERZIRE ERFERWER &
AEE—RKE-

RBERARN AEERERMBIIZEE 2B
RABEz2RES EBRERERKE/18% -

Position Profile
B R
4%

6%
90% ——

14%

80%

Senior Management
B omEnE

Middle Management/Supervisor
B ohgERE e

General Staff
—RET
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Total Workforce 2022
ABHEE —E=-=
Number of Employees (as at 31 March 2022) 161
BEAH(BE-Z-_—5=ZHA=+-—8)
Gender Male 105
51 S
Female 56
gegid
Employment type Senior Management 9
XEER BREERE
Middle Management/Supervisor 23
hREBE/XE
General Staff 129
—MRET
Age 18 - 30 24
F e 18ZE305%
30 - 50 125
30&505%
> 50 12
508% A
Employee Turnover 29 (18.0%)
EERK=E
Gender Male 22 (21.0%)
% 51 St
Female 7 (12.5%)
i
Age 18 - 29 10 (41.7%)
F#e 18ZE 2975
30 - 50 17 (13.6%)
30ZE505%
> 50 2 (16.7%)
505% A E
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Employment Practices

The Group respects every employee. We are committed to adhering
to the principles of openness, justice and fairness in our human
resources (“HR”) management, and advocating meritocracy. We
expect our employees to fulfil their obligations with honesty and the
highest standard of professionalism, and contribute their talents to
the development of the Group.

Compensation

The Group strives to offer competitive recruitment packages
to its employees. From time to time, we will set and review our
salary level based on the operations conditions of the Group and
the market rate. Within the designated range for each position,
salary will be determined by attitude, professional skills and
achievements. Our salary level complies with China’s Labor Law,
the Labor Contract Law, and the Regulation of Beijing Municipality
on Payment of Wages in the PRC.

Work and rest period

Our standard work hours are limited to 8 hours a day and 40 hours
a week. We encourage our staff to finish work in a normal working
period instead of working overtime. Managers or supervisors are
forbidden to require unnecessary overtime work from employees or
without consideration of the circumstances of the employees. Upon
approval, employees who accept the necessary overtime work, and
will be compensated according to our Overtime Work Management
Procedure.

Apart from statutory holidays, annual leaves and sick leaves, the
Group’s employees are also entitled to personal leaves, marriage
leaves, bereavement leaves, paternity and maternity leaves and
overtime compensation leaves.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7
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Promotion

A clear hierarchy is established to provide a transparent career
pathway of potential advancement in job position and salary in
the Group. Opportunity for career advancement are offered to any
employee who demonstrated excellent performance. In making
promotion decisions, we consider the following criteria:

° work performance;

° development potential;
° team spirit; and

° personal character.

Whenever vacancies are available, we will initiate the internal
recruitment procedure for prospective employees to apply and
fill the post. We also invite departmental recommendations and
evaluations.

Dismissal

We try our best to help our staff to fulfil their roles and
responsibilities. If an employee is unable to perform according to
our expectations, we will provide additional training, or transfer
the employee to another position. However, if no improvement is
observed after all reasonable assistance and accommodation are
made, we will initiate the dismissal procedure according to the
relevant labor law of the PRC.

100
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Labor Standard

The Group fully respects human and labor rights, and strictly
abides by the law and regulations such as the Labor Law of the
PRC and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor of the
PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
harassment and discrimination, or any non-compliance of relevant
laws and regulations relating to preventing child and forced labor.

In the recruitment process, the HR department will check the
identification documents of all candidates to ensure they are at
least 16 years old, although we prefer candidates of at least 18
years old in general.

Our recruitment policy also stipulates that any employment must
be established based on mutual consensus, and employment
contract must not be formed under coercion. Employment will be
immediately terminated if we discovered the information provided
by the employee is inaccurate, or that the contract is not formed on
a voluntarily basis.

Equal and Inclusive Workplace

The Group values fairness and equal opportunity in the working
environment. We ensure that every one is treated fairly and that
choices for recruitment and promotion are made solely on the
basis of their experience, qualifications, potentials, and skills
in employment. Furthermore, the Group advocates a caring
and courteous culture in the workplaces, and does not tolerate
discrimination based on age, gender, ethnicity, or any other form
of harassment. Our employees are encouraged to compete in
a constructive way in order to foster professional and personal
growth.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no non-compliance
with rules and regulations relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
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Training and Talent Development

The success of our business is closely related to the development
of our employees. The Group encourages employee training to
continuously improve the professional skills and strengthen their
efficiency and abilities. As we have a high standard in service

BIRATBRRE

BRzAEKRYRREEEREBHEHE AEE
s BB B iR T ATEN R T E S ARE - MR 1R
HEZHEREN - ERRABRREZRBEE
= WEMRNEERE RS EFEEIE

quality, we invest time and resources in establishing an annual 2| AEEBRETREN - 2 AR - 30

training programme with various trainings provided for our
employees, including orientation training, departmental training and

P IR ARG R B 2 SR U R B
BHELALZER-

external training and supports with learning subsidies to meet the

market demand for professionals.

Orientation training
AREI

New employees on probation will receive orientation
training. Assisted by the HR department, each
functional department will organize relevant
foundational knowledge training.
ERRPAZHTABEESEIAREI -EANE
IRERPI A B T - 4 fE BBk B2 B P % AR A4 4B B A AR A B

Al e

The orientation training covers an overview of the
history, current operations and growth targets of the
Group.

ABBIREAEEELME RESEEMERAR-

Through this training, we also communicate the
expectations regarding the role and responsibilities
of each employee included the rules and conduct
codes of the Group.

FEEI BRATSEEHENAEERAN LT ATE
N BREEZACKEENHE-

On-job training

E R

Each department will regularly prepare and review

training materials and organize appropriate training
programs, which include the followings:
ZEEBPIAGEHRENREEEINME UREBEE
BRI BEUATRE:

° technical skills for repairs and maintenance
BERRE 2 BN
° operational skills and case study
BERT RERMR
° workplace safety
ITHESMEZE
° anti-corruption
R&5

Furthermore, because of the relationship between
the Group and the officially licensed partners of
several renowned automobile brands, employees
have plenty of opportunity to take part in training
sessions provided by our suppliers.

N ERAEERZBAMNRREREZE A RFTE
HHEER EEATZHE2EHEBRMRME -
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Our vehicle maintenance services examine not only the usability
of the vehicles, but, most importantly, their safety. Poorly
maintained vehicles pose significant safety hazard to the drivers,
passengers, other road users and the public. Therefore, we require
our technicians to have a thorough understanding of different
systems and parts of the vehicles. We do so by arranging various
examinations at different level of difficulties to test our technical
staff on their professional knowledge.

BRZABRERBIEFRAEAANL &
EERAARELE - NERETERERE
BRE RXE HEMERERERAR LR
it RABREMEBE T B ARTERLR
Kb RETRAME 2 EH  AEKMAR
ZBRAE

During the Reporting Period, we specialized technical training to
our technicians to enhance their work efficiency and professional
maintenance skills for new vehicle models and parts. Details
of non-technical training, such as anti-corruption trainings and
occupational safety and set out on pages 96 and 108 of the
Report. Overall, over 65% of employees received a total of 5,250
hours training, with an average training hour of 32.61 for each
employee.

RE|EHA - RAIAENM B FRRME - A
= R E 2 TERCE M3 A= RS M a2
BEXREEN - RESEIEBERZE2FER
Ml 2 715 MR R EFON108E - i
5 HiB65%IR B &% X & $£5,2501@ /)Ny 15
il FREE 2 FHEIIRER32.61 -
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Average
Employees training
trained hours
FTIEEAE FHEIGE
Total 105 (65.2%) 32.61
et
By Gender Male 83 (79.1%) 39.52
= Ry
Female 22 (39.3%) 19.64
pegid
By Position Senior Management 3 (33.3%) 16.67
R AL SRERE
Middle Management/Supervisor 17 (73.9%) 36.96
hREBE/XE
General Staff 85 (65.9%) 32.95
—fRET
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

To create a long-term sustainable business, the health and safety
of our employees are vital to the Group. As the work procedures
involving close contact with various chemicals and gaseous
substances, or operations of heavy machinery, it is important that
we have a sound management mechanism for occupational safety
and health (“OSH”) in place.

Our OSH management system are developed based on the relevant
laws and regulations including the Work Safety Law of PRC,
the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, Emergency Response Law of the PRC and the Law on
Safety of Special Equipment of the PRC. Under this system, the
general managers of the Group’s subsidiaries are in charge of
implementing various OSH policies and procedures, which are set
out on pages 106 to 109 of the Report.

During the Reporting Period, no work-related injury and loss of
work day were recorded. There had been no work-related fatalities
for the past 3 years. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to adhere to our commitment of providing a safe and healthy

environment to our employees.

BrEERZ2

REXBIREFEZR A5EERESR
FHEZ2 AEZIEBTR(C2DRREY
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EE) (PRBERBAE) (PERESE
HREEHE) R (PEFERELZEE) SHE
EEREH -EWRFIET  AEEMB AR 24
KREBEERESERLTRICERRER  SHN
WEE106E 1098 °

RBERA BEEFSENTERRATEESX
ZIERE RBE=ZFNEEMEITH
REMFK  AEEGEBERTRASRERM
2 MIEFIRE A

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7 1 05

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3



RIBE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Safety Risk Identification and Prevention B REHZZER

The Group continues to carry out safety precautionary measures ZAEBE—EHREBERREHLEHBIER &
for possible risks including high-risk operational activities, fire, SRR ZER TS AZ BRLER
chemicals spillage, electricity shock and mechanical failure to BRERAE  F2RMEBINEER ZTFE
minimize the adverse effect when accidents happened. The £ -ZiETEREfeLKEMEEHBEHINDT
possible major risks and their relative measures are listed below:

Fire

&

e Regularly inspect firefighting equipment o EHARRIRT MR

e Establish emergency plans and escaping routes o HIFTE ST RBERK G
e Conduct fire drill training regularly o EHIETTIHEDEEB IR

e Strict regulations in handling flammable operational equipment o EIRHESMBRIERBERYWEERE
and substances

Chemical Spillage
BiRIEE R

° Regular training on safety drill o THZEEZIIR

*  Strictly comply with the safety guide on harmful chemical e BRETHELBERERLEIES
spillage

* Regular inspection in the handling of production, transportation « $ERELE EBEEE(CEMEETT
and disposal of chemical substances E B E

+ All employees must be qualified and trained before handling the « FrEE SN EIE (L2 351X 78 B #H1E
chemicals MBS REXE

Operational Risk

a0
i
75 =

o
[ui}
T
[oH
Il
ic
i

BRERR

e Provision of high quality personal protective equipment for e HBEBRHEZBAARERE
employees

* Employees must be trained before handling operational e EERERBERMAIVEEZEI
machineries

e Attach safety instructions and procedures in conspicuous zones ¢ RERBEREZE2HERNEER
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In accordance with Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases and Provisions on the
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health at Work
Sites of the PRC, the Group provides regular annual health checks
for employees. We have renewed the annual service contracts
with local medical centers to conduct occupational health medical
tests for our employees. Employees will take the tests once at
the beginning and the end of employment, and regularly during
employment.

Production Safety

The Group implements production safety accountability system in
the workshops. To encourage the management of the workshops
to constantly improve their OSH performance, we have established
a clear OSH performance review and the accompanying reward and
punishment mechanism.

OSH management policies and guidelines

The Group has developed a set of working guidelines to establish
standards for the management and implementation of OSH best
practices during operations for our employees at all levels. They
include but not limited to the following areas:

° seasonal fire safety precautions (summer and winter)

o handling hazardous chemical and waste

° property storage and handling of electric tools

° inventory storage safety regulations

° spraying booth usage and maintenance

° instructions for using personal protective equipment
Sufficient preventive measures are provided to our employees
and they are required to wear protective gear properly to prevent
occupational diseases. Moreover, occupational safety procedures

and warning signs are attached in high risk locations according to
risk assessment results.
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OSH Trainings

The Group believes that production and safety are inseparable,
hence ‘Production safety education is necessary wherever
production takes place’.

New management staff and production safety management
personnel of each production unit must complete no less than 32
hours of initial safety training before they are allowed to formally
assuming their post. They are also required to complete annual
training of at least 12 hours.

Training needs assessments and training plans are prepared
annually for employees to get familiar with our production safety
policies and operation guides. In 2022, we delivered trainings
on legal compliance, safety operations skills and techniques in
different production processes, fire safety, company rules and
regulations, specialized operations safety and usage of personal
protective equipment. It is delivered in various format, including
lectures, on-site demonstrations, and educational documentaries.

We also conducted the bi-annual emergency drills on fire and
chemical spillage incidents in June and December 2021.
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Work-life Balance

=S

The Group advocates work-life balance and cares about its
workers’ mental health. Building close relationships among
employees are critical to fostering a harmonious atmosphere and
a sense of belonging to the Group. During the Reporting Period,
we held a recreational hotpot gathering for our staff in Beijing, the
PRC.

AEEREFEEFE BLIARSER &
BZRBIZNEE HEEMBRAREA
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COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

We acknowledge the social benefits in investing in the community
in which we operate. We seek opportunities to promote love
and care culture in our society by echoing with our corporate
culture. During the Reporting Period, we focus on cleaning the
environment. We gathered our staff in Beijing to clean up the
vicinity of our workshop.

HESH
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BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE ENVIRONMENT

Climate change is accelerating at an alarming rate, causing us to
be more concerned than ever about environmental stewardship.
The Group thinks that it is vital to take responsibility and mitigate
the potential negative impact of our actions on the environment for
the business, the community and the future generations.

In order to systematically control the environmental impacts
throughout our operation, we have established an ISO 14001:2015
The EMS
helps to identify, manage and mitigate the environmental risks

certified Environmental Management System (“EMS”).

associated with our operational processes as well as to provide a
framework for setting out specific and measurable environmental
objectives for improving our environmental performance, so that the
resources required can be allocated accordingly.

As a vendor of the several world-renowned automobile brands,
our subsidiaries are required to operate in accordance with the
environmental standards adopted by the manufacturers. Under
our EMS, the management of each subsidiary is responsible to
implement and monitor the operations to ensure compliance
with suppliers’ standards and national standards. These include
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, the Water Law
of the PRC and the Law on Prevention of Environmental Pollution
Caused by Solid Waste of the PRC etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no significant
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of waste and use of resources.
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Raising Environmental Awareness

We regularly provide our employees with training sessions on
environmental topics to raise their environmental awareness.
During the Reporting Period, we arranged a training session on
EMS basics to 23 employees at the service center in Beijing, the
PRC. The training focused on EMS establishment and its elements
including environmental objectives and environmental impact
factors that may occur at workplace and mitigation measures.

BRRERE

BMEHREBRMENESREZB ZEIR
AR E ZIRIEEH - N IEHA - &M
BRI RRB L A23% E B L HEIRIE
EERBRERANBIEI  JIEHRIREER
BEAZEURETE BIEREEZEUKRARE
EIEGMERCRBETEAZURERE
i

We also held environmental activities. We focused on educating
the public about the importance of protecting our environment. We
participated in the 2021 World Environment Day in June 2021, and
set up information boards outside our factory to introduce various
ways in which we can help protecting the environment in our daily
life.

BEAN  BRPIINR IR IR RS ELHBE ARR
EREZEZH RN —F A2
2021 FHRIRIEBER EHMEIINZEEMFEN
HEBREEHENIRERECSEL X
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Waste Management

The Group recognises the potential environmental impacts induced
by irresponsible and improper waste disposal. All of the waste
is segregated into hazardous and general waste and go through
separate disposal procedures accordingly.

Hazardous waste

We proactively promote cleaner production to minimise the
generation of hazardous waste, though some hazardous waste
such as waste oil, lead acid batteries and waste filters are
inevitably generated because of our business nature. To mitigate
the environmental impacts, we have set up a Hazardous Waste
Management System to regulate the disposal and management
of hazardous waste, and other measures to reduce hazardous
waste at source. The details of waste volume, storage, transfer and
treatment are monitored by the management of each subsidiary.

Under the waste management system, generated waste will be
recorded, categorised, sealed and stored in a designated area
for hazardous waste. Warning signs and labels are displayed in
hazardous waste storage areas. Chemical and flammable waste
streams are kept away from each other.

We encourage our employees to reduce the generation of
hazardous waste through minimising the use of battery, marker pen
and fluorescent light tube whenever possible. Instead of discarding
disposable gloves that are contaminated by waste oil directly, the
gloves are collected for cleaning and reuse. lllegal dumping of
hazardous waste is strictly forbidden. We renew service contracts
with licensed waste collectors, who handle these wastes properly.
In the event of leakage, we will immediately notify the affected
parties and residents nearby, as well as report to the management
and other government agencies such as local environmental
protection bureau in the PRC.
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To ensure our employees are familiar with our hazardous waste
management policy, we have conducted training on hazardous
waste management training, which covered our hazardous waste
management system, requirement, handling procedures, as well
as emergency plan concerning hazardous waste leakage or
contamination incidents.

General waste

Our solid waste management policy regulates the handling and
disposal of general waste and ensures the compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations. The general waste
must be segregated into recyclables and non-recyclables and put
into designated bins for our employees to conveniently sort their
domestic waste. Recyclables such as paper, plastic, glass bottles
and metal cans are handled by recycling service providers, while
non-recyclable waste are collected by qualified contractors.

REREMAZEEATEERRZYERREK
BPEETHERASEENEEEI  BER
EEEVMEENE BT RERFALER
BEEBRYRRISRAEN I EZTE-

—RERY

BHZERERYEERRRE —REEY
ZFE@&FEEF&E HERTEERREEAER
ER o —RREEZEY WA DT RR B K A [E
WrEZEY)  WIRAREWSEEARN  TEREH

EERBEEYOBR KR BB HERALEE
17 5 7] [0 W g 3 M A e [ MK AR 745 1t FE P B 3
mAAEREEDAHAERABEKSE -

Solid Waste Generation EREEVEL
Type Unit 2022 2021 2020
BHH By e —B=-—F —ZE_FF
Hazardous Waste tonne 26.66 23.211 87.16
BEEREY 8
Intensity? tonne per million RMB sales 0.008 0.01 0.04
7 g2 BARK BB TIHE M
Non-hazardous Waste® tonne 0.10 0.24 0.88
EEREEYS 7]
Intensity tonne per million RMB sales 0.00003 0.00008" 0.0004
7R BARKBE THERM
U The figures for 2021 are restated due to calculation adjustment.
R FHFRAAETEARABRMED -
2 To improve data presentation, the intensity unit is changed to per million RMB sales. Data for previous years are restated.
REEBE2I T REBUCERRBARBEETHER EFBEBECEKEY -
= Non-hazardous waste includes discarded waste paper and domestic waste.
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Improving Water Efficiency HERAKM &

BB EREKERZ&ERAZRBKIRER
DK 2B (REKE) REAERE B
Water Law and other regulations, we have established water B ABETHBRARIGIFHKAZEIRIERF 1T
efficiency management procedures for our subsidiaries. The H#FIE & ERNEBMIENK  WHIFT TIEHZ
REZ BARMIEBRKSE-

We believe that the most effective way to conserve water is by
reducing water consumption at source. With reference to China’s

administrative departments are responsible for monitoring the water
consumption of the Group, and develop working plans and targets
on enhancing our water efficiency in our operations.

B2 RKRBO RETRKETISKER
K e AP S B B B BREUA T Bk HE B

Our water consumption consists mostly of domestic use and car-
washing in the workshops. We encourage our employees to adopt
the following measures to save water.

Reuse Monitor

EA

Reduce
L

o 2R

Install water-saving
showerheads and water taps
77 3% B 7K i BE N K BE SR

Install dual flush toilets
ZRED N KIH

Do laundry only when the load is
full
mE A TR

Collect greywater from car
washing and reuse after
sedimentation and filtering
treatment

W SR )F K - B TIR K 8 8 B
BEEH

Collect unheated shower water
for toilet flushing or irrigation

L 82 2R AN EA MR A 7K 4 S BT Sk 2 OBR
A

Install and check for water
meters regularly

R E HimE ki

Check for leakage in pipes and
water tap
BREKERIKERZBRER
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We also make great effort in ensuring that our sewage discharge
does not pose significant environmental impacts to the
environment. We only use environmentally-friendly detergent, and
treat sewage in the septic tank before discharging. To conserve
water resources and reduce sewage discharge, we recycle and
reuse the effluent from the car washing process in the service
centre and encourage our employees to avoid wasting running
water when not needed. We carry out testing against the water
quality of our sewage regularly to ensure compliance with the
discharge requirements.

During the Reporting Period, our water consumption increased with
the gradual increase in business activities. The water consumption
is summarised as follow:

BPITRE DRI Z KT & Y AER
BB EREVE - RMREARRER
Bl - W EERATRIBEEBERIEIS K BB
IKERIF A FKBE I - o API B U 75 R AR 7
DREBIZZ K TEBESRRTBER
HFK - RAEBABSAOKE - R A Y
IR %

MR HAR - 5 FIRE K BB TR B N b
T BT

Water Consumption Unit 2022 2021 2020
FEXE By —g== s —EB-EF
Total m? 5,867 3,944 2,533
#Et K

Intensity m? per million RMB sales 1.74 1.27 1.09
®E BARBEETHER T AK

Effluent m? 5,501 - -
57K 07K

Intensity m?® per million RMB sales 1.63 - -
=g BARBBEETHER T A K

Responsible Use of Resources EERMFERER

Apart from being a cost control measure, promoting responsible
consumption of resources reduces our overall carbon footprint
and enhances the sustainability of our business. By encouraging
behavioural changes and proactive actions, the Group believes
we can make significantly positive changes over time. Therefore,
we encourage our employees to use the office supplies wisely and
responsibly in order to cultivate a sustainable working habit.
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Most of our material consumptions come from office use like
paper, stationery or other office supplies. For paper use, we have
established resource saving policy which instruct our employees
to switch to electronic channels both for internal and external
communications. When printing is necessary, they must check and
adjust the document as carefully as possible to avoid misprinting.
Scrap and used paper is collected for further use.

We also phased out disposable items such as cups and
conventional pens. Similarly, glue is replaced with clips to reduce
plastic waste from glue containers. Employees should bring their
own cup and refill water at our office. To encourage employees
to adopt a more sustainable working habit, the Group awards the
employees who make constructive suggestions or improvement in
saving resources. On the other hand, repeated failure in observing
the policy will receive verbal warning and even be fined.

BMABLEARAEEFEAEER XASH
tHAERAM - AERATE BMEFFIEHHNE
TRECK - B REBMAE FREETAINLRE
MoMMBLBIEXH  NEAKRSHFHARER
B @R RS BEAR R BB AAR
gEBERITER-

BFAMELSBARER - flInAN RERE
H o B #RH - ASRFEUR BIK B D Bk &
RZBRBERY BRERTHEACHKE B
WREEIKe ﬁfiﬁbﬁéﬁmﬁﬁTﬁﬁ%ﬁE%Z
BE AEERPEHNER T mREHAZ

2% EJZﬁFﬁEﬁUEZE,E&ﬁ—EE’—E
ERBREWBINBESEEGHE N -

Resources Unit 2022 2021 2020
ER B —ZE__F —E_—F —Z2-2F
Paper tonne 2.01 15.07 55.28
AR o [
Intensity tonne per million RMB sales 0.001 0.005 0.02
®nE BARKBSTHEREM
Refrigerant kg 20.00 - 40.00
LA NI
Intensity kg per million RMB sales 0.01 = 0.02
®E BARBBETHERLT
Packaging Material® kg 24.00 = =
BEM S NI
Intensity kg per million RMB sales 0.01 = =
R BARBBETHERLT
J Packaging material consists of cartoon boxes.

BEMEEIERA -
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Emission Management

Air Emissions

We continue to monitor our emissions carefully. In March 2022,
we engaged an independent testing laboratory to conduct a
series of environmental emission tests against national standards.
We identified the air emissions from our operations consisting
mainly of volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”), benzene,
toluene, dimethylbenzene, non-methane hydrocarbon and carbon
monoxide. These are produced through the process of paint
spraying, grinding and polishing of the vehicles. We have been
sparing no efforts in minimising such emissions by setting up green
workplace guidelines and with the aid of the latest technology,
including industrial-grade air purification device at our paint
spraying compartment. The device is equipped with multi-layer
filters. With the aid of the device, the VOCs and dust generated
could be filtered out and decomposed through the process of ultra-
violet photocatalytic oxidation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has improved our data
collection system to retrieve the emission figures for Nitrogen

BmER

R BB

BRPEETNERFRBERL - R_T - —F=
A RAZREB A CRATERERIFEE
T ERREHARR - HPDBERG L E
MERFREIZREREAERLEAY X B
A -ZHX - FEREBRISCED R ALK
EHREAEER TERETF - RMAE
RBET E AN ERR S - BRI AR TIERIRES!
WERRHX  BREERELRTEAE
FRHERE ZREEEZERE FIER
PIELXZBREAREAMRME  WEBR
SMR I B BACRE Fr fE ELfR R -

RBEMA - AEECSCEREBBREE RS
URBEAERERBMEENARLY

oxides (“NOXx”), Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and Particulate matter ([NOx|) Fi&1L% ([SOx |) K B F F F

(“PM”) generated by vehicle fuel combustion as follows: (TPM ) BBEEFIAT -

Air Emissions® Unit 2022

B SR B B° By —B==

NOx kg 1867
AR

SOx kg 0.28
AR

PM kg 1.08
AF

@ The emissions were generated by the use of petrol for company vehicles.

PERR B 2 RIS WD B A o
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To promote responsible use of company vehicles thereby
controlling the emission, the Group implements vehicle
management policy with working guideline to regulate the use
of company vehicles by our employees. First and foremost, we
encourage public or greener transportation options as far as
practicable. The administrative departments keep records of vehicle
use and fuelling. Those who travel to the same destination will
be asked to travel together and the route is optimised to reduce
mileage. Abuse of vehicles for private use or unauthorised trips are
strictly forbidden and will be punished with a fine. Fuelling records
will be checked to detect any irregularities in consumption.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Electricity accounts for the majority of our energy consumption
and GHG emission. To reduce electricity consumption, our policy
requires employees to turn off idling machines and electrical
appliances, and maximise the use of sunlight during day time.
Each work station is equipped with an individual LED desk lamp for
employees when there are few people in the office. The standard
air conditioner’s temperature should be kept at 25T or above.
When the air-conditioners are on, all windows and doors must be
closed.

REBRAETHER QA EEH (W= 5
HE AEECHEEMEERR BELE
Eal HETREERAREMETRE &
o BB REEERATIER TR REE
AARZBRBRRRZ BT E - BIEALFT
FCERE I RIB L R E - AI{ER — B 693t
Z BB MARTT LITRRERRIAMERE
HOBEREWMELARRIARERETRER
Z2 5 GBI - Fom AL 8K R AR ERMR
ASERBBER-

BERBEHR

BENERFMERRENRERBHNENT
2EN mEAERAE RAKRECEERERE
HER YNAREEER A -BETE
AEEEZLEDIRE  AMEEERIHAE AR
TERER - REEHREERENBER25E
HIA L =FREER FABMELARL-
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Durin

carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO2ze”), over 92% of which was from

WEEARN - FAPEE1,062.601E — GRS
CEHRBIBR%KEFEAEBANE

g the Reporting Period, we generated 1,062.60 tonnes of

(>

the use of purchased electricity.

Unit 2022 2021 2020
By —E=-= —EB=-—fF —E-EfF
GHG Emissions
BERBHEKE
Scope 17 tCO2e 68.29 49.24 116.56
#E17 W _fiREE
Scope 28 tCO2¢e 981.81 1,065.23 943.56
& [E28 WE— S| LiRE 8
Scope 3° tCO2e 12.49 - -
& [E3° MR LixES
Total tCO2e 1,062.60 1,114.47 1,060.11
#Et WE— S| LiRE 8
Intensity tCO2e per million RMB sales 0.32 0.36 0.46
®E BARBEETHER

120

WA L EE

Scope 1 emission covers the emission from the mobile sources combustion and refrigerant consumption. The calculation
of mobile fuel combustion is referred to the published emission factors from 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories and the guidance worksheets of World Resources Institute’s GHG Protocol Tool for Mobile Combustion.
Calculation of refrigerant is referred to the emission factors from 2014 IPCC Fifth Assessment Report (AR5).
HEHHERERDRERZFRERRLHFEE - RBRBMEETHL2R (2006F IPCCEHFAERIBIFERRM) It
B R AR E R BRERCERDRRERE T A B TERPEBR 2N EEGTE LA 2R —NF
IPCCE # X 7T i &5 (ARS) Z BEUR Bt & -

Scope 2 emission is from the purchased electricity from the power company. The calculation is based on the emission
factors from 2019 China Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors, published by Climate Change Info-Net.
HEHNEXRBRENRRBEZEN W IHRBRABRELELBERZ TN FPERGEBEERMEA FHRE
YEtE -

We begin to disclosure data for Scope 3 emission data generated from business air travel and paper disposal in 2022.
Emission data relating to paper disposal at landfill is calculated with reference to the emission factor published in Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of the How to prepare an ESG Report guidebook (March 2022) by HKEXx;
emissions from business air travel is calculated according to the 2021 UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

BMR_ZE_FHRERLRBEIINBREEREAEE 2 BESHFREF - N T EEBARE @2 BENEUR T 2 Rk
R KIAEHIRE g RERBE) (ZEZZF=ZAR) M= - REMBEIISZRERIES]) MM 2 HHURE &
BT FRERNEAAER A EREBER RS E 2 MEF IR H
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Unit 2022 2021 2020
By —82=-_= e —EB-EF
Energy Use
ERAE
Petrol for mobile combustion™ L 17,708.00 20,618.00 27,031.00
BRI 2 om0 nF
GJ 580.50 675.90 886.13
FIREH
Intensity GJ per million RMB sales 0.17 0.22 0.38
=7E BARBBEETHER
TREFH
Purchased electricity MWh 1,042.38 1,130.94 974.75
BAZET JK LB
GJ 3,752.55 4,071.39 3,509.09
FIREHR
Intensity GJ per million RMB sales 1.11 1.31 1.51
7E BARKBETHER
TREF
Total energy consumption GJ 4,3383.06 4,747.29 4,395.22
mEERERE FIREH
Intensity GJ per million RMB sales 1.29 1.53 1.89
=g BARBBEETHER
TREFH

During the Reporting Period, the Group managed to reduce Scope
2 emission by around 7.8%, and nearly 22% in total emission.
Looking forward, we will continue to review and set target for our
operation to drive reduction through the electricity conservation in
production, use of renewable energy and increasing employees’

environmental awareness.

RB|BERMA AERERIB A BEHBERE
#7.8% WR D BHERET22% - RERK
BPEEERLRRESERR BB RMH
WEERE ERAABLRRRETESRE
BB

Lo The conversion factors from volumetric units of petrol consumption to energy units are in reference to CDP Technical note:

Conversion of fuel data to MWh.

RITREE 2 A B BB AR

REA 2 BIREHTD2RERRERE

SRRSO (AR BIRERERRNRMHEA) -
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Prepare for the Changing Climate

We are fully aware of the potential impacts that climate change
may have on our business. We are already witnessing increasing
frequency of extreme weather events and natural hazards like
severe flooding. Preparing for and responding to the climate
physical risk have become a key agenda for the Group’s
operational management.

In view of the risk of extreme weather, we made preparation to
mitigate the impact on our operation. During the rainy season,
we regularly carry out inspections of the sealants around the
doors and windows of our warehouses to look for water leaks.
We also inspect the drainage of the workshops to ensure they are
functional. We keep a stock of sandbags which are to be placed
around the entrances and exits as a precautionary measure when a
heavy rainfall is anticipated.

Furthermore, to in order to make positive impacts in the global
mission of combating climate change, the Group has set a series of
short-, medium- and long-term environmental targets as part of our
forward action plan.

122
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Aspects Targets''12
RIEE®E ER- A

GHG By 2025
BERE —E-RFEHZA

o Reduce absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions by about 9%
WA BENTR2NBEHIREEREBEERELN9%

° Reduce scope 1 and scope 2 GHG emission intensity by 20%
PRAX &5 B M2 )8 = R B HF U E20%

By 2030

ZE=EEY A

° Reduce absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions by 25%
WA EN RN BE IR EREBHNE25%

o Reduce scope 1 and scope 2 GHG emission intensity by 35%
PR & E R2B R E REHMEE35%

By 2050

—EREFHZA

° Achieve carbon neutrality
ey dashil

! Baseline for reduction targets are set as 2019.
BEEREREERIT R T —NF-
L2 Intensity target is set as per million RMB sales.

EEBRIABARYBBELHEERE
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RIE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Aspects Targets''12
RIEE®E B2

Waste By 2023

BEEY —EZ=FEH A

o Conduct waste audit and collect comprehensive waste data in analyzing
reduction potential
ETEEYRERBETEREZMEIR  ADTREE S

° Establish a waste management system and action plan to encourage
paper-less operation

B ERYERSIE RGIFT S S EE R (L E

By 2025

ZE-HFHZA

° Reduce non-hazardous waste generation by 25%
WA EEEEREEY25%

By 2030
ZE=EFYZAH
° Establish an internal recycle/reuse rate, and achieve no smaller than 80%
by 2030
RN AEEY, ERAE WRZE=F

A

F 3 2 B E B TMETR80%

U Baseline for reduction targets are set as 2019.
BEEAREERIT R T —NF-
L2 Intensity target is set as per million RMB sales.

EERBRIABARBBELHEERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Aspects Targets''12
REEBE ER- A
Energy By 2030
BEIR —E=EFYZA
o Source 50% renewable energy
FKEE50% 7] B A B IR
By 2040
—ENEFHZA
° Source 100% renewable energy
FREE100% A 3 £ gER
Water By 2025
VS “EHEHZAE

° Reduce 8% of water consumption intensity for operations in both Beijing
and Tianjin in the PRC
PR R B Jb R R KRR FE S FE K E 8%

By 2030

ZE=FFH A

° Reduce 25% of the water consumption intensity for operations in both
Beijing and Tianjin in the PRC
PR R B b R R ROR FE FS ) FEK B [ 25%

! Baseline for reduction targets are set as 2019.
BEEREREERIT R T —NF-

L2 Intensity target is set as per million RMB sales.
EEBEIIREBARBEELIHER
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RIE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX Bt X FTESGHR & 5 5l & 5l
HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs Explanation/Reference Section
B X FTESGHR &5 18 5| — M i% E R KPIs R SEZEH
Aspect A: Environmental
BEA: RE
A1 Emissions Information on: Building a Sustainable Environment
INEEE 3, — Emission Management
(a) the policies; and HEARERRRE -HHRER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

BRARERIOEERBHN KR Lmr 8k
HCRENMBEERRYNELESN:

(a) BUR: &

(b) BTFHEHBTABEAXEMHEBEIZR
01

H) & R} o

Note:

Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other
pollutants regulated under national laws and
regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations.

&t

Fﬁ?}FE&@TﬁNOX ~ SOx B H Ath % B FOEE K AR B3
B9 )5 24 o

}E* BeE_atik Pk |StER - amikit
& 2 &k RN LR -

EEBREDMERRBROMAESL -

i
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RIE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs Explanation/Reference Section
Bt 32 fT ESG R & 15 5| — R % B R KPIs BE BEEH
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Building a Sustainable Environment
KPI A1.1 emissions data. — Emission Management

PR iR R AR B HE B - MEFRHEBERERBIR—FRER
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope  Building a Sustainable Environment
KPI A1.2 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, — Emission Management

where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of  ZEn[iF B RIEE e E
production volume, per facility).

BEE (HBE1) hglREEZE (SE2) A =R EH
WE(UBTE) R (MER)EE (WA SE
EBM TBEIMTE

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Building a Sustainable Environment
KPI A1.3 and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per — Waste Management
unit of production volume, per facility). SN ERRIRIE-EEDEE

FELAEEEEYES (BT8R (niE
BIRE(WMASESESEMN BHERXMTE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Building a Sustainable Environment
KPI A1.4 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity — Waste Management
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per SN ERRIRIE-EEDEE
facility).

FEAEEEEYES (UBETE) R (niE
BIRE(WMASESESMN BHERXMTE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and Building a Sustainable Environment

KPI A1.5 steps taken to achieve them. — Prepare for the Changing Climate
AT MBI ER R RAEIELARN FENKERRRE -AREEL
RERH) P8R - 1%&?4%{%

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Building a Sustainable Environment

KPI A1.6 hazardous wastes are handled, and a — Prepare for the Changing Climate
description of reduction targets set and T ERERIE - AR EE
steps taken to achieve them. Ve T i

WlEEEERETEEYMN L RIEMRH
FIMHREE B R M REDE L B RATRE
5o
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R -HERERRSE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
B 32 T ESG ¥R & 15 5| — R 4% & R KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

e S2EZEH

A2 Use of Resources
A2 ERFEH

KPI A2.1
KPI A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI A2.2

KPI A2.3
KPI A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.5
KPI A2.5

128
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Policies on efficient use of resources
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

ERERER (BIEER  KREAMERME) &
R -

Note:

Resources may be used in production, in storage,
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment,
etc.
i
BRATARNEE #F &E#-

B BFRE

L

o

o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
REMEASHEER SHBEEER(NE &
gom) BREE (UWTETERTE) REE (W0

=,

NEBEEEMN SERBAE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

BROKERTE (MU SEREL  SERE
HE) o

Description of energy use efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

AT L BEIRE MR E B R R REDE L
B IR PTERERH) 2 BR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

H SR EGE A KR ERI B R FRE - LA RFTET
SRR B IR R R E R E L B R TR Y
HE -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

MR BEMEEE (NEETE) &k (0
R BEEBUGE-

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

Building a Sustainable Environment
HETREBERERER

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Emission Management

METRHEERRE -RER

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Improving Water Efficiency

MERBERRE -NERKRR

Building a Sustainable Environment

— Prepare for the Changing Climate
MEAFHBEERRE - RRKRE(L

e 43 48

Building a Sustainable Environment
— Prepare for the Changing Climate

BETHARRBA-ARER(L
YR 13 %

Building a Sustainable Environment -
Responsible Use of Resources
MENRKEERBRR-AETHMER



RIE-HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs Explanation/Reference Section
B 3 FTESG R 5 #5 5| — A % B R KPIs e S2EZEH
A3 The Environment Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Building a Sustainable Environment
and Natural impacts on the environment and natural SR B RIRIE
Resources resources.
A3 BERXAEE MIEETAHRERRAERENERTEN
BUR o
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Building a Sustainable Environment
KPI A3.1 activities on the environment and natural SR B RIRIE
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

MAXEEHHRREERAERNEATER
ERREEBEHETZENTH-

A4 Climate Change Policies on identification and mitigation of Building a Sustainable Environment
AT EE L significant climate-related issues which have — Prepare for the Changing Climate
impacted, and those which may impact, the @ a[iFERREBE - A TESL
i eram
BRI REEHE KRR ATREEHETAELETED
BERRIEEBEEHREK -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Building a Sustainable Environment
KPI A4.1 related issues which have impacted, and — Prepare for the Changing Climate
those which may impact, the issuer, and the #FiEA[FEERIRE - ARIFE (L
actions taken to manage them. TEIT

W BRI EHBITAEEFENEAR
EHEBEE RELH{TE-
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RIE - HERERBWS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
B 32 T ESG ¥R & 15 5| — R 4% & R KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

e S2EZEH

B1 Employment Information on:

B1 &

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

BRAFMEERE BEREN TEHE - K
HFERE Zl REBUREMETE
&R

(a) BXR: &

) BTHETABERFENHBZEIZR

0l
AR -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type
KPI B1.1 (for example, full- or part-time), age group

and geographical region.

BRI BEFRL  FiedR MivR S5 E

BHago
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
KPI B1.2 and geographical region.
RUR FRAR RMERESHNESRAL
&

1 30 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
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Care for Our Employees

Care for Our Employees

Care for Our Employees



RIE - HERERBWS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
B 32 T ESG ¥R & 15 5| — R 4% & R KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

e S2EZEH

B2 Health and Safety Information on:

B2 REHEZZE

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BREHZE2TERREMRERBERBEN

BER
(a) BER: &

(b) BTUHBTABEARXENHBEZNK
1

B o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

BE=ZF (BRERFE)SFAITHMA
&

KPI B2.1
KPI B2.1

Lost days due to work injury.
ETHEEATIERH-

KPI B2.2
KPI B2.2

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

ol BT ER 40 B0 BB 3 2 PR B 2 2 R B LA K AE A
BMITRERAE.

KPI B2.3
KPI B2.3
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Occupational Health and Safety
BERRERLSE

Occupational Health and Safety
BERERERZE

Occupational Health and Safety
BERERERZE

Occupational Health and Safety
— Production Safety

BERFEEZEZ-Em:
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RIE - HERERBWS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
B 32 T ESG ¥R & 15 5| — R 4% & R KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

e S2EZEH

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BERRAREBITLIERE N MH R RENK
5 o HRENE S -

B3 Development and
Training
B3 #ZRRIZFI

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may
include internal and external courses paid by
the employer.

af: EIEREEY I ERaEE N BRI

EYER
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by
KPI B3.1 gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
BRI REEER (NERERE TRER
BB XIEEB D -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per
KPI B3.2 employee by gender and employee category.

mER kEEERE S
PR 8-

FHEBTRZIIN

B4 Labor Standards Information on:

B4 % T X H|
(a)

the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labor.
BRAG IEE T kg s T :
(a) BE: K

BTHRTABEAZENEBELIZR
kel

()

B AR

132
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Care for Our Employees
— Training and Talent Development

AEES -HIIRATER

Care for Our Employees
— Training and Talent Development

MEREE -BIIRATER

Care for Our Employees
— Training and Talent Development
BEEE -BEIRALTER

Care for Our Employees
— Labor Standard
BEEES -4 TEH



R -HERERRSE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs Explanation/Reference Section
Bt 32 fT ESG R & 15 5| — R % B R KPIs e S2EZEH
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Care for Our Employees
KPI B4.1 employment practices to avoid child and — Labor Standard
forced labor. M EE — 4% T#E|
fat e s RSB BV B e AR 2 B T M5R ) 45
To
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such  Care for Our Employees

KPI B4.2

B5 Supply Chain

Management
B5 HEMERE

KPI B5.1
KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2
KPI B5.2

KPI B5.3
KPI B5.3

practices when discovered. — Labor Standard
HIMEERERBRAREREABERIKERN EEES 5% TR
g

Policies on managing environmental and Service Responsibility
social risks of the supply chain. — Supply Chain Management
IR R S A IRIR A & EL bR BUR RBEE-—HEEER

Number of suppliers by geographical region. Service Responsibility
RS D M EEEE - - Supply Chain Management
RSB —HEEER

Description of practices relating to engaging  Service Responsibility
suppliers, number of suppliers where the — Supply Chain Management
practices are being implemented, and how RiSEE—(LEgEssE

they are implemented and monitored.

Mt AR RHERNEN mERTABIE

DIV Em A - ARMBBAITRERE T -

Description of practices used to identify Service Responsibility
environmental and social risks along the — Supply Chain Management
supply chain, and how they are implemented pg 7% & {F — 4t e $ & 12

and monitored.

1 5 B 58 4 9 (B BR B Y 3R IR St &

BREED A RBERBEARITRERE T A
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RE-HAERERMRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
B 32 T ESG ¥R & 15 5| — R 4% & R KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

e S2EZEH

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote

KPI B5.4 environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

Mt ERE HEAR R ES ARRER MRS
MBS ARMEBERITRER A

B6 Product Information on:
Responsibility

B6 ESEMT (@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

BRMRRERNRBHNRERELZE BS
RSB EEIARBRITER

(a) BUR: X

(b) ETUHBTABEARXENHBEZNK
Al

B E R

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
KPI B6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

BEEXEEX iuu%@%ﬂﬂ R 22 & B2 4 BRI /i 1
BEWH A D

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related
KPI B6.2 complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

EEBNERRRFOFEE UREE S
A e

1 34 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
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Service Responsibility
— Supply Chain Management

RGEE-—HERER

Service Responsibility

R E E

Service Responsibility
— Product Quality and Safety

RBEEEF-EREERLE

Service Responsibility
— Handling Complaints

RBEE-—RFRE



RE-HAERERMRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
B 32 T ESG ¥R & 15 5| — R 4% & R KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

e S2EZEH

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing
KPI B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights.

WG ELRENBEREEBNED -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

ML EREBREREMBYIZR -

KPI B6.4
KPI B6.4

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

HlUE B EERRE RFLBECR
TRERF .-

KPI B6.5
KPI B6.5

AR AE R

B7 Anti-corruption Information on:

B7 RES
(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

BB IEER SR MFERAEREMN:
(a) BR: &

BETHBRITABEAR
1

(b) CENMARER

BE R o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.

RERMAHBTAXERERE YD RE
BORMARMHNEE RFRER-

KPI B7.1
KPI B7.1

Service Responsibility
— Intellectual Property, Customer
Privacy and Data Security

AR B AE
—HBEE TPLERERRE

Service Responsibility
— Product Quality and Safety

REBEE-—ERMEERZE

Service Responsibility
— Intellectual Property, Customer
Privacy and Data Security
Rk %5 B £
—MBERE BTPILERERE

Business

EE L AF

Integrity

Business

[EELAE

Integrity
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs
B 32 T ESG ¥R & 15 5| — R 4% & R KPIs

Explanation/Reference Section

e S2EZEH

KPI B7.2
KPI B7.2

KPI B7.3
KPI B7.3

B8 Community
Investment

B8 #HE®RZE

KPI B8.1
KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2
KPI B8.2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

e R RREF  URBAERITRE
Rk

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.

WAREERETRHORESHEI -

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BRI RSB T fREE A R F EMME
REXBRDHEE B RNENBER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,

environmental concerns, labor needs, health,
culture, sport).

ETEREE (WHE RBEZE HIFK-
R Xt -885) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time)
to the focus area.

EZIEBMHAER (N EHKRE) -
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Business Integrity

B EBIE

Business Integrity

B EBIE

Community Participation
o

Community Participation

w2

Community Participation
o



CRVR R TS
Independent Auditor’'s Report

|IBDO

FE:F : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Sparkle Roll International Group Limited (the “Company”, formerly
known as Sparkle Roll Group Limited) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 144 to 294, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEPI15E
K Zri>2548

BN BRREREEERAF

(ABEREEERAR)
(REFERZMA L2 ERAA)
2HRRE

=R

AAZEED (AT ST [ 3R] ) BB HIHRE
14422948 2 SRR EEEBR AR ([&
AT ATEREERERAR) REWBA
Al (AT#BE EEE]) 2REVB®RE It
MEBREREER-_SE-__#=A=+—HB2
REVBRIBRREBEZAEFEZGES
2EBRARE FEREMERNGERARE
mBEBR  URGEVBERENT 2EE2
ERTHRBE -

BRRR ZFRAMBRRCREFT B S
BAERMZBEMBREEAEEMP S
T BEEER-_T-_—_F=A=+-—
BZGEAMBRAARBEZR LFEZEE
MBRENRGERTRE YEEREFBLQF
Bl WEREZBHE -
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B 2R E (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Impairment assessment on goodwill

Refer to Notes 4, 5 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group’s goodwill amounted to approximately HK$333,222,000
as at 31 March 2022. We focused on this area and identified it as
a key audit matter because of the significance of goodwill to the
Group. Furthermore, the directors’ assessment of the value-in-use
calculation of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUSs”) to which
goodwill was allocated involves judgement and estimates about
the future results of the businesses, key assumptions including
discount rates and growth rates applied to future cash flow
forecast.

138
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RRzE®

BMERBEEESFMASRME 2B EE
RERETE - HPIEZFENTAEZEE
BEEARE [ZBENLE 58 M mERANE
ZEE]BMoREE— R - RIEFE S
BhAE Rz BEEHENBETR (AT
[<FRI)) - HMBLRX EXE YDETT
Al 2 b B HEEEE - HFIEE - R
ERZEARIBEATREE L RRMANE
AR R ERE-

BARETEE

RETFHREREBRMANEXHEG  RoY
A AV BHREANBIRAERLZISFHA &
LEHIAERMBAEREAMBRR LG
ABREETREN RATSHELERRE
HEBZER-

BBz R E G

BHGEEHBEREN T4 -5K19

EEEHEN T -_—FE=A=+—HH A
333,222,000 T - HMAMNEEEE BS
EnEZ ML E Wi 2 &5 AR
BRFEEH I ZEEFE EEBEESERD
ENReEABENCFRAEBEFERS LY
2 RREEVED FIET RABET BRBRERE
REARARBRESREEN 2R ERER
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on goodwill (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the followings:

(i)

(if)

(iil)

Evaluating and checking the composition of the Group’s
future cash flow forecasts in the CGUs, and the process by
which they were drawn up, including testing the underlying
value-in-use calculations and comparing them to the latest
approved budgets;

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions by
comparing the current year actual results with the forecast
figures of the current year included in the previous forecast,
by reference to future plans and by performing independent
market analysis; and

Utilising our own valuation specialists work when considering
the appropriateness of the discount rates and long-term
growth rates.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Company’s

annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not

cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

AREEITEE &)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit

findings, including any significant efficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pak Tak Lun
Practising Certificate Number: PO6170

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_ZT_—_#=F=+—HIL%E Forthe year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E2-= —F-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAIT
Revenue Y 2% 7 4,324,487 4,525,762
Cost of sales 8 & B AR (3,468,055) (3,834,009)
Gross profit ER 856,432 691,753
Other income, gains and losses Hal A - Yezm R Esia 8 (131,599) (51,230)
Impairment of loan receivables and  FEUR & 7k & FE U B X
loan interest receivables A BB E (56,390) -
Selling and distribution costs HE RRIEAR (504,468) (467,229)
Administrative expenses THER (81,708) (76,684)
Operating profit KRR 9 82,267 96,610
Finance costs ELE= DN 10 (72,648) (64,486)
Profit before income tax BR BT 18 Bt A1 3 F 9,619 32,124
Income tax TS 11 21,895 5,653
Profit for the year REFRF 31,514 37,777
Other comprehensive income, BREEEEMAZEBA
net of tax
Iltems that may be reclassified HEEas 7852
subsequently to BmXZHE -
profit or l0ss:
Exchange differences on translation — # & & 5M 3 % B 75 3R K
of financial statements of ZIEHZERE
foreign operations 73,884 133,793
Items that will not be reclassified HEETE 7 HE
subsequently to profit or l0ss: BmZZHE -
Change in fair value of equity BARERTAEAM
investments at fair value through 2HEWA 2 I
other comprehensive income WERF N
recognised during the year NAEE (200,322) 341,019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BHE_ZT_—_#=FA=+—HILHE Forthe year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET T T
Other comprehensive income AEERBTERHEA
for the year, net of tax 2EKA (126,438) 474,812
Total comprehensive income AEEZHINALRE
for the year (94,924) 512,589
Profit for the year attributable to: T3 A LTEERFERR :
Owners of the Company KARIESR A 34,052 37,527
Non-controlling interests IR = (2,538) 250
31,514 ST
Total comprehensive income B AL FEfL
attributable to: E2HEHWBALE:
Owners of the Company RRAREER A (92,483) 512,222
Non-controlling interests I 128 iR 1 (2,441) 367
(94,924) 512,589
Earnings per share attributable to &KX F#H G A B/
owners of the Company BRER
Basic BN HKO0.6 cent HKO0.7 cent
15 B A 7S
Diluted #E HKO0.6 cent HKO0.7 cent
15 Al AL
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—T-_F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2022

I

2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y5 - 2R MR 16 1,389,477 1,021,292
Investment properties REME 18 437,425 379,998
Goodwill EES 19 333,222 385,657
Other intangible assets HthmEEE 20 210,331 265,022
Financial assets at fair value through &R B AEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ EREE 21 319,766 520,088
Prepayment for property, Y5 MR MR
plant and equipment TE B SR IR 3,431 3,309
2,693,652 2,575,366
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BE 23 1,361,173 696,224
Trade receivables FEUWE 558 24(a) 27,823 18,489
Loan receivables U E K 24(b) 34,471 90,000
Deposits, prepayments and B BEFER
other receivables H {th & Uk 5RIE 24(c) 270,889 190,440
Amounts due from non-controlling JE LS FE 22 AR 4 25 5RO0E
interests 22 40,309 -
Tax recoverable A] Y [ 7 B - 3,575
Investment in films and KREEBELERHE
television program 25 63,737 65,023
Pledged deposits BT R 26 84,111 200,495
Cash at banks and in hand RITMFHERE 26 151,519 246,540
2,034,032 1,510,786
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables BN E S 5IE 28 142,849 28,306
Contract liabilities AHEE 29 195,632 292,925
Receipts in advance, accrued FEWHIE - EEEAR
charges and other payables H b FE S 5RIR 30 127,392 164,366
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A5 3450 AR 25 BRTR
interests 22 11,420 9,999
Provision for taxation AR & 5,166 4,478
Borrowings BE 31 842,469 336,056
Lease liabilities HEBR 17 34,880 49,754
1,359,808 885,884
Net current assets REBEEFE 674,224 624,902
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRE & & 3,367,876 3,200,268
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RZE-__F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 T T THETT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 31 222,222 113,856
Convertible bonds Al AR & 5 32 8,745 8,135
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 33 53,465 78,189
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 358,121 340,792
642,553 540,972
NET ASSETS EERE 2,725,323 2,659,296
EQUITY R
Share capital fi&% < 34 10,944 10,944
Reserves f#1E 35 2,551,528 2 644,011
Equity attributable to owners to ZAAFEF AEGER
the Company 2,562,472 2,654,955
Non-controlling interests IEPE R = 40 162,851 4,341
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 2,725,323 2,659,296

The consolidated financial statements on pages 144 to 294 were H$144E2948 Zix 6 BHmEECR T ==
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 F/NA=+HEZEoEMEETE  TH

June 2022 and signed on its behalf by: THEEREKEE
Zheng Hao Jiang Zhao Xiaodong
BR5E ST AR
Director Director
EFE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BT - —F=HA=+—BHIt&FE

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZE HE
—E- 8 —_E-—4F
=Z=A=+—-HALt =ZA=+—HIL
FE FE
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FTHET FBIT
Cash flows from operating REEKRZ2HERE
activities
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B A i A 9,619 32,124
Adjustments for: AT IBEL AR :
Bank interest income R1T A B U A 8 (3,776) (2,271)
Rent concessions e &R - (5,412)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of HEWHE KSRk
property, plant and equipment Bz (M=)
EiE 8 (6,256) 3,315
Amortisation of other Hih M & EdH
intangible assets 9 10,350 9,982
Depreciation of property, ER TN
plant and equipment e 9 91,143 99,120
Changes in fair value of Tﬁﬁ%%Z
investment properties NUIVI=R-0) 8 69,999 45,630
Changes in fair value of wE $%)§Z BAR
investment in films and B2 ARE
television program o 8 3,649 1,004
Interest on borrowings MEESZMZFE 10 43,232 38,678
Interest on convertible bonds MAMBRESIN 2
B 10 610 142
Interest on lease liabilities HREEBEIT2
B 10 28,806 25,666
Modification of leases charged to R = %?DB@Z
profit or loss HEEH%R 8 (3,647) (8,555)
Derecognition of investment RILERREYE
properties 8 - 14,717
Written off of property, ER Y
plant and equipment 1 SH 8 - 68
Written off of other intangible H b fE & = Ao
assets 8 44,638 196
Write-down of inventories FEMR 9 24,286 14,770
Reversal of write-down Bl 17 & MO
of inventories 9 (14,770) (7,668)
Impairment of goodwill EESNGRED 8 65,904 26,136
Impairment of other intangible Hih | EERE
assets 8 8,732 26,866
Impairment of loan receivables JE WU SR K% FE B 3R
and loan interest receivables A BB E 8 56,390 =
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BHE_ZT_—_#=FA=+—HILHE Forthe year ended 31 March 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£ HE
—E=-= —E %
=A=+—8 =A=+—8H
ILEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAIT
Operating cash flows before working &E& & 2512
capital changes KEIR S M 428,909 314,508
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEm,wm (651,598) 278,529
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEWE S\ (#mn)
receivables Ve (359) 20,670
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, B BEFIENREAMm
prepayments and other JE W R IE ()
receivables k> (73,419) 78,850
Decrease/(increase) in loan W E ZOR A, (1)
receivables 57 (90,000)
Increase/(decrease) in ERE 5 IE
trade payables #n, Crl4) 112,111 (36,418)
(Decrease)/increase in AHWARE CRL)
contract liabilities (106,823) 87,256
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in WA B EBA R
advance, accrued charges and i & 1 5K IR
other payables OR ) /38 (47,444) 44,008
Cash (used in)/generated from REER (A /A3
operations R (338,566) 697,398
Income tax refunded EREMER (1,774) (6,342)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &£ %% (FrA) B
operating activities REFEH (340,340) 691,056
Cash flows from REZBHZHESRE
investing activities
Purchase of property, BEME HEREE
plant and equipment (11,387) (31,181)
Decrease/(increase) in DIREBEITER
pledged bank deposits A () 122,300 (71,015)
Proceeds from disposals of HEWE ek
property, plant and equipment B TS RIA 16,296 1,167
Acquisition of equity investment W BE R IR & - (54,663)
Acquisition of property WESENE A
holding companies — —Hk Eﬂﬂlﬁﬁfﬁi
net of cash acquired 27(a) (331,210) (13,464)
Acquisition of investment in films WEKEEZR
and television program BREE - (33,684)
Advances to non-controlling interest 44 %Bﬁ% A) FE 1 AR
of subsidiaries R ﬁ*” (40,309) -
Interest received B U F 2 3,776 2,271
Net cash used in REZBMARESFEHE
investing activities (240,534) (200,569)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BE_T-—F=-"A=t+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZE HE
—E- 8 —_E-—4F
=A=+-—H =A=+—8H
LEFEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAIT
Cash flows from financing RBEEH2RERE
activities
Advances from/(repayment to) Bt A R IEIE AR R
non-controlling interests of /T)\/ 1BE B B
subsidiaries N |l EIE R M A
IE) 1,022 (2,934)
Proceeds from partial disposal of BHEE—EH B AR
a subsidiary ﬁﬁ%%?k 1,108 =
Issuance of ordinary shares BiTE AR - 50,004
Capital injection by non-controlling ~ FFIZERR#E R T &
interests - 1,786
Net proceeds from AR ESFIS
convertible bonds IR F R - 100,000
New borrowings raised 748 {2 6 4,206,909 3,775,666
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (3,608,644) (4,175,265)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE (49,369) (56,899)
Interest paid =XV (43,232) (38,678)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEAERNE (28,806) (25,666)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEB B, (FFA)
from financing activities HEFHE 478,988 (371,986)
Net (decrease)/increase in ﬁﬁ&fﬁ.ﬁ%fﬁlﬁ B
cash and cash equivalents W) IR EE (101,886) 118,501
Cash and cash equivalents REFAZRHER
at beginning of year Re&EEER 246,540 116,049
Effect of foreign exchange Exgg o8 38
rate changes, net 6,865 11,990
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREERE
at end of year, comprising ZEBEE - BREETR
cash at banks and in hand FEERESE 151,519 246,540
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AERIEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_ZT_—_#=A=+—HIL%E Forthe year ended 31 March 2022

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEAES
Fairvalue ~ Convertible
reserve bonds Non-
Share Share Capital Special  Contributed  Exchange Other  Statutory (non- equity  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve eamnings Total interest equity

RE  ROEE AARE  BIER  SARR  HERE  AtBR  ARRE (TUEE) RERT A FEKEEZ  BREE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEL TET TAT TAL TAL TAT TAL TAL TAT TAL TEL TAT TAT TAL

At 1 April 2020 9,587 1,573,808 3,508 (36,810) 300,872 (94,721) 7,283 13,022 (757,681) - 981,854 2,000,722 2,188 2,002,910

Changes in equity in 2021

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 37,527 37,527 250 31,717
Other comprehensive income Efb2ERA
- Exchange differences on —BERNERBRRL

translation of financial statements EizE

of foreign operations = = = = = 133,676 = = = = 133,676 17 133,798
~ Change in fair value of equity —BAREHALHZE

investments at fair value through Ji

other comprehensive income FRERZDAERD

recognised during the year - - - - - - - - 341,019 - 341,019 - 341,019
Total comprehensive income for the year A&E2ERALE - - - - - 133676 - - 3019 B 37521 512,022 367 512,589
Capital injection by non-controling FakERTE

interest = = = = = = = = = = = = 1,786 1,786

Issuance of shares through placement  EBEE XK ( 637 49,367 - - - - - - - - - 50,004 - 50,004
Receipt of convertible bonds - - - - - - - - - 18,699 18,699 - 18,699
Conversion of convertible bonds 720 89,340 - - - - - - - (16,752) - 73,308 - 73,308
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - - 533 - - (533) - - -

At 31 March 2021 10944 1,712,515 3,508 (36,8100 300872 38,955 7,283 13,556 (416,662 1947 1,018,848 2,654,955 4341 2,659,206
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BE_ZT_—_#=F=+—HIL%E Forthe year ended 31 March 2022

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARG
Fair value  Convertible
reserve bonds Non-
Share Share Capital Special Contributed  Exchange Other  Statutory (non- equity  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve  earnings Total interest equity

MhERE TERES
Bx  RMEE  EARE BNEBE  AARR  NEBR  AEER  EEER (FIRE) EEER  REEV & FEREE  EEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR TE7T TEL TR TR TE7T TR TR TE7T TET TR TE7T TEL TR

t 1 April 2021 RZB--%WA-H 10944 1,712,515 3,508 (36,810) 300,872 38,055 7,288 13,555 (416,662) 1947 1,018,848 2,654,955 4341 2,659,296

Changes in equity in 2022

Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 34,052 34,052 (2,538) 31,514
Other comprehensive income Efh2ERA
- Exchange differences on —BERNERUBRRL

translation of financial statements EizE

of foreign operations - - - - - 78,787 - - - - - 73,787 97 73,884
- Change in fair value of equity —BRA A AR

investrments at fair value through RAZRR

other comprehensive income ERERL

recognised during the year - - - - - - - - (200,322) - - (200,322 - (200,322

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 73,787 - - (200,322) - 34,052 (92,483) (2,441) (94,924)

Non-controling interests arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries

Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary &

- - - - - - - - - - - - 159,843 159,843

without loss of control - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,108 1,108
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - - 1,357 - - (1,357) - - -
At 31 March 2022 RZE-Z%=R=1-H 10,944 1,712,515 3,508 (36,810) 300872 112,742 7,283 14912 (616,084) 1,947 1,051,543 2,562,472 162,851 2,725,323
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Notes to the Financial Statements

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

GENERAL

New Sparkle Roll International Group Limited (the
“Company”, formerly known as Sparkle Roll Group Limited)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of
business is in Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are distributorships of luxury goods
and automobiles, provision of after-sales services, provision
of property management services, provision of property rental
services, provision of money lending services, and film related
business including development and investment in films and
television program. The Group’s operations are mainly based
in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Pursuant to the Certificate of Change of Name and the
Certificate of Secondary Name issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda, the name of the Company was
changed from “Sparkle Roll Group Limited” to “New Sparkle
Roll International Group Limited” on 28 September 2021.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Company does not have immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company. The Directors regard
the Company does not have ultimate controlling party.

—REH

IRHEREERMABERQR (A28
AIERKEEER A G ) A—HRNE RE
MRS 2 AR A F] - Bl i S B i
ik A& Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda imE £ &%
EMEREB - ARARNHETEH S
REGFMBRAR ([BRA]) Lo

ARRINEMB AR (5 AEE])
ZEBEBRUEEZMPTERER
% R ERRS  RHYEEERS
REMEHEERS RERE RS AR
EXHBEED BREFEIREETR
ERMB - AKREIEXBERURETR
KB R -

BEAEEEAFAMEEREH 2E X
ZHEAMBASRE—LBERAE K
RAIZEZBENR_ZE_—FNLA=+N
H i [Sparkle Roll Group Limited | &
2% /& [New Sparkle Roll International
Group Limited | °

ARBIZER ([EE)RR ARAL
BEERERARRRRERAF -EF
R ARB TMERBIERTT -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

2.

154

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASSs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
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B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2021

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 ~ COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

None of these amended HKFRSs have material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period. The Group has not early applied
any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

3. RMBRUBREER

(a)

RAFTRCETEBT KRS
EH-R-ZB-—FMA—H
£

EEGIMAGEEME THRAE
BRI G RERZHETE R
PRSI E LK E B IR E LR
ZIEFT

EREREREEDN 20198 RESH
E165% 2 1537] HBREEER
B S ER FREENE
BOR BERE PR
REEAEAR
RN BRE LR
BT% BEYB
WEEREIR K
AN BREER
E16% 2 153]

I EEE M MmE R ZERTH A
SEARERE SR TR 2 FE KM
BARRL BT AEALE - AEE
I FE LT A B AR E R A & 7 B i
REMZ I BB BREERHK
BEMERE LY ZER] -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued and are potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HK Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statements 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020"

“Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current” and “Presentation
of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause™

Definition of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract!

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022.

2 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023.

156
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—= — —

=

F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation

5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in
August 2020. The revision to HK Interpretation 5 (2020)
updates the wordings in the interpretation to align
with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in
conclusion and do not change the existing requirements.

The Directors do not anticipate that these application of
these amendments and revision in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.

3. RMBRUBREER

(b)

[mﬂw
N

EREMGEERERZHTESR
MBEREEARBFTBUBEHRS
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RMWE B BREER »)

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued (b) BEMEMKRERZHITES
but are not yet effective (Continued) BB EENREBU KRS

B 2185 (#&)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure of Accounting EEBEEIERFE19 21557 [ &5t
Policies BEREE]
The amendments require entities to disclose their W EEFEREREREEES:

158

material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods

BERER ﬁ’ﬁé‘FH\EﬁEﬁEﬁZ*

SRR ERINEE R 2 MBHRE
NZHEMEN —HERE I E
BT E-RENMBERZE
ZRARERZERBHRRIELZ
RTE - RS BRENBNE
Z-FEWBREEAEHZRSE
| I M EAEZRE S
REFTHRBEE 2 FRFIERES -
BERGHERFEIR 2B -F
T A-HBRZERBZFE

beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier M AR WEERAIER -BR
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in BEMEREEAEBZRE2R

the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-
mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is
not necessary.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—= — —

=

F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates: clarifying that they are monetary
amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by an
accounting policy.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

3. RMBRUBREER

[mﬂw
N

EREMGEERERZHTESR
MBEREEARBFTBUBEHRS
B ZAERT (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—= — —

=

F£=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

160

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the

contract).

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43

3. RMBRUBREER

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—= — —

=

F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that,
for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past
events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

(b)

3. RMBERUBREER (&)
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MBEREEARBFTBUBEHRS
B ZAERT (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RMEBUMBREER (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMEERERNZFITES
but are not yet effective (Continued) BMEREEARE B BERE
ER 2B (&)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 EEBUBHEEN _—_FE—-—NFZ
ZECEFRHCFENE
The annual improvements amend a number of ZEFENEMSITETERN B
standards, including: 5=
. HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong o BEANGEmREREUNEIRIE
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit a RN BB B E2ER ]
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS NIERB A S %R
1 to measure cumulative translation differences F15REDI6@Q)ER 2B A A
using the amounts reported by its parent, based on RESRABEZERBMG
the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs. WMEERZBH FHAEA
RIEH B B RE
e HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the e FARUBHEEAFIR
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph [eRMTE| BEEEMK
B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to ] & A E95% 55 B3.3.65%
derecognise a financial liability, explaining that only [10% | R BEEs &R
fees paid or received between the entity and the DAHE R BRI RS/ E
lender, including fees paid or received by either the B - WBERAEEREER
entity or the lender on other’s behalf are included. AZBEANHWER 2 &R
(BREEBIERARKEMM
AEASE 2 EBR) BIEE
Ao
. HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative . BB RS ER F165%
Example 13 to remove the illustration of (& &5 BI13A M Br
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the EALBEANEREYHE
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion BBRZ RO AR EZ
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that T~ 5 FR ER R AH & 22 B M P e
might arise because of how lease incentives are EXEHEERERE (T
illustrated in that example. RABEREBEZIRE-
The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the BRI HEAZSNESSY
application of the improvements will have on the Group’s REBEGEMBMEREN L HE -

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired set
has the ability to produce outputs.

4. TESHBERBE
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

164

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a2 maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling

interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their

relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

166

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Non-controlling interests 4.3 FERER

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between

non-controlling interests and the equity owners of

the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position depending
on the nature of the liability.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are
translated into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Land and buildings Remaining lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

170

4.6

Intangible assets

()

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable)
or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is
the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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4.

172

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
(ii) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful lives is
amortised from the date it is available for use and
its estimated useful life is as follows:

Trademark 10 years

Customers’ list from Over the term of
property management contracts
contracts

Flim rights Over the circulation period

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

4.7 Financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.

Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

174

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI, as described above, debt instruments may
be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 4.7 S®@IA(#&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12-month
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting
date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7

176

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking

information.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due or unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non-credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETHRBE (2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 4.7 @I A (#&)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into their respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
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interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The FEETE - BT RRE S PTG
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the HEETEES 2 ANEBELEZ

convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is
included in equity (convertible bonds equity reserve).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium.
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No gain
or loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7

180

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.8

4.9

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches,
jewelleries and fine wines included in the inventories are
determined using the first-in, first-out method while the
other inventories with different nature are determined
using the weighted average basis.

Films under production include production costs,
costs of services, direct labour costs, facilities and
raw materials consumed in the creation of films. Upon
completion and available for commercial exploitation,
these films under production are reclassified as film.
Films under production are accounted for on a project-
by-project basis and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
of cash flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases

1 82 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which
at the commencement date have a lease term of 12
months or less and do not contain purchase option. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. For right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of a leasehold land
and buildings held for own use, they are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
losses. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

184

4.10 Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the

underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid

at the commencement date of the lease are considered

to be lease payments:

(i)

(if)

fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability;

(i)  reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made, and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised)
lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

1 86 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the
lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term,
or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-
use asset being adjusted by the same amount. With the
exception to which the practical expedient for Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions applies, if the renegotiation
results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the
carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification
date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same
amount.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43

4, TESHHEBRE 2)

410 HE (&)

HEAME (#F)

BEASEHEFAASTERHEE
ZANGRE —BEFER &
RERZBEER ARG EIMEAE
XN EBERZSERE—18
NZIBEINEE - MBS E
AEBHEEAR  ATEEMER
meE  &EHMEEEHIEESHERE
R(TwmefftRr kAE—8
REBEIEE) HEBEBEKIZ
RiEk BERE A 2 B R E 5t
B MERAEEENMESEAR-
201978 AR 7% = R 18 1 & B R
ZEMERFEBERZOIMNMER
SN —BEFERENEE RS
B HEaERERAEEEZ
RE B SEMARL AR NAR
MAE 2 B2 e 1 T =
BREnEER HEABEMS
THE UBERERASERERN
BlEEFEEHEAMS A EERN
B2 RIE S sz HERIER
RRME B HE A 2 FIXRAEER -
CRAREENMMEZHEALE -



B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—= — —

=

F=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
leases. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease.

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Amounts due from leases under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Leases (Continued)

188

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Any changes in the scope of the consideration of a lease
that was not part of the original terms and conditions
of the lease are accounted for as lease modifications.
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, recognising the remaining lease payments
as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.12 Share capital

4.13

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

1 90 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of automobile

Revenue arising from the sales of automobile is
recognised at the point in time when the customer
obtains control of the automobile. Factors to determine
when the customers obtain control of automobile include
issuance of registration document, full payments have
been made and the goods have been delivered to and
accepted by the customers.

Sales of other merchandised goods

Revenue arising from the sales of other merchandised
goods represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,

after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value

added tax and is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

1 92 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

Services income

Revenue arising from the services is recognised over
time as these service are provided.

Revenue from provision of after-sales services is
recognised over time as these services are provided.

Revenue from the provisions of property management
service are recognised over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the property owners and
customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a time proportion basis in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

4.14

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues by using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost, i.e. the gross
carrying amount, net of loss allowance of the asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

194

4.15 Government grants

4.16

Government grants are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it
is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- other intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication impairment.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
cash generating unit (‘CGU”)).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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4.

196

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment of other assets (Continued)
Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

4.17 Employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required
to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as employees render services
during the year. The Group’s obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

1 98 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

(c) Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based employee compensation
(Continued)

At the time when the share options have exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options have
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve is transferred to contribute
surplus.

4.18 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and assets
and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

4, TESHHEBRE 2)

417 BEEER (£)

(c) URGBEHRZESHIE
(%)

RBREETE 2R BE
REREFRERZSES
BERERDRE - NEFEBA
Hg ECRBERERR
Y sk 70 JE R BB i R 7T
By - 38 1 10 R AR P A R e AR
ZEREEREHARR-

4.18 Fi8%H

A FriSH BB AT IR MR AE
BiIA o

ENERBLIE L B %55 B 2 T 51
RER - FER ISP S EAR
BT A0 B B e R - 3
BAR R 25 HK B I S A B B3
ZREHE

AEEGRARVBREENZEE
&EﬁZ%E%ﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%Hm
ZIESERcEREREBRE

Fi18 o TTW&ZW@M&IT
y%%ﬁ&ﬁ&mmﬂzaﬁuﬁ
EREBEIN NEBGATH R
URNEERRECHIBAG - EL
RIBE ELHR ERBUS A ARE
HAMRERER 2 BN THER-
R IB T iREANEREREE
YEEEERESEZ A RRER
EHRE HIE A EFIE 2 =X

HE-

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7 1 99

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 3



B RS RAR T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—= — —

=

F£=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Income taxes (Continued)

200 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

4.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except bank interest income, interest income
from investments and loan receivables, income tax
expense, finance costs, and other corporate income
and expenses which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

202

4.19

4.20

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets exclude financial assets at FVTOCI and
other corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude provision for taxation,
deferred tax liabilities and borrowings and other
corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment and are
not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) Has control or joint control over the
Company;

(b) Has significant influence over the Company;
or

(c) Is a member of key management personnel of

the Company or the Company’s parent.

4, TESHHEBRE 2)

4.19

4.20
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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4.

204

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies: (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influence by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(@) That person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(b)  Children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) Dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

4.21 Asset Acquisition

Asset acquisition Groups of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are assessed to determine if they
are business or asset acquisitions. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the Group chooses to apply a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is an asset rather than business
acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.21 Asset Acquisition (Continued)

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
do not constitute a business, the overall acquisition
cost is allocated to the individual identifiable assets
and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the
date of acquisition. An exception is when the sum of
the individual fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities differs from the overall acquisition cost. In
such case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that
are initially measured at an amount other than cost in
accordance with the Group’s policies are measured
accordingly, and the residual acquisition cost is allocated
to the remaining identifiable assets and liabilities based
on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

() Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BASEEsthstRHE 2
JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

206

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indication that other non-
financial assets with definite lives may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the assets. In assessing whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
may be impaired, the Group considers indications
from both internal and external sources of information
such as evidence of obsolescence or decline in
economic performance of the assets, changes in market
conditions, economic environment and customers’
tastes. These assessments are subjective and require
management’s judgements and estimations.

Impairment of trade and other receivables, and
loan receivables

The loss allowances for trade and other receivables, and
loan receivables are based on assumptions about risk
of default and ECLs rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Provision for inventories

The management reviews the inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
impairment of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired
items. The management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the
expected future market conditions and the estimated
selling price. The Group makes allowance for impairment
if the net realisable value is below the carrying amount.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BER®Er &t RHUE &)

JU

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

DGEMENTS (continuead)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China in which the Group operates. Significant
management judgement is required in interpreting the
relevant tax rules and regulations and determining the
amount of the provision for income taxes. There could
have transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Valuation of financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are revalued by independent
professional qualified valuers at the end of each
reporting period. Such valuations are based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. Any increase
or decrease in the valuations would affect the Group’s
profit or loss in future years.

Amortisation on other intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of these assets and their residual
values, if any. The amortisation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimation.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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208

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5.

JUDGEMENTS (continueq)

(viii) Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined
using valuation technique. Details of the judgements and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 18.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with internal reporting provided to executive directors of the
Company who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

The executive directors have identified the following
reportable operating segments:

()  Auto dealership — this segment includes sales of
branded automobiles, namely Bentley, Lamborghini and
Rolls-Royce and provision of related after-sales services.

(i)  Non-auto dealership — this segment includes sales
of branded watches, jewelleries, fine wines, audio
equipment, menswear apparels and accessories, cigars
and smoker’s accessories, silver articles, home articles
and health products.

(i) Property management and others — this segment
includes provision of property management services,
property rental services and money lending services;
and film related business including development and
investment in films and television program.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment
transactions, if any, are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 6. oEPER (&)
2022
—E-CF
Property
Auto Non-auto  management
dealership dealership and others Total
) . ) 5 NEEE
AEDHE FREDH REAM &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TET
Revenue from external customers RENBES 2 sk 3,800,194 437,458 86,835 4,324,487
Other income, gains and losses HipA  Yism R EE 34,702 17,000 (249,207) (197,505)
Reportable segment revenue DE R 3,834,896 454,458 (162,372) 4,126,982
Reportable segment results TREIHER 437,642 (75,046) (202,461) 160,135
Other segment information: Hit A HER
Amortisation of other intangible assets EEVAERE - - (10,350) (10,350)
Depreciation of property, ME BERRENE
plant and equipment (64,509) (10,725) (20) (75,254)
Unallocated AAE (15,889)
(91,143)
Changes in fair value of investment REME L DAER
properties - - (69,999) (69,999)
Changes in fair value of investment in films H& &5 R ERETE 2
and television program ’Aﬁﬁ?‘é g) - - (3,649) (3,649)
Written off of other intangible assets EimEy S E A - - (44,638) (44,638)
Write-down of inventories T - (24,286) - (24,286)
Reversal of write-down of inventories RO SRR - 14,770 - 14,770
Impairment of goodwill BERNE - - (65,904) (65,904)
Impairment of other intangible assets EmEVEERNE - - (8,732) (8,732)
Impairment of loan and loan interest BRERREDFSRE
receivables - - (56,442) (56,442)
Reportable segment assets IREDHEE 2,303,059 746,564 908,027 3,957,650
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRAREFAHLMEE
BAZEBERE 319,766
Deposits, prepayments and e BETIER
other receivables H it R 26,784
Cash at banks and in hand RIRFERSE 8,245
Other corporate assets: HthRelBE:
- financial assets -SREE 3,272
- non-financial assets —FEREE 411,967
Consolidated total assets REMEE 4,727,684
Additions to non-current segment FRRBHRYNHEE
assets during the year 251,637 170 112,824 364,631
Unallocated A 247,356
611,987
Reportable segment liabilities ARESBEE 349,363 191,730 311,882 852,975
Borrowings EE 1,064,691
Other corporate liabilities: HibARIBE:
- financial liabilities -SHAE 62,176
- non-financial liabilities -FEmaE 22,519
Consolidated total liabilities REBAR 2,002,361
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 6. DEPER (&)
2
Property
Auto Non-auto ~ management
dealership dealership and others Total
\ \ \ \ mEER \
HED FAED REA B&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT THET THT
Revenue from external customers RENMBEE 2 Wias 4,076,322 331,020 118,420 4,525,762
Other income, gains and losses HipA Wiz R EE 36,098 8,160 (48,784) (4,526)
Reportable segment revenue AR ED Pl 4,112,420 339,180 69,636 4,521,236
Reportable segment results ARENPEE 230,045 (39,480) (24,220) 166,345
Other segment information: ApaHas:
Amortisation of other intangible assets HBEYEESE - (39) (9,943) (9,982)
Depreciation of property, nE KBERERENE
plant and equipment (46,061) (31,932) (1,445) (79,438)
Unallocated AR (19,682)
(99,120)
Changes in fair value of investment BRENEZIAEES
properties ) = = (45,630) (45,630
Changes in fair value of investment in fims #&EFRERHE 2
and television program AREED - - (1,004) (1,004)
Written off of other intangible assets EfET A E A - (196) - (196)
Written off of property, plant and equipment #13¢ - # &8 & 2% & #1 84 - (68) - (68)
Write-down of inventories FEME = (14,770) = (14,770)
Reversal of write-down of inventories BOE SR - 7,668 - 7,668
Impairment of goodwill BHERE - = (26,136) (26,136)
Impairment of other intangible assets HiwEWEERE = = (26,866) (26,866)
Reportable segment assets TREFHEE 1,595,965 659,343 1,017,980 3,273,288
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRARETARMEE
BAZSREE 520,088
Deposits, prepayments and e BERER
other receivables Hfth AR 26,068
Cash at banks and in hand ROTRTEASE 28,704
Other corporate assets: EAREE:
- financial assets -CREE 43,620
- non-financial assets —FEREE 194,384
Consolidated total assets REHBEE 4,086,152
Additions to non-current segment FERNREFRDHHEE
assets during the year 96,920 149 74 97,143
Unallocated RO 61,511
158,664
Reportable segment liabilities TREIHEE (530,089) (114,274) (211,789) (856,152)
Borrowings BE (449,912)
Other corporate liabilities: HEtRaEEE:
- financial liabilities -$REE (16,102)
- non-financial liabilities ~Femak (104,690)
Consolidated total liabilities REHEE (1,426,856)
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A reconciliation between the reportable segment results and

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

the Group’s profit before income tax is as follows:

=

HWER (&)

S

pu)

AIRE DI EEHEANERE 2 RIS HA
Al 2 FER AR

2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T T
Reportable segment results AREDIESE 160,135 166,345
Bank interest income RITHE U A 3,776 2,271
Unallocated corporate income AOB A B A 5,845 4,027
Unallocated corporate expenses RO RFAER (87,541) (76,033)
Finance costs Bl & B AN (72,648) (64,486)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 75 Bl & A 9,567 32,124

Major customer

During the reporting period, there is no customer with

transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s
revenue is solely derived from Mainland China and Hong Kong
and all of the Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments are located in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Management determines that the Group is domiciled in
Mainland China and Hong Kong, which are the Group’s

principal operating locations.

8 & R

HRAEE 2 WaERETBERMEE
B ARAEEEHERDEE (ERT
EBRON) SRR P B A3 & 8 - B0
Z25 B E R} o

EEEBETASBEMNSEAMEEE
(HRAKEZTBEEME) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are sale of automobiles and

other merchandised goods and provision of automobile

related after-sales services. Other businesses mainly

i 58

AREE 2 EBERREREME M
EAREHRAERBERRS - EME
BEERRREHERDEEERS REED

represent income from provision of property management FHEER® 2 WA -
services, money lending and property rental services.
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FiE T T
Revenue from contracts with REEFEFEHNZWE:
customers:
Recognised at point in time R [B] 2 W 58
Sales of automobiles MEHE 3,709,351 3,998,437
Sales of other merchandised goods — H b & @ 5 & 437,458 331,020
Recognised over time G B [ 7 57
Provision of after-sales services RREEERG 90,843 77,885
Provision of property management 2t ¥ ¥ EE IR
services 1,059 35,574
Total revenue from contracts REBEFPEHZWZBEE
with customers 4,238,711 4,442,916
Revenue from other sources: H g 50R -
Interest income from provision of REBERS 2 F B A
money lending 5,652 344
Provision of property rental services 2t ¥ % & iR 1% 80,124 82,502
Total A&t 4,324,487 4,525,762
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

Wz #)

KEFEFPAEHZWHEREBEMIIRS

major product or service lines is as follows: BIFEDAT
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T TE T
Types of goods or services: EmSREER:
Auto dealership segment PTE S 5
Sales of automobiles REEE 3,709,351 3,998,437
Provision of after-sales services M E 1% IR 90,843 77,885
3,800,194 4,076,322
Non-auto dealership segment FELE S
Sales of other merchandised goods — E th & 7t & 437,458 331,020
Other segment H 75 55
Provision of property MY EEERE
management services 1,059 35,574
Total revenue from contracts RKEZEFAEHZW
with customers 4,238,711 4,442,916

During both years, all revenue from contracts with customers

were generated from Mainland China and Hong Kong.

RAEFE 2BEFANKERET

M KRB o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMWA WZzKkERE
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-_—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Bank interest income RIT A BMA 3,776 2,271
Bonus from a supplier RE—BfEFZRE - 1,736
Changes in fair value of investment & &M v AR EE
properties (69,999) (45,630)
Changes in fair value of investment HEZBXREREE 2
in films and television program AAREE (3,649) (1,004)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWH¥ -HKEREZEZ
plant and equipment Wzt (&) 6,256 (3,315)
Gain on sales of pre-owned cars HE—_FRE2Mm 2,754 =
Gain on lease modification HE Bk 3,647 8,555
Government grant (Note) AT #E B (B aE) - 702
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE (65,904) (26,136)
Impairment of other intangible assets = b % 2 & & &l (& (8,732) (26,866)
Income from advertising, exhibitions E& B & HE R 2 WA
and other services 32,181 19,950
Income from insurance brokerage IR &AL WA 3,132 21,104
Loss on derecognition of IR —IBEREWEEE
an investment property - (14,717)
Rent concessions He B - 5,412
Others HA 9,577 6,972
Written off of other intangible assets #fl 5 E b i2 & & (44,638) (196)
Written off of property, plant and MSE Y5 MR R
equipment - (68)
(131,599) (51,230)
Note: B 5

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group received
financial support from the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government who set up the Anti-epidemic Fund under the

Employment Support Scheme to encourage entities to retain their

employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the

Employment Support Scheme, the Group is required not to make

redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all of subsidies

on paying salaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

9. OPERATING PROFIT 9.

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

R A

g MeEmiR, (A ATIER :

2022 2021
—E=-= T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T T T
Amortisation of other H b\ & E#HE
intangible assets 10,350 9,982
Auditors’ remuneration ZH AN &
— Audit services — BT R 2,100 2,300
- Non-audit services — T IR TS 295 341
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAEEBRZTFEKA
expenses, including B 3,463,418 3,824,862
— Write-down of inventories — 17 & #UR 24,286 14,770
- Reversal of write-down of — 1 8] 77 & MUR
inventories (14,770) (7,668)
Depreciation of property, M- -HEEREEIITE
plant and equipment 91,143 99,120
Exchange differences, net PE H % E R 573 (2,693)
Employee benefit expenses BEERAMHAXZ 70,192 62,168
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBEMNE 28,806 25,666
Impairment of loan receivables and JEWEZ &JEHQE KA B R E
loan interest receivables (Note) (KT5E) 56,390 =
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE 65,904 26,136
Impairment of other intangible assets H /i £ 2 & & i (& 8,732 26,866
Lease payments under short term HEAE AERIE
leases 2,483 828
Lease payments under variable T AHEEGBHEL
lease payment not included in the AIEMEERIE 2 HEKIA
measurement of lease liabilities 2,736 7,138
Written off of other intangible assets il $5 £ b £ 2 & &= 44,638 196
Written off of property, plant and S D 2 - MBS K AR S
equipment - 68
Note: B -

An impairment analysis was undertaken with reference to the
expected credit loss assessment performed by Masterpiece Valuation
Advisory Limited, an independent qualified valuer, by considering the
probability of default with published credit ratings. As at 31 March
2022, the probability of default applied was 100% and the loss given
default was estimated to be ranged from 61.50% to 61.77%.

2B —EBUAERGEME NI EHRE
RARIBITZBAEEBEIGE EEEA
FERATREREN ZBEETRED -
RZZE-_—F=fA=+—H8 EAZEHHK
% 100% © i #9182 EF &2 T61.50%
£61.77% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. @ E K A<

2022 2021
—=-= T —4&F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBIT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEER B 22,722 20,708
Interest on other loans HEERF S 20,510 17,970
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBMA 28,806 25,666
Imputed interest on convertible bonds 7] # I& (& % & 51 51| & 610 142
72,648 64,486
11. INCOME TAX 11. i
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) BEENEGURRERARBBEEZM
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong ERBEMI6.5% (T = — &
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which 16.5% )5t E A EE —EHE QA
is a qualifying entity and can apply two-tiered rates on the REE_ZTE-_—FK=-T=-_=_F=HA
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong at 8.25% —t+T—HLEFERNEAMEAME LS
on assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any BRERE ERNEEEE G EER
part of assessable profits over HK$2,000,000 for the years vi A1l B 2,000,000/ JT1%8.25%:T & » M
ended 31 March 2021 and 2022. #8382,000,00078 7T Z (E Al BF 73 FE "R i
M A1216.5%5T & °
The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to BHE_ZT-_— k=T =-_=_F=H
income tax at the rate of 25% except that subsidiaries are =+—HIEFE RNEEZFE R
entitled to tax exemption for the years ended 31 March 2021 BN A BRI RSN MM EE - R
and 2022. THEB ARG EERRHATIIE-
2022 2021
—E- 8% e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FB T
Current tax REEHIE
- Income tax of other jurisdictions —HM el ERERTEH
Charge for the year REZELH 5,381 2,730
(Over)/under-provision in BAEFE (BEEE)/
prior years BETR (32) 37
Total current tax REZHRIBATE 5,349 2,767
Deferred tax RIET IR (27,244) (8,420)
(21,895) (5,653)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

1. INCOME TAX (continued) 11. FR 8% (#)
Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at RERAMEAE CMEHEST RN
applicable tax rates: HER
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T T
Profit before income tax B AT 15 %% A A 9,619 32,124
Tax calculated at domestic tax & RARER 2 m N sk E 1R
rates applicable to profit or loss HRAz g E
in the respective jurisdictions FTEZIIA 2,205 8,210
Effect of tax exemption granted i SNEE NIV g
to subsidiaries ST (82,533) (16,833)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BAERBW R 2 HBZ 2 (5,182) (2,956)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A1 X H 2 TS & 62,844 4,165
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIER 2 AE) A fR 18
not recognised BB MBETE 1,523 2,770
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRBFERERZRIE
previously not recognised BRI RETE (720) (1,046)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BEEE) /
BT R (32) 37
(21,895) (5,653)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM <
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-S_—_Hf=A=+—HIEE
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary scheme
fees allowances bonuses contribution Total
RIKEH
EEZHe HEREE  BERAL AR CEH
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
I TET TET TET TET TET
Executive Directors: RnTEE:
Zheng Hao Jiang BET(BREER) (i

(Co-Chairman) 1,980 60 - 44 2,084
Ma Chao (Co-Chairman) SR(MEERE) (i 240 - - 12 252
Zhao Xiaodong HOE(BIER)

(Deputy Chairman) 1,080 60 - 26 1,166
Zhu Lei KE 840 - - - 840
Non-executive Directors: ~ JFEI{TEZE:

Qi Jian Wei RiE2f# (i) 98 - - - 98
Independent non-executive B FHITES:

Directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo =gy 240 - - - 240
Lam Kwok Cheong ME & 240 - - - 240
Gao Yu ST (i) 240 - - - 240
Liu Hongaiang PR (iv) 240 - - - 240
Liu Xiaoyi S ) 240 - - - 240

5,438 120 - 82 5,640

21 8 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43



B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead) 12. EEM < (2
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE-_ZT-_—F=-A=+—HILFE
Retirement
benefit
Directors’  Salaries and  Discretionary scheme
fees  allowances bonuses  contribution Total
EATEN
BZHe FeREM BEBEL  FHEER ast
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I TET TET TET TET TET
Executive Directors: RnTEE:
Zheng Hao Jiang BET(BREER) (i

(Co-Chairman) 1,980 62 - 89 2,077
Ma Chao (Co-Chairman) SR(BEERE) ) 190 = = 10 200
Zhao Xiaodong HOE(BIER)

(Deputy Chairman) 1,080 62 - 17 1,159
Zhu Lei rE 840 - - - 840
Non-executive Directors: ~ JFEI{TEZE:

Qi Jian Wei 2EE (i) 240 - - - 240
Independent non-executive B FFHITES:

Directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo DR 240 - - = 240
Lam Kwok Cheong ME & 240 - - - 240
Gao Yu B (i) 240 = = - 240
Liu Honggiang HER () 240 - - - 240
Liu Xiaoyi S ) 106 - - = 106
Lee Thomas Kang Bor ZER (vi) 232 - - = 232

5,628 124 - 62 5814
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

=

F£=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

220

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

Mr. Ma Chao was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 16 June 2020; and with effect from
8 July 2020, Mr. Ma Chao was appointed as a co-chairman
of the Company. Mr. Ma Chao acts together with Mr. Zheng
Hao Jiang, the existing chairman of the Company, as the co-
chairmen of the Company.

Mr. Qi Jian Wei passed away on 28 August 2021.

Mr. Gao Yu was a non-executive director, and re-designated
as an independent non-executive director with effect from 10
October 2020.

Mr. Liu Honggiang was a non-executive director, and re-
designated as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 13 November 2020.

Mr. Liu Xiaoyi was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 22 October 2020.

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 19 March 2021.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as

an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement

under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments.
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HEt -

(i) RELLETEFATEE H_F_F
FTATRRAEBIFENTES -

v) BEBEERERAGTES H-F
—EEt+—A+=BRBEBIEN
EE-

v) BEREEHR-_ZT-_ZTF+A=-T=
HRREZXRBULIERNITES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 13. EERAMAX

2022 2021
—E- &% T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABIT

Employee costs, including EBEKRA BREREEMHE
directors’ emoluments 59,210 54,765

Contributions to retirement R AR T FT B4R 3

benefits scheme 10,982 7,403
Total employee costs EEKAREE 70,192 62,168

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, no
contribution was forfeited (by the Group on behalf of its
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) under the retirement benefit schemes which
may be used by the Group to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years. Accordingly, no forfeited contribution was
utilised during the years, and as at 31 March 2021 and 2022,
there was no forfeited contribution available to reduce the
Group’s future level of contributions to the retirement benefit
schemes.

(@) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2021: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 12 above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2021: three)
individuals during the year were as follows:

REBEE_E-_—GFR-ZF-__F=A
=t+t—HLEFE BEIKAEHAEE
FA A B AR R SR 4F 5 JE (S R 3R 2 (R (TR
Rt EER (BREBRRENH
HEESBABFAGE ZEEEL 2 #
F) B RAERFEEALESAE R
U 2R i A :ef—E&f%ﬁ::i
=RB=+—8 BEE RIH KA HE

BEARER 2 KRR f?ii%aﬁ‘JquilHﬁ?Kk

7 o

(@ EEBESHFAL

Ezli‘ilﬂ% BEEFALP =£

R MB)ABLRRAE
= HEZHEE R EXH 2%
BoFARNEBME (ZT=—
F:=R)ALTZBemT:

2022 2021

—=E—-= —ET-—%F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FE T FET

Salaries and other benefits e kHAMmET 2,062 3,004
Retirement benefit scheme RARAE T T B 5K

contributions 75 74

2,137 3,078
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13.

(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments payable to the non-director highest
paid individuals fell within the following bands:

EEEANRAX &)
(a) EEEBBEHFAL ()

ENFEERSFALZMEN T
THAa R :

2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—%F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/%& 7T &
1,500,000/% 7T 1 1
2 3
14. DIVIDEND 14. R &

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed by the Company
in respect of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is
based on the following data:

ARAEFARE-B-—ER-F
SCFZASt-RLFERN ER
KB 8 £E B .

BEREFN

ARBEBREEFAAREERENR
BERNDERATHEAE:

2022 2021
—E-= = EE e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Earnings ZR
Earnings for the purposes of ARETEERERRTF 2
basic earnings per share 2 F 34,052 37,527
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BrEESEER 2 TE
shares:
Imputed interest on convertible bonds  A] # % (& %4 ~ FETF B 610 142
Earnings for the purposes of ARstEERESRN 2
diluted earnings per share & F 34,662 37,669
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continuea)

15. BIR &R (#)

2022
—E=-= —E-—%F

Number of shares B4 E
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares for the purposes of basic 388 R h0 A ST 15 B
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

shares:
— Convertible bonds issued —ARRQBBETZ
by the Company AR 1 5

Weighted average number of ordinary §
shares for the purposes of calculating & 3 I hn4& 3 15 8%
diluted earnings per share

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2022 and 2022 is with an anti-dilutive
impact, where interest per ordinary share obtainable on
conversion exceeds basic earnings per share, the amount
presented for the diluted earnings per share is the same as
the basic earnings per share amount. Accordingly, the basic
and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2022 and 2021 are the same.

BEBEEARCFE:

ARFEESRERANZ

5,471,953,447 5,083,691,828

40,000,000 5,689,041

AR ESREERF 2
&

5,511,953,447 5,089,280,869

HE_Z__Fk_FT_—=A1
=T —HLEFE ARHESRESR
- BE i a5 2 BREBRFE
HBTRERRN  FEREENE-
W25z BREERTN S HEEGRE
AEANEFEER Bt 2T =——F
F—_E-_—F=ZA=1+—BHULFEZH
AR E AR R EEE R AAE R o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

224

T - —4#=H=+—H 31 March 2022

_=_

16. Y13 - MBI R RHE

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
THREF REREE RE G
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TAT AT AT AT
At 1 April 2020 R-ZZB-ZEMA-H
Cost XA 935,377 276,035 32,736 1,244,148
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHERAE
impairment (94,836) (175,603) (18,263) (288,702)
Net carrying amount REFHR 840,541 100,432 14,473 955,446
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_2_-—F=-A=t-HLHFE
Opening net carrying amount FONERFE 840,541 100,432 14,473 955,446
Exchange differences ERER 69,648 8,496 1,143 79,287
Additions RNE 59,346 21,653 9,528 90,527
Acquisition of a property holding W8 — ¥ £ 2 A
company 13,464 - - 13,464
Written off busic = (1) (67) (68)
Disposals HeE - (4,482) - (4,482)
Modification of leases HEEB] (13,762) = = (13,762)
Depreciation WE (64,933) (30,752) (3,435) (99,120)
Closing net carrying amount FEREETHE 904,304 95,346 21,642 1,021,292
At 31 March 2021 K‘Zg:—ff-fﬁf'i‘—ﬁ
Cost %N 1,027,104 300,657 44,207 1,371,968
Accumulated depreciation and S MERAE
impairment (122,800) (205,311) (22,565) (350,676)
Net carrying amount REFE 904,304 95,346 21,642 1,021,292
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-__F-A=t+-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount FONREFE 904,304 95,346 21,642 1,021,292
Exchange differences BN ER 37,720 3,581 567 41,868
Additions NE - 6,701 4,686 11,387
Acquisitions of property holding WEMEER DA
companies 487,776 - - 487,776
Disposals & - - (10,040 (10,040
Modification of leases HEEE (71,663) - - (71,663)
Depreciation e (62,675) (24,287) (4,181) (91,143)
Closing net carrying amount EREETHE 1,295,462 81,341 12,674 1,389,477
At 31 March 2022 EA_E::¢EHE+—EI
Cost 1,437,907 313,875 37,066 1,788,848
Accumulated depreciation and %iéﬂﬁ%&iﬁiﬁ
impairment (142,445) (232,534) (24,392) (399,371)
Net carrying amount HRE 8 1,295,462 81,341 12,674 1,389,477

The Group’s land and buildings with carrying amount of

approximately HK$683,419,000 (2021:

HK$693,818,000)

were pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowing facilities

(Note 31).

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43

7R & B AR H 4 %8 49683,419,0005 7T ( =
T — —4F : 693,818,000/ 7T ) Z L ith [
BFERFEALAEEEERE ZER

CEXIDE



B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

_=_

F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

17. LEASE

(a)

The Group as lessee

The Group has lease contracts for building, office

premises,

retail stores. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire the interests in the leasehold land in the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”). Leases of office
buildings generally have lease terms ranging from two to
fifteen years and lease payments are fixed over the lease

terms.

Certain leases of office buildings have lease terms of 12
months or less and the Group did not capitalised these
leases by applying the short-term lease recognition

exemption.

()

Right-of-use assets

bounded warehouses,

showrooms and

17. A&

(a)

TR

AEBEREEA

REZHE

K I8 [ 5E ©

S BN —
_ﬁxETﬁfl\
TREE+AF2HEE Rz
HER

REBEBAREFT BRE R
EE - BEITEE M
RS R 2 AR £ ﬂﬂﬁ¢ln
MET s
58 PR

p==3
E&54-

R1E

RNEME 2 HE R12(E
AU BASERAEHES

RE% YEKZSHERTE
7 o
() EZAEZE
AEEEREEECKES

The movements of the carrying amounts of the

Group’s right-of-use assets during the year are set

out below:

Prepaid lease

BREAZESHEIIMT

payment Buildings Total

ENEE
;IE BF &st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FAE T T T
At 1 April 2020 RZZEZZFMHA—H 527,942 192,826 720,768
Additions NE - 59,346 59,346
Depreciation expense WEEH (16,794) (43,874) (60,668)
Modification of leases HEBE] - (18,762) (13,762)
Exchange differences E 5 =% 43,395 15,950 59,345

As at 31 March 2021 and RZZ_—4F=A=+—HLK

1 April 2021 —E-_—FpPA—H 554,543 210,486 765,029
Additions NE 451,837 - 451,837
Depreciation expense wEER (25,171) (32,325) (57,496)
Modification of leases HEEET - (71,663) (71,663)
Exchange differences & 5 ZE 5 25,806 6,376 32,182
As at 31 March 2022 R-_FE-_—_F=F=+—H 1,007,015 112,874 1,119,889
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

17. LEASE (continued)

(@) The Group as lessee (Continued)
(i) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group’s right-of-use assets in respect
of leasehold land with carrying amount of
approximately HK$557,043,000 (2021:
HK$554,543,000) were pledged to secure certain
bank loans granted to the Group.

17. A& (&)

(@) AKBEEREBEA(E)

() EAREZE (&)

AEEBEEBAEASREL
557,043,000/ 7T (Z T = —
4 : 554,543,000/ 7T ) B 8
HMETH 2 AEEE N
BEANEBER & TR

e~

HA®
(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEEE
2022 2021
—=E=-= = = —%E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT AT
As at 1 April RUA—H 390,546 384,384
New leases e - 59,346
Interest expense MEBA 28,806 25,666
Lease payment HENKIE (49,369) (62,311)
Interest payment FILEAT K (28,806) (25,666)
Modification of leases HEEE] 37,514 (22,317)
Exchange differences N E% 14,310 31,444
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 393,001 390,546
Classified under: DA

Non-current portion JEMEN B 358,121 340,792
Current portion mE B 34,880 49,754
393,001 390,546
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

17. LEASE (continued)
(@) The Group as lessee (Continued)
(ii) Lease liabilities (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

17. A& (&)
(a) AEEEBERBA(H)
(i) EEERE (&)

AREBERIEZ BB

T
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
BRERHEERE FIE RE
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2022 2022
—E- —E-= —E-=
=A=+—-H =ZHA=+-H =ZB=+-—-H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET
Not later than one TER—F
year 60,366 (25,486) 34,880
Later than one year ZR—FEBTNZRME
and not later than
two years 58,637 (23,318) 35,319
Later than two years ZHRMEBTZRAF
and not later
than five years 178,627 (54,996) 123,631
Later than five years %R AF 232,875 (33,704) 199,171
530,505 (137,504) 393,001
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17. LEASE (continued)

(a)

(i)

(iii)

228

17. A& (&)

Information in relation to exemption of HKFRS

The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) TNEBEEREBEA(E)
Lease liabilities (Continued) (i) HEEE(E)
Minimum
lease
payments Interest  Present value
K ERIE ME RE
31 March 31 March 31 March
2021 2021 2021
—E-—14F —E-—4F —E-—F
SE=r—E =EF=Er+—8 Z=Z=ZF=T—=E
HK$ HK$ HK$
7T T 78 TT
Not later than one E2i N
year 74,355 (24,601) 49,754
Later than one year ZR—FETZHMEF
and not later than
two years 70,794 (21,035) 49,759
Later than two years ZRMFENZHREF
and not later
than five years 147,721 (47,904) 99,817
Later than five years %R AF 230,014 (38,798) 191,216
522,884 (132,338) 390,546

(iii) EEHEEEHEHREER

16 Lease: F16% [HE | Z2EH
2022 2021
—E-= —ETE-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi& T THE T
Short term lease expenses HIFRER 2,483 323
Variable lease payments not SrEHEaERTE
included in the measurement SFAZ A EFHKIE
of lease liabilities 2,736 7,138
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. REWXE

2022 2021
—E=-= B —F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAIT

Fair value NIV
At beginning of the year R E] 379,998 408,462
Lease modification HEEET 112,824 =
Changes in fair value NAEEE (69,999) (45,630)
Derecognition IR - (14,717)
Exchange differences E R =% 14,602 31,883
At end of the year RER 437,425 379,998

All investment properties of the Group are situated in
Mainland China and held under medium lease terms.

The Group measured the deferred tax relating to the
temporary differences of these investment properties using
the tax rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the
expected manner of recovery of these investment properties.

During the year, the Group entered into a supplemental
lease agreement, where lessor requested to increase the
original rent. The aggregate value of consideration payable
under the supplemental lease agreement is approximately
RMB302,315,000. No other modification on the terms of
existing lease. Under HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
RMB92,526,000 (approximately HK$112,824,000) of right-of-
use asset as lease modification regarding to this agreement.

AEEZREYMERZELNF B A
I LA BAFE B IRREF A o

AEEFEREKEZERENE A
HA—BZHREEBREAERRZEFR
BMECERER ZELEREA -

RER AEBER Y —HhEaHEi
B - HBEAZRRESRAS -REWH
REEHBRERNZRELBENAARKE
302,315,0007T ° 37,8 18 & {55130 & H 4tb
(EET - RIR BB % W E LR FE165% -
AEEE ERARE2,526,0007T (49
112,824,000/ 7T ) 2 (E A E AL
EEEBE -
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18.

230

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuead)

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 by CHFT Advisory
And Appraisal Limited (“CHFT”), an independent firm of
professional surveyors, on an open market value basis. The
fair value measurement is disclosed in Note 41.7(i) to the
financial statements.

The fair value of the investment property is under level 3 fair
value hierarchy.

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach,
using the term and reversion method, based on the estimated
rental value of the property. The valuation takes account of
the current rents of the property interests, the reversionary
potentials of the tenancies, term yield and reversionary yield,
and reversionary yield is then applied respectively to derive
the market value of property.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

18.

BEWE &)

EGHANTGERAR ([Ey] B
BEEAEMTIN_E_—F=A=1+—
BRk—_FE-_—_F=H=+—HEAAM
BEESEHAEECRENE - A AE
ETERM MR 4. 7()HRE

REMEZANREBE=BRARE
Ao

TE]

AREDERYEZ HHEE AT
5 AR B A M A B - (A R R
WL ERNEBRSRETRONT
B B 5 B BA TR B M 35 R 1 8 Mo
SEEH SR T FE -

EMEREATTERBABETLA
hiESEZ AR

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable inputs to fair value
TAEERAERE
ERTABREBAE NREZBE
2022 2021
—E-CF ==t
Market vield (%) T 4% [E 3§ 2 (%) 6.50 6.50 The higher the market yield,
the lower the
fair value.
MEERERE
AAERIE
Unit market rent BAUMERS 4.00 to 7.00 3.48 10 4.29 The higher the market rent,
(RMB/sqm) (ARE/FHXK) 4.00%7.00 3.48%4.29  the higher the
fair value.
mEAERE
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—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuead)

In addition, as a result of the increased uncertainty, significant
judgement is required when evaluating the inputs used in
the fair value estimate. Reasonably possible changes at the
reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions would have
affected the fair value of the investment property as presented
below:

18.

BEWE &)

BEAN - B TSBABA A =38 00 - BN RE AR
mETAREMABABREELERH
o NiE BH - AR EEREE

AREE ) MEREWMEZ R ARBEBK
FEMT:

2022 2021
—=E=-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET T T
Market yield decreased by 0.5% 5 B &3 X T %0.5%

(2021: 0.5%) —E-—F:05%) 8,254 7,674

Unit market rent decreased by 2.5% BN TEHEE T%K2.5%
(2021: 2.5%) —E-—F:25%) (10,936) (9,500)

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, there were
The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between Levels of the

no transfer into or out of Level 3 or any other Level.

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

AAEREN LI E RS ARERS

(HERAGRTESR) RER-
RBEE-_ZT-_—Fh-_FT-__F=A

ST BLEFE AEEASBHE=
RBEFEMBRR - AREZBRBR
DMRERBEANESRA 2 HEEEE R
THRERZTERE -
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19.

232

GOODWILL

The net carrying amount of goodwill is analysed as follows:

10. B &

BEZIREFEITIT

2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABIT
At cost: DN

At beginning of the year R E ] 809,066 746,931
Exchange differences P E 58 27,509 62,135
At end of the year RER 836,575 809,066

Accumulated impairment: REHRE
At beginning of the year REA] (423,409) (365,953)
Impairment loss recognised R EEE (65,904) (26,136)
Exchange differences MEH =58 (14,040) (31,320)
At end of the year RER (503,353) (423,409)
Net carrying amount BR T F R 333,222 385,657
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19. GOODWILL (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the

10. B8 (&)

PEEERCELBN HBZREAS

cash-generating unit is as follows: FHIAT
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAIT
Auto dealership E D 224,920 216,886
Property management services Y % & 18 AR 108,302 168,771
333,222 385,657

For the purpose of the goodwill impairment test, the directors
determined the recoverable amounts of the CGUs from value-
in-use calculations with reference to the business valuations
performed by management and CHFT, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuers where applicable using the
income approach, i.e. pre-tax cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a detailed five-year

budget plan.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

AEERENANE EFNH2EERE

BRBYEXAERMGEMTED (I

BA)ABAOE (ZEEALERER
CREFZEZAFREE) SHZHA
RengRi) EHZBEME RER
BEAEECTRCEAEM 2T RE S

o

EREEFE ZBRE

LIIINE

2022 2021
—E- 8 == GE
Re: Auto dealership BRI REREH
Growth rate after five-year period hFEHE 2 IERE 0% 0%
Discount rate BRI & 17% 17%
2022 2021
—E- 8% —ER = s
Re: Property management B YEESERK
services
Growth rate after five-year period hEHE2IERE 3% 3%
Discount rate AhIE = 17% 19%
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19.

234

GOODWILL (continued)

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast and
research. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the CGUs.

For the year ended 31 March 2022

One of the sub-lease projects was expired in April 2021
and not be renewed after its expiry, and one of the property
management contracts has been early terminated during the
year ended 31 March 2022 due to the change in properties
ownership which rendered the property management
contract unexecutable; management concluded that there
was indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment by determining the recoverable amounts of
certain items of relevant assets including goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and other intangible assets.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the property
management services has been determined to be
HK$350,274,000 by the directors of the Company with
reference to a value-in-use calculation, using cash flow
projection based on estimates and financial budgets approved
by management covering the remaining lease term of the
property leases with a pre-tax discount rate of 17% as at 31
March 2022.

As at 31 March 2022, based on the result of the assessment,
management determined that the recoverable amount of
the CGU is lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
amount has been allocated to each category of goodwill,
property, plant and equipment such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less cost of disposal of HK$278,117,000
and its value in use of HK$350,274,000. Based on the value
in use calculation and the allocation, impairment losses of
approximately HK$65,904,000 have been recognised against
the carrying amount of goodwill and no class of asset other
than goodwill is impaired.
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10. B8 (&)

ARBRRDBRBEEERR ARESE

B A5 IER Rt 2 Ti5 ) B IER
RETE - AR 2 B RV EHATIEE
YRBRRESELEMBBEZHERR-

BE-—SE-—f=ZA=1+—HLEE

HP—A&EHBEEER_E=—FMWA
B HEWESE MER—HOUES
BEARYMERBEZB MK AT A
T HERBE_TE__F=H=1—
HIEFERIKLE: EEERABLER
B HERBEERBEEES TEA
(BIEEE W3 MR RERmNARAEAMm
BEEE) 2 RE &5 ETRERT
fly o

RZEZZF=A=+—H &2QF
EFC2REREENEECYES
BRGHEeELESU - TREEEA
350,274,000 7t o (£ A EEFTEF AR
BERECEEEEREMERSH
TR HETEE - A AR R17%
ﬁfffﬁi/mgfi EU

R-E-_—_F=F=+—H BEER
BHGERET REeEAEMZAINK
@é%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁoﬁ@@@ﬁﬁm
EHE YE KERBESER BUE
EEERRZEASBIERBEER

HAREREEMKAR278,117,000% 7T &
ﬁ%fﬁ%ON4WﬂBEZKﬂ% iy
RBEREBEEFERIR BEZEEDS
BE B 7 SR (B /85 18 965,904,000 7T, -
i BR Zg 2SN - I A H & B $R Rl 3R R
He
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=

19. GOODWILL (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other possible changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates in auto-dealership.
The recoverable amount of the CGUs exceeded the respective
carrying amount of those units, and therefore no impairment is
required.

For the year ended 31 March 2021

During the year ended 31 March 2021, one of the sub-lease
projects would be expired in April 2021 and management
considered that it would not be renewed after its expiration;
and conducted impairment assessment by determining the
recoverable amounts of certain items of relevant assets
including goodwill, property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the property
management services has been determined to be
HK$497,265,000 by the directors of the Company with
reference to a value-in-use calculation, using cash flow
projection based on estimates and financial budgets approved
by management covering the remaining lease term of the
property leases with a pre-tax discount rate of 19% as at 31
March 2021.

10. B8 (&)

BE-—SE-—f=ZA=1+—-HLEE
(%)

BRriETReELBEN 2 EREER
Ptz & B E RS AR EE R ERE
W ARMBEEMEMAEES S EH L
AHRESHI T ERBAFERELN
o REELBMZ A NEERBEBZ
SEUEAZEESHE  Fit - BAEH
AE

BE-ZE-_—F=A=+—HLEE

REEZE-ZE=-—F=A=+—HILHF
E-EP—EEHEEBR-_Z=—F
MAER MEEERANEMEET
eEE WEARETHBEES TIEE
(BIEEE M HBEREREBUREA
EEEE) 2B &8 ETRER
fily o

R_ZE-_—F=ZF=+—H ARQF
EEEC2BEHAEBEAENEETYES
ERBReELENZAIMBESER
497,265,000% 7T © £ B BT E A AR
BAETREEEENERESMEREH
TRz ETEE LB AR IR R19%
ETReRERASG
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19.

236

GOODWILL (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Continueqd)

As at 31 March 2021, based on the result of the assessment,
management determined that the recoverable amount of
the CGU is lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
amount has been allocated to each category of goodwill,
property, plant and equipment such that the carrying amount
of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use
of HK$497,265,000. Based on the value in use calculation
and the allocation, impairment losses of approximately
HK$26,136,000 have been recognised against the carrying
amount of goodwill and no class of asset other than goodwill
is impaired.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other possible changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates in auto-dealership.
The recoverable amount of the CGUs exceeded the respective
carrying amount of those units, and therefore no impairment is
required.
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10. B8 (&)

BE-—SE-—S=ZA=1+—HLEE
(%)

W_ZE-_—F=Zf=+—10 EEER
BRGAERET REeEABEMZANK
BEBEEREACE RESEEHE
EHE -YME BERIESEN ®
FEEEEN 2 EASRBILERERE
BREAABREEXNANRFEREE
497,265,000/ 70 2 = & o IR REFAE
BEfEERSE FE2FEASHEDER
L (/85 18 #926,136,0007% 7T * i Bk i 2
SN W HE b B EXE R IR R (E -

BRLiETReELENZEREER
Ptz ZBARIN REBEIEERE
Y AMEEEMEMBAIGEE B @G T
AHARBEDH T EMBFERELK
g-HeELBNZAINDERBBEZ
FEUXAZEEERE Bt #AED
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. EERLEE

Customers’
list from
property
management
Trademark Film rights contracts Total
MEBEEHN
) -2 BEF£E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET
At 1 April 2020 R-E-ZEEWA—H
Gross carrying amount REBE 33,163 164,836 130,850 328,849
Accumulated amortisation ZETEERRE
and impairment (82,928) - (15,859) (48,787)
Net carrying amount AREFE 235 164,836 114,991 280,062
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ_-Z_-—F
ZA=+-BLFE
Opening net carrying amount 4 #JBR & /5 58 235 164,836 114,991 280,062
Amortisation i (39) - (9,943) (9,982)
Exchange adjustment fE 5 S - 12,775 9,229 22,004
Impairment VERIE] - (26,866) - (26,866)
Written off e (196) - - (196)
Net carrying amount REFRE - 150,745 114,277 265,022
At 31 March 2021 R-B-—&
=ZA=t—-H
Gross carrying amount REA - 178,571 141,755 320,326
Accumulated amortisation R EERRE
and impairment - (27,826) (27,478) (55,304)
Net carrying amount REFE - 150,745 114,277 265,022
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) HtWELEE (&)
Customers’
list from
property
management
Trademark Film rights contracts Total
NEEBEEHN
[k BYE EFEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FATT FATT FAT THET
Year ended 31 March 2022 BZ_-Z_-Z
ZA=Zt-HLEEE
Opening net carrying amount & #J8R 5 - 150,745 114,277 265,022
Amortisation B - - (10,350) (10,350)
Exchange adjustment [ 5 & - 5,584 3,445 9,029
Impairment B - - (8,732) (8,732)
Written off ik - - (44,638) (44,638)
Closing net carrying amount G 42 BR M 5 58 - 156,329 54,002 210,331
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE-Z
=B=+-—H
Gross carrying amount REERE - 185,185 78,000 263,185
Accumulated amortisation RETEHERAE
and impairment - (28,856) (23,998) (52,854)
Net carrying amount BREF5E = 156,329 54,002 210,331
During the year ended 31 March 2022, a total amount RBEZT-_—_F=A=+—HIHF
of HK$44,638,000 of customers’ list from a property E HRYEREEBSE UHEEH
management contract was written off due to the change of TYHEERE L & $£44,638,000/8
properties ownership which leading the property management TIZYMEBEBENEFPREC M-
contracts became unexecutable.
There is a change in properties ownership of another sub- HRE—EAsHEENYEEEES
lease projects, which leads to an uncertainty in renewing the BOUBMEEESANREIBEES
property management contracts and may be unexecutable. EEATREENT RERWET
The impairment losses of approximately HK$8,732,000 BAHNRFABZEAMSBRERY
have been recognised against the carrying amount of the 8,732,000/ T 2 A B &5 18 o

customers’ list from property management contracts.
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (“FVTOCI”)

21. BRAREFARMBZEBAZ

2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABT
Listed equity securities, ETRABS BARE
at fair value, classified as DEERARBERA
financial assets at FVTOCI HthxEBAZe@EE 319,766 520,088

The balance represented the investment in Bang & Olufsen
A/S, a company incorporated in Denmark, whose shares are
listed on NASDAQ Copenhagen A/S. The fair value was based
on quoted market price as at 31 March 2021 and 2022. The
equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers
this investment to be strategic in nature.

22. BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts due from/(to) non-controlling interests are
unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand.

ZAERRIER Bang & Olufsen A/S (B
BEM Iz Am ERORAETER
FARBRBEDERAR LN 2/E -1
REDER B —FR-IZB__F=
A=+—BABzmGERTE - AR
AEBRBZIEEBREIERE K
RFEE TR WA I E AIRA o EET
AHMEERA -

22, BEFIEIRED ZEER

FEU, (FEAS) SEFERR M 25 2 FRIB R R IR
HR2ERARBREE-
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23. INVENTORIES

24,

240

23. 7 &

2022 2021

—E=-= —ET-—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FB T

Raw materials and consumables R 8 B FE G 32,128 39,290
Film production in progress ERE R 8,446 6,948
Merchandised goods 75 R 1,320,599 649,986
1,361,173 696,224

As at 31 March 2022, merchandised goods of approximately
HK$635,119,000 (2021: HK$47,405,000) have been pledged
to secure the loan facilities (Note 31).

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

(a)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent rental receivable from
tenants, and sales from customers. The Group’s trading
terms with its retail customers are mainly receipts in
advance from customers or cash on delivery, except for
certain transactions with creditworthy customers where
the credit period is extendable up to three months,
whereas the trading terms with wholesale customers
are generally one to two months. In addition, the Group
generally provides a credit term of two to three months
to automobile manufacturers for the in-warranty after-
sales services. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding trade receivables and has
a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the management.

24,

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
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TE-__F=ZA=+—B BH

#1635,119,0008 L (=& = — & :
47,405,000/8 ) EEEH - LLEUISE R
mE (FsE31) -

W E 5 IR BRE AR
Be AHFEREMER

IH

(a)

FEW & 5 7R

W E ZFAEREKEFES T
FHER AEERTERF 2[H
MR B HEREERFARERKES
R EETEREERFNEFZ
X SELERRZ=HAZEE
B MELBEER 2B SR
A—RAH—=MEA -t &K
SE—RHRE A 2 ERIRFR
MERERRERNE=EAZEE
H o REBSREREZEARKD Z
FEWE 5508 - U I E 5 E BRI
RABEERRBERE - EEE
IR AR
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuead)

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as

24,

W E 5 5IE - BRE AR
Be RAHTEREMER

FIE (&)

(@) FEWESFE (&)

RBEHRENERAH 2 EKE
SRR LZREOTAT

follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
& T T T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 19,183 15,976
31 - 120 days 312120H 8,640 2,513
27,823 18,489

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor credit-
impaired related to certain customers from whom there

was no recent history of default.

(b) Loan receivables

RBRTEEEREZ BKE S K
RAYEETIPTEEOLEZE
FE®E-

(b) EWER

2022 2021
—=E—-= FEs — —%E
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FET FET
Loans to independent MBIE=FER:
third parties:
- Loan A —ExH (i) 57,943 58,000
- Loan B —BRZ (ii) 32,000 32,000
89,943 90,000
Impairment allowance VERIERE (iii) (55,472) =
34,471 90,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuead)

242

(b)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

The Group entered into the loan agreement on 4 March
2021 with the independent third party with a principal
amount of HK$58,000,000 for a term of 12 months,
bearing interest at a rate of 6.5% per annum. The loan
is secured by a charge over receivables of the borrower
executed by the borrower; and a personal guarantee
executed by the guarantor. Pursuant to the terms of the
loan agreement, the borrower shall pay quarterly interests
on the loan and shall fully repay the loan together with
all outstanding accrued interest payable under the loan
agreement to the lender on the maturity date on 4 March
2022. The borrower had been paying the quarterly
interests on the loan to the lender on time during the
term of the loan agreement. The borrower, however, failed
to repay the loan with outstanding principal amount of
HK$57,943,000 and the accrued interest of HK$929,000
on the maturity date and still fails to do so up to the
date of this report. The Group has sought legal advice
and issued demand letters to the borrower and the
guarantor and has on 20 April 2022 commenced legal
action against the borrower and the guarantor by Writs of
Summon filed in the High Court of Hong Kong with a view
to recovering the loan and other loss and damages.

24. RREZRE BRERUR
Be RAHTEREMER

IE (&)

(b)

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
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BWER (&)

B 3 :

(i)

R-ZE-_—F=AMWH A&H
B—Z2BITE =L ERH
# ' N4 %8 558,000,000 T
#1218 A - R F A E6.5%5T
B o 5% B FRUAE FA B EL FE IR
BEM PR RERAZELZE
AEREER - BIBE R
B BERABEZTEXFER
FE WER-ZE-_—_F=A
HEHBRERAZHEEEE
FURBBERBEEMNAE
MAREEETFE fBRA—HE
£ B 51 1 +% HARR MR B [ B 3K
ASZHEROEEFE - A -
BRAREEIHABEER Y
KB E AN & 557,943,000/ 7T
X jE 51 F) B.929,000/ 7T 0 I
ANiRE AE AL ARBEER - A
SEESKERER  MERA
RERABRESR YER=
T —FMA-+HBBRES
B AR M EM S REER
AFPERARBAEFNR B
BERRHEMBARARBERE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

_=_

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continuead)

(b)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(ifl)

The Group entered into the loan agreement on 22 March
2021 with the independent third party with a principal
amount of HK$32,000,000 for a term of 12 months,
bearing interest at a rate of 7% per annum. The loan
is secured by a personal guarantee executed by the
guarantor. Pursuant to the terms of the loan agreement,
the borrower shall pay quarterly interests on the loan and
shall fully repay the loan together with all outstanding
accrued interest payable under the loan agreement to
the lender on the maturity date on 22 March 2022. The
borrower had been paying the quarterly interests on the
loan to the lender on time during the term of the loan
agreement. The borrower, however, failed to repay the
loan with outstanding principal amount of HK$32,000,000
and the accrued interest of HK$560,000 on the maturity
date and still fails to do so up to the date of this report.
The Group has sought legal advice and issued demand
letters to the borrower and the guarantor and has on 29
April 2022 commenced legal action against the borrower
and the guarantor by Writs of Summon filed in the High
Court of Hong Kong with a view to recovering the loan
and other loss and damages.

Management performed an impairment analysis with
reference to the expected credit loss assessment
performed by Masterpiece Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Masterpiece”), an independent firm professionally
qualified valuer, by considering the probability of default
with published credit ratings. As at 31 March 2022,
the probability of default applied 100% (2021: ranged
from 0.44% to 5.37%) and the loss given default was
estimated to be ranged from 61.50% to 61.77% (2021:
ranged from 0% to 62.08%). During the year ended
31 March 2021, loss allowance of HK$81,000 is not
provided as the provision are immaterial.

24. EIRE B F
e FEHE
I\ (&)

(b)

P& W & =X

RIE - BWERUK
RIE K H fth FE UL

(%)

BfsE : (#&)

(if)

(i)

RZE-_—F=A=-+-H" 'K
EEE—EBIE=HAUE
i - & ¥ /32,000,0007
T AHI2E A EEFERT%
AR ZEFUERAELZE
ABRERR - RIBEER 2
TRk hmAﬁ?éﬁiHEm
ME WERZZTEZ_F=H
Zt+ZBIRHARERAZEE
BE R RIREE 2 E A
FTE M AR EEFERT B o fERA
— B £ B 3K 15 & HA PR P % B )
BRAZMNEROEEFE R
- ERAREEIHBEEE
2 A B 38 7N & $832,000,000
7 7T N FE 5T F1) £.560,00078 7T
i§$ﬁ¢5%%¢m$%=

AEEBERERZER M
%ﬁA&E%A%ﬁ&%@vﬂ
BERZTE-Z=_FWMA=-t+1H
BBRABERSERRERNE
ML MRE B RATERARE
ERWHR BRI ERREMIBA
RIBEEE-

EEEC2R—EBUEELA
BEEMITENFEDABR
ARl ([BAH])BITZEHEE
BRI BEERARERIR
PIREL 2 BEEITREDN
R—ZF-_—_F=A=+—H &
RAZEHOHEI00% (T =—
F:NF0.44%E5.37% ) ' M
BHBRGET AN T61.50%%
61.77% (ZZE=—F : N F0%
£62.08%) - REBE_T=—%F
ZA=ET—HIEFE aREE
WAEKX  WIEHREBEKR
81,0008 7T °
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

244

RECEIVABLES (continuead)

(c) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

24. RREZRE BRERUR
Be RAHTEREMER

IE (&)

(c) &% AMFEAREMEYRKE

2022 2021

—E- 8 T —%F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000

B 5 FE T T T

Deposits e a 36,884 43,390

Other receivables H A FE YR IB 99,328 108,230

Prepayments TEBRIE 89,910 34,686

Loan interest receivables & U & X F| B 1,489 344
Value-added tax AT 4 (B 1 (B A

recoverable 44,196 3,790

271,807 190,440

Impairment allowance VERIEREEiS 24 (b)(iii) (918) -

270,889 190,440
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION 25. REEXRERTE
PROGRAM
2022 2021
—=E=-= —T -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Investment in films, at fair value RESY EAnBEFABRE
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 31,830 30,346
Investment in television program, HEEBREE R ASLBERA
at FVTPL Bk 31,907 34,677
63,737 65,023

The amount represents investment projects with certain
production houses for co-production of films and television
program. The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements whereby the Group is entitled to benefits
generated from the distribution of these films and television
program.

The Group’s investment in films and television program
were revalued on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 by
CHFT, an independent firm of professional surveyors. Fair
value is determined by applying the income approach, using
the discounted cash flow method, based on the estimated
distribution income of the films. The valuation takes account
of expected income generated from the box offices receipts
and other income streams. The discount rates have been
adjusted for the marketability and current market conditions.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #i1BKEl R E B E R 2 7

ZHBEERETRHABARREEY R
ERMBCREERRE REREXIEH
WHERE B AEEBEEEAETZ
SEFLEAHBEEE S

£ (BUEEREMTIR-_Z=_—F
—A=+—HBER=ZE=_—F=H=+—
HEMAEE s REST NERLHH -
NAERBBANE ERNEL 2T E
TWAFERMRBRESREEETE 1A
At REHRRE Y RE AT E WA RIR
EEZWA-BARRE AT HIE K& Al
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION
PROGRAM (continued)

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

25 RESEFZRERHGE (#)

HEREATATEERGARBZANE
ATEABZERM:

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Significant unobservable inputs to fair value
FHEREABE
ERTAHEE ARIE HAREBEZBR
2022 2021
—ZE2- — T —%F
Average returns SE 5 [y &= 22.1% to 96.2% Ranging from The higher the average
22.1%%E96.2% 22.1% to 96.2% returns, the higher
T the fair value.

Discount rate Ak 38 =& 26.2% to 39.4%
26.2% %£39.4%

In addition, as a result of the increased uncertainty, significant
judgement is required when evaluating the inputs used in
the fair value estimate. Reasonably possible changes at the
reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions would have
affected the fair value of the investment in films and television
program as presented below:

22.1%%£96.2%  FHEBREWE -
DAE#R e

25.5% to 32.3% The higher the
25.5%%32.3% discount rate, the
lowerer the fair value.

BRI -
ARERIE -

SN - A B BA R IE pn - SR R (G
At AR EMRBAERBELERH
- NmER S HERKRNBEEFNESE
AREED KHREEZRERMBEZ
DNAEBREZENT:

2022 2021
—E-CE —E - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T

Average returns decreased 18 R T 5%
by 5% (2021: 5%) (ZE=—4%:5%) (1,813) (1,872)

Discount rate decreased BLIR 1%

by 1% (2021: 1%) —E-—F:1%) 645 544
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

— T _F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

=

25. INVESTMENT IN FILMS AND TELEVISION

PROGRAM (continued)

Reconciliation for investment in films and television program
carried at fair value based on significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) are as follows:

25. REEF

EREE (2

BEREATABRGABBEZAAE
(B=F)IERE2REEFZLEREA H
BRANK :

2022 2021

—E- 8 —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T T T

At beginning of the year REA] 65,023 28,777
Additions NE - 33,684
Changes in fair value NAEEY (3,649) (1,004)
Exchange differences PE R =% 2,363 3,566
At end of the year RER 63,737 65,023

The Group acquired the investments through the acquisition
of San Sparkle International Investment Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “San Sparkle Group”) during
the year ended 31 March 2019. Pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement, the Group conditionally agreed to
purchase and the vendor conditionally agreed to sell the
entire equity interests of the San Sparkle Group at an initial
consideration of issue of 340,000,000 shares of the Company
and the contingent consideration, in which the Company
will issue the convertible bonds with reference to a formula
as stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement, in the
event that the financial performance of the San Sparkle
Group meets the designated targets within the three years
ended 31 December 2021 in any reporting period since
the date of acquisition (i.e. 17 January 2019). As at the
date of acquisition and 31 March 2021, the fair value of the
contingent consideration was assessed to be minimal, based
on the budgeted profit after tax of the San Sparkle Group,
probability of issuance of the convertible bonds and fair value
of the convertible bonds. For the year ended 31 March 2022,
since the San Sparkle Group did not reach the designated
targets within the period, therefore, no convertible bonds is
issued.

@E*%ﬁ*ﬂﬁiﬂz‘kfﬁﬂ:ﬁ
OV 1B UYL ER R BT A B R 38 B
[ /NE] /H\Fﬁ% A (A1 [ RBEHR
£B)BARE-RBREBEEEHZ &%
EERHEREEEMESABKHRE D
ERREREE 22 ERE MR KRE
#3%%17340,000,00008 A" 22 AIAR 15+ ik
ARERMBREHMEE M BRIRE
KBS (I =ZE—hF—A+tH)E
REBEZE-_T-_—F+-H=+—HI=
B EANERRERMEBIEERZ -
IR AR EZEEE REMIAANE
TAMERESF RERBRR T - —
FZA=1+—H BEEBFFEEZ
BEBRB RN BITAARES 2 7]
Ab’li&—ﬁﬁﬂxf HFZARNE HARE
ZA/ME?&.:WE%W?ﬁ%( %Zi_Q
HREETENPRNEBUEERFE W
WRBHITARRES -

JTIHW%
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26.

248

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
BANKS AND IN HAND

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. As at 31 March 2022, the deposits bore
interest rates ranging from 0.3%-1.95% (2021: 0.01% to
2.28% per annum) which are close to the market interest
rates.

The Group’s deposits of HK$84,111,000 (2021:
HK$200,495,000) have been pledged to secure loan facilities
granted to the Group (Note 31), which will be released upon
the settlement of the relevant borrowings.

As at 31 March 2022, the cash at banks and in hand and
pledged deposits of the Group which were dominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and held in Mainland China were
HK$213,493,000 (2021: HK$409,007,000). RMB is not
a freely convertible currency. Under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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26. EEREFERUARBITRFE

B

RITH &2 F 2 THRE BRITFHA =X
WEBHHE R T - —F=F=+—
B 7 RAFEFENF0.83%E1.95%
(ZZ2EZ—F:FMNENF0.01%E
2.28% ) &2 - BRI TG F 3K o

ANEE 2 F584,111,0008 T (=&
— — 4 :200,495,000/ 7T ) E T K 3 -
REASEER 2 EREEEER (KT
31) HFRERENEREBEEERR-

RZEBE-_—_F#=ZA=Z+—H ' &%
BEHERTEFERES RERBEFXK
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27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION HhREREER
(a) Reconciliation of Acquisition of property holding (a) WBYMHEZERDRZHE
companies
The table below details the assets and liabilities acquired TREFFNMEZER A RIWEEER
in the acquisitions of property holding companies, FlkErEEREBE ERAEE
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash ZEEHeERERTHERIRER
flows as cash flows from investing activities. BoIREME -
2022
T
HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 413 - #28 K=& (M 3E16) (487,776)
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 FIE (8,185)
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERE (7,803)
Receipts in advance, accrued charges  TEUWHIE - BT & A & E Ath & - 5018
and other payables 4,908
Non-controlling interests I 12 i 7 159,843
Total consideration paid in cash BENEeRELEE (339,013)
Less: cash of subsidiary acquired BoEBWENBRAR RS 7,803
Acquisition of property holding WEDEZERAR -HIKREWER:
companies — net of cash acquired (331,210)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METHFELEERYEER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRARSEREGTHMELEEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- ZEH(BREHEeRIRCES)
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities FE-REEDFELABRET
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash REREGLXARBEREFS
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated RAKEGERENER S E AR
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing BEFHEeRECARE
activities.
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27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

7. HIREREER (&)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) METBFELEBHER(£E)
activities (Continued)
Amounts due
to non- Convertible
controlling bonds - debt Lease
interests Borrowings component liabilities Total
EfS 12 1t TRRES
E#7E Ep g HEEE &it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiEx TERL T TER
(Note 22) (Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 17)
(Hsk22) (HizEs1) (H3E32) (HE17)
s 1 April 2021 RZE-—-4¥NA-A 9,999 449,912 8,135 390,546 858,592
Changes from financing cash  BLER&FEE
flows:
Advances from non-controlling Hi B2 A 3F B E R 2 3
interests of subsidiaries 1,022 - - - 1,022
Proceeds from new borrowings #IEE & 2 F5 508 - 4,206,909 - - 4,206,909
Repayment of borrowings BERRE - (3,608,644) - - (3,608,644)
Interest paid on borrowings £ & ZERFIE - (43,232) - - (43,232)
Interest paid on lease liabilties HE& &2 2 F| 8 - - - (28,806) (28,806)
Payment for lease liabilties ~ HEEENH - - - (49,369) (49,369)
Total changes from financing  BER&FELHEE
cash flows 1,022 555,033 - (78,175) 477,880
Exchange adjustments el 399 16,514 - 14,310 31,223
Other changes: s
Interest on borrowings BEEZHE - 43,232 - - 43,232
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZFIE - - - 28,806 28,806
Imputed interest on aRES 2B S
convertible bond - - 610 - 610
Modification of leases HEEE - - - 37,514 37,514
Rent concession HEER - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 W-E--%#=fA=1+-H 11,420 1,064,691 8,745 393,001 1,471,857
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F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

27. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

Amounts due

7. HIREREER (&)

(b) MEFBFRELEREHRK(F)

to non- Convertible
controlling bonds - debt Lease
interests Borrowings component liabilities Total
JEfTIEEER mHRRES
ErnE BE EBHH HEAE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL TET TAR TET
(Note 22) (Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 17)
(Hi322) (i7Es1) (P5E32) (MizE17)
As 1 April 2020 RZE-Z4MA-A 11,915 755,376 - 384,384 1,151,675
Changes from financing cash B ERETES
flows:
Advances to non-controling 4 FHIBA AFEERER BT
interests of subsidiaries (2,934) - - - (2,934)
Net proceeds from ARBHFMEHEFE
convertible bonds - - 81,301 - 81,301
Proceeds from new borrowings ¥732f & 7 Frig 78 - 3,775,666 - - 3,775,666
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - (4,175,265) - - (4,175,265)
Interest paid on borrowings & ZEMFE - (38,678) - - (38,678)
Interest paid on lease liabilties HE& &2 2 F| 8 - - - (25,666) (25,666)
Payment for lease liabilties ~ HEBENH - - - (56,899) (56,899)
Total changes from financing BERERELBHEE
cash flows (2,934) (438,277) 81,301 (82,565) (442,475)
Exchange adjustments BB 1,018 68,242 - 31,444 100,704
Other changes: s
Interest on borrowings BEZHE - 38,678 - 38,678
Interest on lease liabllities HERRZHE - - - 25,666 25,666
Imputed interest on aRES 2B S
convertible bond - - 142 - 142
Conversion into ordinary shares &1 A # Kk - - (73,308) - (73,308)
Addition of lease liabilities MEREERE - - - 59,346 59,346
Addition of bills payable MERENER - 25,893 - - 25,893
Modification of leases HEET - - - (22,317) (22,317)
Rent concession HEER - - - (5,412) (5,412)
At 31 March 2021 W-E--%=ZfA=1+-H 9,999 449,912 8,135 390,546 858,592
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28.

29.

252

TRADE PAYABLES 28. EHE ZME
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based RBERARERNZZAH L ENE SR
on the invoice dates as at the end of the reporting period: B2 R
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-_—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 7,838 Sl
31 - 60 days 31Z260H 134,379 26,645
61 — 90 days 61£290H - -
Over 90 days @m0 H 632 1,630
142,849 28,306
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. EHEE
2022 2021
—E- 8% T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Contract liabilities arising from LTHEELEZANAERE
Sales of goods SHEEm 195,632 292,925
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—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 20. B /& #)
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEED
2022 2021
—E-CHE T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABIT
At 1 April AU A—H 292,925 186,972
Decrease as a result of recognising B 4 A & 52 U4 25 1M s
revenue during the year (292,925) (186,972)
Increase as a result of receipts in  FE B 4 E & & I8 M 15 0
advance of sales of goods 195,632 292,925
At 31 March R=AR=+—8 195,632 292,925
The contract liabilities are related to the advance ERBEERTEREMEREE (K
considerations received from the customers for sales of WERBERMEFRZNAE REARE @
automobiles and other merchandised goods, revenue from BITBRABEARBR)WEREREPZ
which is recognised when the performance obligation TERRERR -
is satisfied by delivering the automobiles and other
merchandised goods to the customers.
30. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED 30. AW RE EFERAKRHEM
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES P& 14 R 18
2022 2021
—E-= o3 = —4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Refundable rental deposits and AREMHcEe RTEKREFPKIE
receipts in advance from
customers 34,125 38,244
Accrued charges and other FEET & A K B th FE 1 5RIE
payables 93,267 126,122
127,392 164,366
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—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

31. BORROWINGS 31. B &
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T THE T
Current Vi)

Bank loans RITEX 178,635 177,813
Other loans E B 663,834 158,243
842,469 336,056

Non-current JERE
Bank loans RITEF 222,222 113,856
Total & &t 1,064,691 449,912

Effective interest rates per annum BB FF K& EF :
in range of:
— fixed rate borrowings

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

1.64% to 8.5%
1.64%%£8.5%

1.59% to 8.50%
1.69%%8.50%

AEEARENEERELT

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAET

Expiring within one year R—FERNER 62,558 355,765
Expiring in the second to REZEZERFA

fifth year inclusive (BREEEMTE)EM 285,440 402,678

347,997 758,443
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F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The borrowings are denominated in RMB and HK$.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2022, certain inventories (Note 23)
and pledged deposits (Note 26) were pledged to secure the
loan facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2022, the Group’s certain property,
plant and equipment (Note 16) were pledged to secure the loan
facilities granted to the Group.

Certain borrowings were secured by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022.

Certain borrowings were secured by guarantees executed by a
director of the Group and a director of a PRC subsidiary during
the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2022.

Certain borrowings were secured by guarantees executed by a
former controlling shareholder of the Company during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2022.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2022, certain borrowings were
secured by guarantee of state-owned enterprise of the PRC.

As at 31 March 2021, certain borrowings were secured by the
properties held by an independent third party.

31. BE (&)

Mo :

DH|’

(i) ZEEBEUARE RSB TEE-

—E - FR=-ZZTF=-Z_F=AH
+—RB BTEFE (fF23) REE
HER (HF26) EHEE  EAEAEE
ERZEFREZER-

iy ®

iy RZTFEZ—FRZ-ZZT=-_=_F=H
=+—H AEEETYE HBIER
& (Ffat16) B EMR  ERAKBEER

ZERMEZER-

vy, REEZZT-_—FR-_ZT__F= H
=+—HLFE HATEBEHAEAD
&%¥W§2u242¢¥ﬁ%¢#

v) REE-ZT-_—FEK-_T-_—_F=H
=t ALFE ETEEHIER
—Z2EFR—RAPEHRBAG 2 —%
EEHEVCEREER-

vy REBEEZ_ZT=_—FR-_T-_—_%=A
=t HLEE ETHEEHAQA
— AR R R B 2 ERIEER -

Vi) RZE-_—FR_FT_-_—_F=HA
=t+—B - &ETEREHTBEEARE
ZERIEER-

(viiy R=ZFE=——F=A=+—H ETEE

H—BBYE=MENEEER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

32.

256

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued zero coupon convertible bonds
with aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
three independent third parties on 9 February 2021, 23
February 2021 and 9 March 2021.
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The convertible

The convertible bonds

bonds will mature in three years from the issue date at their
principal amount or can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at the holder’s option at a conversion price
of HK$0.25 per share at anytime from the issue date to the
maturity date. Unless previously converted or cancelled, the
Company shall redeem all the outstanding convertible bonds
on the maturity date at a redemption amount equivalent to
100% of the outstanding principal. Neither the Company
nor the convertible bondholders shall have the right to early

redeem the convertible bonds.

The fair values of the liability component was determined at
the issuance of the convertible bonds. The fair value of the
liability component, was calculated using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bonds. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion

component, is included in shareholders’ equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continuead)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
has received conversion notices from the convertible
bondholders to exercise the conversion rights attached to
the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amounts of
HK$90,000,000. Accordingly, the Company has allotted and
issued 220,000,000 shares and 140,000,000 shares to the
convertible bondholders at conversion price of HK$0.25 per

share on 2 March 2021 and 11 March 2021 respectively.

The movements of the convertible bonds are set out below:

32. TARES (&)

RBE-B-—F=A=+—F1
FE AANERITRRESSA

AN 2 EiE

TR

ol

90,000,000/ JT 2 7] # % & % F7 b &5

ZEmgE-Ait ARATER

— = —

=

FZA-_HERZ-_ZTE-_—4F=ZA+—H
2 RIRE IR E FIR0.2578 TR 8 R BT
220,000,000/% % 13 2.140,000,0008% A%
DT AMBRESFFEEAC

AR E S BB T :

Debt Conversion

component component Total
BERS ERI S =)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FATT FET FAET

Proceeds from issue of convertible — ZE{TAI IR E5H 2 TS5 A
bonds 81,301 18,699 100,000
Imputed interest expense (Note 10) & &M E X (K3E10) 142 = 142
Conversion into ordinary shares EiRRLmR (73,308) (16,752) (90,060)
At 31 March 2021 RZBEZ-—F=RA=+—H 8,135 1,947 10,082
Imputed interest expense (Note 10) & F| 25 (Hi3E10) 610 - 610
At 31 March 2022 R—_B-_—_#=F=+—H 8,745 1,947 10,692
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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33. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences

under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when

the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2022 is as follows:

33.

i SE B H

I FE BB T RS B % - (2 PR
R EARE AT
CERE

REBEE-_E-_—FF T -—_&F=A
=+ BULEFE ERAHBERREE
BRZELEHBEEZEFHUMT

Temporary
difference on Right-of- Business
inventories use assets combination Total
rEZ
ERZE (RAREE XBAH Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZTFHA—A 640 52,594 28,752 81,986
Credited to profit or loss STABEER - (5,934) (2,486) (8,420)
Exchange differences &N =% = 2,316 2,307 4,623
At 31 March 2021 and WZT-—4F
1 April 2021 =A=+—-B8k
—E-—fF
MAE—H 640 48,976 28,573 78,189
Credited to profit or loss FTABRE - (11,314) (15,930) (27,244)
Exchange differences bE 5 = 58 - 1,659 861 2,520
At 31 March 2022 i S
=A=+—8H 640 39,321 13,504 53,465
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$135,921,000
(2021: HK$131,034,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
The tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$8,384,000 (2021: HK$8,437,000) will be expired if they
are not utilised to set off against the taxable profits within five
years from the year in which they arose under the current tax
legislation in Mainland China. The tax losses arising in Hong
Kong do not expire under current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries because the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is
not probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future. Such unremitted earnings associated
with investments in subsidiaries totalled approximately
HK$1,477,846,000 as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$1,211,624,000).

33. EERIE ()

RNEE W ARH R IEE B ERIET
1B & E #9135,921,0008 7L (—Z T = —
% :131,034,000%8 ) " RAABB@H
BHRZEERRERTANEEER
P FE SR Bt A LA S B 18 o fiw o B AT 3
B4 FIAKE#8,384,0008 7T (=&
— — 1 :8,437,0008 L) KA EEFE
AT A F A RIBIEF B A IRTITR A
LA SHE R B A - A ZERIEEE K
BB -REBEEZHBEBRERT
FUOEATEEIH -

HRARBIEHE THE AR ZKE
R MERZEZEDKRAER AR AR
o U ERZSMBARRABERR
FMEMZENGECEEREAEE-
R_TE-_—F=ZA=+—8 HBZZK
BARIBREEACRBERNE £
#1,477,846,0008 L (=2 = —F:
1,211,624,000/% 7T ) °

SHARE CAPITAL 34. BRA&
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZiEKE R &%
HK$’000
T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each &% {E0.002/% 7T 2 & @ %
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, R-ZZE_ZFPPA—H-
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 —ZET-—=A=+—H"
—E—HFHNA-HBRK
— B —_F#=H=+—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continuea) 34. KA (&)
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$’000
R4 & B TEL B B FAET
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRGCTEMR:

At beginning of the year RER 5,471,953,447 10,944 4,793,453,447 9,587
Placing of shares (Note (i) RRERD (MFE@)) - - 318,500,000 637
Issue of new shares (Note (ii)) BATHARAD (B aE (i) - - 360,000,000 720
At end of the year RELR 5,471,953,447 10,944 5,471,953,447 10,944

Notes: M3 -
(i) On 4 June 2020, the Company entered into a placing (i) RZZE-_ZFNANAE  NAREBE
agreement with the independent third party to place F=FEIMNEE W ARE AR
R EE0.157%8 T fid 318,500,000

318,500,000 new ordinary shares at the placing price of
HK$0.157 under general mandate. Following the completion
of the placing of shares on 15 June 2020, the amounts
of HK$637,000 and HK$49,367,000 were credited to the
Company’s share capital and share premium account
respectively.

(if) During the year ended 31 March 2021, an aggregate of
360,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at conversion price of
HK$0.25 per share upon the conversion of convertible bonds
(Note 32). The issue of ordinary shares resulted in the increase
in the issued share capital of HK$720,000 and share premium
account of HK$89,340,000.

35. RESERVES 35.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

260 NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

35. RESERVES (continuea) 35. fw#fE (&)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arose from waiver of interest on convertible
notes by a shareholder of the Company in prior years.

Special reserve

Special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Company and
the nominal amount of the shares issued for the acquisition
under a group reorganisation in prior years.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Group arose from (a) the
Company’s transfers of certain amounts of share premium
balance to the contributed surplus account, following the
approvals obtained from the Company's shareholders, (b)
transfer from share option reserve due to forfeiture or lapse
of share options, and (c) dividends paid out in prior years and
share repurchases.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents the differences between
the considerations and (a) the carrying amount of the partial
interests in subsidiaries disposed of; and (b) the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests acquired.

EARfHE

BEARBIAARR —BRRREEF
EHRRABRBERMNEESE-

BRI E

REBE 2 BRI EBREAREKENE L
AR E BRERMD I EERNBESF
EEITEBEAR SWBMET RN
HEEMEZEZR -

BAEER

REBZHANBRTVBEBATTAE
£ (@BEBARATRRA LR AQF
BERETRMEEEHTBEEBARR
AR - (D) DR Y R s 2 = B B i Sk 2 B
BEREEES L ROBEFEIKMK
B RETRAEBOE -

SNEREE
SNERRBRELBBREBIIEBHG
BRZFABINEZRE

Hftfd
HifEEEEHRRERQMEEZHD

MEBLRERD 2 RES R Lo)TiKE
ZHERES RASBEME ZEZR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

35.

36.

262

RESERVES (continued)

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents appropriations of profits retained
by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. In accordance with
the respective articles of association of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries, they are required to appropriate amount not
less than 10% of their profits after income tax to statutory
reserve each year, until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Such a reserve may be used to reduce
any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of equity investment designated at FVTOCI under
HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible bonds relating
to the equity component (i.e. option to convert the debt into
share capital).

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012,
the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted. The Scheme shall remain valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from 20 August 2012, being
the date on which the scheme was deemed to take effect in
accordance with the terms.

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees,
including executive directors, suppliers, customers, advisers
or consultants and joint venture partners or business alliances
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

35.

36.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (continueq)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company'’s ordinary shares.

There was no share option outstanding under the Scheme as
at 31 March 2021 and 2022.

36. UM AERZEEHE

(%)

EREARBBRELMEZBTRAT
AR AR X T &I 2 BB AR P8 B 2 iR
NEBTERBARR RN ERRRED #
T Z210%  FE R EAR R BBIRE K%
HEZBERT REFM—FARIRETE
MEAAZBRERS R 2BRMHEE T
FHBARR RN ERR RS BETRG
1% BT ETERRIBILIERTEEZ
BIREMBRERNARRAZ0.1%HEE
B8 385,000,000/ 7T * Bl W78 S AR
REPRERHLAE

Rz B B AR R H B #EET21
B AR R AR AL SRR RER
BXM1BT - BRI NERGARE
REBEW T BFERMETE -17RE
BRARREFTETE HENSERERD
REHBREBRAZBHE ROR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. REHEAE
(a) Group as lessor (a) AEBEEHBHBAA

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable

REE R - RIFT Al BH A& =
R R FERERB RN

operating lease is as follows: B
2022 2021
—E- 8% T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABT
Within one year —F R 80,875 56,020
Later than one year but not later LN —FETZAME
than two years 75,046 43,637
Later than two year but not later ZHRMEERZR=F
than three years 63,238 38,360
Later than three year but not later ZR=ZFERTZRNF
than four years 55,477 29,520
Later than four year but not later ZRUFEENZRASF
than five years 50,495 25,171
Later than five years ZHRAF 158,352 103,626
483,483 296,334
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 38.

During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group also had the following
significant transactions with related parties:

(a) Related party transactions

B Bk 05 4 R
FRBRAVERREMEBO ARE
EINAREETEEREB T ETTIINE
KRR :

(a) BELIXZ

2022 2021
—E- &% T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
Rental paid to Mr. Kei Kin Hung [RENE-$2ii e
(“Mr. Kei”) (I&x%E])2HEE N/A R iE A 14,145
Rental income from a related KE—H@EBARZ
company e WA N/A T8 A 281
Salaries paid to Mr. Kei XNBEREZHFS N/A ~E A 910
Salaries paid to a close family SHEEE—REY
member of Mr. Kei XEKE 2 N/A T8 A 130
Sales of audio equipment M—Z2EELESERE
to a director - 792

Notes:

(i) The above related party transactions constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(if) The above related party transactions are conducted in the
ordinary course of business with reference to the terms
mutually agreed between the parties.

(i) Mr. Kei was a related party until 15 October 2020.

The Group defines directors of the Company as key
management personnel and their remunerations are set
out in Note 12.

() LEREBIXSEKLETRA
FETHABRE ZHER Z AT

(i) EMEBETXSTIRATERR
BEFSRITNDEEBEL
GRFRETT -

iy BHEEBHE-ZT-_TF+A+H
B 1t & RAEE T

AEBARAEARREERETEEE
ABREZFHENHIEI2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 30. FEMBLATFNE

SUBSIDIARIES

R-E-_—F=A=+—HZTEWSB
NAIBEI TR

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2022.

266

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
BRI RIEH, BRARE,/ KRAFAMESER
WEDR LR BRRAGERERN FRERER BRER BEASL FEXBREEHH
BO Commercial Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary share United States Dollar 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited (“BVI’), limited (‘'US$’) 1
liability company
PEEEERERAF EBRAHS EBR EY REEK B
BRAA
Carnaby Group Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%* Investment holding, Hong Kong
company
RRELHES TR E REZER BE
BRDA
Germination International BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Group Limited company
BHEREEARAR EERERES LiBR IE REEKR BE
BRDA
San Sparkle Culture BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Investment Limited company
RERFULREBRAR REBELEHS: ERR E REER B
BRRA
San Sparkle International BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Investment Limited company
BRRERRERREBRART RERTES ERR IE REEK BE
BRDA
Sparkle Roll (France) BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
Limited company branded jewelleries,
Hong Kong
B C£8) BRD A RRELHE ERR E LRFRREEHKEE S
BRATF Bk
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. TEMBEARFE (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRARE/ RAAMLER
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAIN FEERREELY
Sparkle Roll Global Asset BV, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Management Limited company
BREFREEERERAR RBERES: ERR E REER BB
BRDA
Sparkle Roll Motors BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited company
BEAERRRA RERTHS TRk E REER &
BRAT
Forwell Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100% Money lending, Hong Kong
liability company
BEMBERDA R ARRA ERR 10,0007 7 e &
Full Link Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited liability company
HREEBERANA B BRAA Rl 18T REZER B
Future Prosper Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
KERRRF B BRAA LiBR BT REEKR &BE
Germination Global Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holdings Limited liability company
BHRRERER AT B ARAQA ERR 18T REER BE
San Sparkle Asset Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Management Limited liability company
HREEEBRARANA B BRAA Rl 18T REZER B
San Sparkle Pictures Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Industries Development liability company
Limited
ERRRYRERER B BRAA EER 10,0007 7 REEKR B

BRRA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—®F=H=+—H 31 March 2022

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. T EMB A AFE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRARE/ RAAMSER
WEDR LM BXREEERERN FREELRER BElEX BEAIN FEERREELE
Sparkle Roll (Denmark) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$202,674,454 100%** Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited liability company
B (AR BRAR BE ARAT EBR 202,674,454/ 7T REZKR BE
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Trading of branded jewelleries
Limited liability company and provision of management
service, Hong Kong
BR (BB)BRAF BB ARAF TER 18T LRRERHRREEERY
B
Sparkle Roll Cigars Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share US$3,000,000 50.1% Trading of cigars and smoker’s
Holding Limited liability company accessories, Hong Kong
BREMZERERRA B BRAA TR 3,000,000% 70 EMREERENES B
Sparkle Roll Global Motors  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$151,050,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holding Limited liability company
RERMAEERERRA FE BRAA S ELS 151,050,000/ 7¢ REER BB
Sparkle Roll International ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$100 100% Trading of branded watches
Distributions Limited liability company and audio, equipment, Hong
Kong
BERERKEERAR B BRAA EER 100 T LEFEREERBES BE
Sparkle Roll Watch & Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
Jewelry Limited liability company branded jewelleries, Hong
Kong
RREERERRAA BB ERAR ERR 1B LRFERELEHKREES BB
SR Advertising Media Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Publications of magazines
Limited (formerly known liability company and provision of advertising
as Sparkle Roll Aerial services, Hong Kong
Advertising Multi-Media
Limited)
ERANEESERERAR FE BRAA EER 1B R S R R B S RS B
(AIEER=TEEEE
HERAF)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRARE/ RAAMLER
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAIN FEERREELY
Tiger Force Group Limited  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
liability company
ABEEERAA B BRAA ERR 18T REER BB
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of
Trading Development liability company audio and visual consumer
Limited (“Balanorm electronics products,
Beo’)t Mainland China
HEEE (LR)EHER TEAM FREE  BURER A K #50,000,0007 HEREBY S HESTEMR:
BRAR([HEHE])  AFA B A3t
Beijing De Te Motors Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB101,400,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Limited" liability company related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China
TREFIEESERAR REAM FREE  BKEXR AR #101,400,0007 REREBRHREFE AR
NG| RESERRE FEAM
Beijing Germination Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100%  Provision of exhibition and
Technology Industries liability company consultancy services,
Development Limited? Mainland China
TRBEMREZER RENM - AEREE  BKEXR AR 49,900,000 RERSREARE BEAM
BRAA NG
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong ~ Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB194,800,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Motors Trading Limited® liability company related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China
EREGHRKATEES hER AREE  EREXR AR #194,800,0007 RERBEBTHREGE SR
ARDA NG REEERY BN
Beijing Namao Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB30,000,000 51% Film and television planning and
International Culture liability company provision of culture and art
Media Limited? exchange activities services,
Mainland China
IR BHBE R EE REAM EREE  BKEXR AR #30,000,0007 FRRERRHE BN IRED

BRRA

NG|

R BRI
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRARE/ RAAMSER
Wi 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAIN FEERREELE
Beijing San Sparkle Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,950,000 100%  Film investment, Mainland China
Pictures Industries liability company
Development Limited®
TRERERIRESR hERAREE  ERER AR #49,950,0007T EPRE HERAM
ERERDA NS
Beijing Sparkle Roll Fine Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB7,000,000 100%  Sales of merchandised goods,
Wine Limited® liability company Mainland China
TREREBREERR mER FREE  BKREAR AR #7,000,0007 HmEE  PEAM
BRDA NG
Beijing Sparkle Roll Fu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 51% Sales and distribution of apparel
Sheng Trading liability company and accessories, Mainland
Company Limited? China
TRBHRREE S REAM EREE  BWEXR AR #5,000,0007T HERREBEK REH
BRAT NG 3t
Beijing Sparkle Roll Honor  Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB17,600,000 100%  Provision of exhibition and
Remit Taifu Yingbin liability company advertising services, Mainland
Conference Service China
Limited (formerly known
as Sparkle Roll Honor
Remit (Beijing) Business
Club Limited?
IRRRBAERERE HEANNM FREE EBEWEAR AR #17,600,0007 REEERESRE REAM
SBRBERDA A
(AIERKBRE (LX)
EBEMERDR)
Beijing Sparkle Roll Men Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of airline,
Dao Men Airline Agency liability company Mainland China
Limited*
T RERMHFARZER mEN FREE  BKREAR AE#10,000,0007T MEARRHEERR DEAN
REERDA NG
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. TEMBEARFE (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Place/country of
incorporation/

Percentage of
effective
interest held

establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRTRE/ RARDFRER

W 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAIN FEERREELY

Beijing Sparkle Roll Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Provision of insurance agency
Motors Insurance liability company services, Mainland China
Agency Limited®

L RBFEAERRRE REAM EREE  BKEXR AR #10,000,0007 RERBREBRE  RERH
BRAR A

Beijing Sparkle Roll Mellow Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB44,900,000 98%** Sales of merchandised goods,
Wine Limited* liability company (2021: 100%) Mainland China

TRBREREEBE REAM EREE  BKEXR AR®44900000t (ZZ=—%F: BREE TFERL
BRAA A 100% )

Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100% Retail of cigars and sales
Tian Di Commerce liability company of merchandised goods,
Development Limited* Mainland China

TRBRFARGEEER HEAM FREE  BKEXR AR #49,000,0007 EHTEREMEE REAM
BRAT NG

Beijing SR Advertising Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 100%  Provision of business
Media Limited® liability company management and business

planning services, Mainland
China

TREEANEREER HEAM EREE  BKEXR AR #5,000,0007T RUGCEEBROERERY
BRAA A LA

Beijing Sparkle Roll Yi Fu  Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB2,500,000 100% Sale of merchandised goods,
Tang Healthy liability company Mainland China
Technology
Development Limited®

TRRREEEREM HEAM FREE EBEKREAR AR #2,500,0007T AmiEE  PEA
ERERDA A

Beijing Tiger Force Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,500,000 100% Provision of advertising and
International Culture liability company marketing, Mainland China
Communication Limited?

ERAZBEBR U EHE REAM EREE  BKEAR AR 49,500,000 RE{EEREH RERM
BRAT NG
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

272

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
SRR R BRARE/ RAAMSER
Wi 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAML FEEBREELY
Beijing Wenfu Hengye Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100% Sales of merchandised goods,
Enterprise Management liability company Mainland China
Limited?
TRXBEECEER REAM EREE  BKEXR AR #49,900,0007¢ AmiEE  PEA
BRAT NG
Beijing Wenfu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB626,314,300 100%  Property holding, Mainland
Hengye Technology liability company China
Development Co.,
Limited*
ERXBEEXREER HEAMEREE  BKEXR AR #626,314,3007T WEER R EIA,
BRAT AT
BO Online Culture Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB64,600,000 100%  Provision of exhibition and
Technology Limited* liability company consultancy services,
Mainland China
VBT & LR mEAM FREE  BKEXR AR #64,600,0007T RERE REARSE REAM
ARDA NS
Boao Economic and Trade Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Provision of exhibition and
Development Limited? liability company consultancy services,
Mainland China
AHKEERBRATF HEAM - ERERE  BKEXR AR #50,000,0007 RERERAARSE REAM
A
Jiao Zhi Zhuang Chen Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100% Trading of sliver accessories
(Beijing) Trading liability company and provision of consultancy
Development Limited® services, Mainland China
BEAR (ER)EEHR HEAM FREE  BKEXR AR #49,700,0007 REEHE H KR EEARS
ARDA NG B 3t
Jing Xin Bo Ce Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100%  Provision of e-commerce
International Trading liability company and electronic system
Limited® development and application
services, Mainland China
EHERERLEERAR HEAM FREE  BKREXR A K #50,000,0007 RUETEHENEFZRFAER

NG
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
S R BRTRE/ RARDFRER
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAML FEEBREEHY
Quan Tian Property Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Provision of property
Management Services liability company management and tenancy
Limited® and sub-tenancy services,
Mainland China
T RERDEERRS hER AREE  EREXR AR #10,000,0007 RENEEEARAER
ARDA NG BHRE  REAM
San Sparkle (Beijing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB98,770,000 100%  Film investment, Mainland China
International Culture liability company
Development Limited*
BRER (LR)BEBRXt HEAM FREE  BKEAX AR #98,770,0007 BEYRE PEA
ERERDA NG
Sparkle Roll Bo Ce Trading Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB51,900,000 100%  Provision of consultancy
Development Limited® liability company services, Mainland China
BABREFRRERAR HEAM FREE  BKEXR AR #51,900,0007C REE AR AR
NS
Sparkle Roll Ding Sheng Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of
(Beijing) Trading liability company merchandised goods,
Development Limited? Mainland China
BESE (ER)ESER HENM FRER  BKEX AR #10,000,0007 HERRERR TEAM
BRAA NG
Sparkle Roll Oriental Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital HK$100,000,000 100% Trading of branded watches,
(Beijing) Trading liability company branded jewelleries and
Development Limited® fine wines and provision
of consultancy services,
Mainland China
BERA (XR)ESER HEAM FREE  EBEKREAR 100,000,000/ 7T BEFR BRREREBES
BRDA AT MR AR - BN
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB38,700,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Development liability company related parts and accessories
Limited* and provision of after-sale
services, Mainland China
RERM EREE  BEKEXR AR #38,700,0007 RERBBZHREGE SR

RRBEEREEHER
BRRA

NG|

REERRE PEAL
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. T EMBLARFERE (&)

Percentage of

Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest held
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
HMAY R E BRARE/ RAAMSER
Wi 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAML FEEBREELY
Tianjin Rui Bo Tai Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Development liability company related parts and accessories
Limited* and provision of after-sale
services, Mainland China
REGBREEHER hERAREE  EREXR AR #10,000,0007 RERBEBTHREGE SR
ARDA NS REEERY BN
Tianjin Wenfu Tai Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB71,000,000 60% Corporate management
Enterprise Management liability company consultants service and
Limited? trading of automobiles
and related parts and
accessories, Mainland China
REXBRELEER mEN FREE  BKEAR AE#T71,000,0007T CEERFARBUARAER
BRDA NG| HEZHRENES FEAM
Tianjin Wenfu Xin Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB220,000,000 70.40% Provision of non residential
Tian Di Real Estate liability company property leasing, real estate
Co., Limited* consultation and corporate
management services,
Mainland China
REXBHMRMES mEN FREE  BKEAR A K #220,000,0007T RUEFFLEFHERE FHERS
BRAA NG REEERRE  FEAM
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB45,000,000 100% Trading of automobiles and
Trading Development liability company related parts and accessories
Limited* and provision of after-sales
services, Mainland China
REEEREESER REAM EREE  BKEXR AR #45,000,0007T RERBBTHREGE SR
BRAT A REERRE FEAM
Yang Pu BO Investment Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding, Mainland
Limited* liability company China
HFRLBBREARAD A HEAM HEREE  BKEAR AR #10,000,0007 REER  hEA,
A
Yang Pu Germination Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB30,000,000 100% Investment holding, Mainland
Ding Sheng Investment liability company China
Limited*
FRRHSBRRERRAR HEAM FREE  BKREAR A K #30,000,0007 BREER REAM
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Place/country of
incorporation/

39. T EMBLARFEE (&)

Percentage of
effective
interest held

establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
S R BRTRE/ RARDFRER
W 2 B & BXREEERERN FREELRER BERER BEAML FEEBREEHY
Yang Pu Tiger Force Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding, Mainland
Investment Limited" liability company China
FRAEREBRAT mEN FREE  BKREAR AE#10,000,0007T REER  HEIA,
A
Yang Pu Quan Tian Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB28,000,000 100%  Provision of property
Commercial Brand liability company management and tenancy
Network Services and sub-tenancy services,
Shares Limited® Mainland China
FREREERERERE REAM FREE  BREAR A K #28,000,0007 RENFEBAREER
B ERDA AT BHERE - REAH
Yang Pu Wenfu Hengye Mainland China, limited  Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding, Mainland
Investment Limited" liability company China
FRXBEEREERAA FHENM AREE EKER AE#10,000,0007C REER  HEIA,
NG
i The English names of these subsidiaries established in t ARZERPBE AR 2B A T
Mainland China represent management’s best effort at WM EREXEZE Bt %ZHE
translating the Chinese names of these subsidiaries as no NEBITHEEEERAZ INZE

official English names have been registered.

Directly held by the Company

MEBAR P XL HEEE-

; HARAEEFA

*k

78.31% directly held by the Company and 21.69% directly held
by its subsidiary, Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development
Limited

During the year, the Group partially disposed 2% equity interest
of the company for a consideration of RMB898,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,108,000). The Company remains as a
subsidiary of the Group after the disposal.

*k

7831 %A RBIEERFE ' M21.69%
HENBAREEER (LR)EHE
BRERAREERE

FR AEEHLH HEZL A%
KB A ARK#S898,000T (HHER
491,108,000/ 7T) - A H & S HE T
% ZRARINANEBZHBAG -
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39.

40.

276

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of year.

SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Set out below is summarised financial information of Tianjin
Wenfu Tai Fu Enterprise Management Limited (“Tianjin
Wenfu Tai Fu”) and Tianjin Wenfu Xin Tian Di Real Estate
Co., Limited (“Tianjin Wenfu Xin Tian Di”"), which has non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) that are material to the Group.
The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-
company eliminations.

Summarised statement of financial position

39.

FTEHRBARFERE (&)

ERFINARAEERREEZEASF
EREEIBNASEEEFEEZA D
ZERRBMBRAR -ARREERE
FRHEEMHMBARZHE BTEHR

BRITEK-

BMEMBARNFREHTENELE

o
4. BEEERFERER 2K B
NG

TXEIREXBRELXERARA
Al ([REXBRE]) RREXBHKM
EXERAF ([REXEH KM |) 28
BERME ZEMBRAREREHAE
EmEBERZ TR P& M B

NEARBEZ 2 BAE

TR

MBERRBRERBE

Tianjin Wenfu

TR EMEA 2

Tianjin Wenfu

Tai Fu Xin Tian Di

REXNREE RKEBXRBH KM

2022 2022

—EB__—F = e T3

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FETT

Non-current assets ERBEE 105,926 381,749
Current assets mENEE 8,102 9,513
Current liabilities mBEE 2,530 7,418
Current net assets REBEEFE 5,572 2,095
Net assets EEFE 111,498 383,845
Accumulated NCI RET TR 44,600 113,618
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40. SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- 40.

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

BEEAFEREZ KB

nEl (&)
EERARRYE

Tianjin Wenfu

Tianjin Wenfu

Tai Fu Xin Tian Di

RENBERE XEXEHXH

2022 2022

— === —E=-=

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T TFB T

Other income H b A 14,692 5,595

Loss for the period AR B = (5,424)

Other comprehensive income H bz mlk A - =

Total comprehensive income EZHWALLE - (5,424)

Loss allocated to NCI DEEFIERER EE - (1,606)

Dividends paid to NCI [RENE 8 Eaird g ) - -
Summarised cash flows REREME

Tianjin Wenfu

Tianjin Wenfu

Tai Fu Xin Tian Di

AREXEBEEE KREXNEHXi

2022 2022

== —E==

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAE T FBIT

Cash flows from operating activities REXBFZREME (1,936) (34)

Cash flows from investing activities KEXEBz2RERE 8 1
Net decrease in cash and ReRREEEER

cash equivalents WD RE (1,928) (33)
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41.

278

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks
focus on securing the Group’s short to medium term cash
flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead)

41.1 Categories of financial instruments

MHEEREER QB

(%)

fim

411 E@MITEER

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

EHSRHMITANKEHRZEES
FUOR

2022 2021
—E2-= —ET-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAIT
Financial assets SRMEE
At fair value: BARE:
Financial assets at FVTOCI BARBEFAEMER
WAZTREE 319,766 520,088
Investment in films and KEETRERE B
television program 63,737 65,023
At amortised cost: R A -
Trade receivables EWE 5708 27,823 18,489
Loan receivables JE W E R 34,471 90,000
Deposits and other receivables e M H e W IR 136,783 151,964
Amounts due from non-controlling & U 3F 22 A% # 25 k18
interests 40,309 -
Pledged deposits e 84,111 200,495
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERE 151,519 246,540
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41.

280

F£=HA=+—H 31 March 2022

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.1

41.2

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

MHREREER DB

(%)

fim

411 SRITEER (&)

2022 2021
—E- 8 T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F 7T
Financial liabilities A =R
Financial liabilities measured at Z#ERATE 2
amortised cost: SREBE:
Trade payables FENE 5 FRIAE 142,849 28,306
Accrued charges and other payables &=t & 3 K £ fib & <t ZUIE 26,191 30,543
Amounts due to non-controlling FE A5 FE 458 A% 4 25 3R TR
interests 11,420 9,999
Lease liabilities HEBE 393,001 390,546
Borrowings BE 1,064,691 449,912
Convertible bonds AR ES 8,745 8,135

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with most of the transactions denominated and
settled in HK$, DKK, EUR, CHF, RMB and US$ defined
as below. The Group's exposure to foreign currency
risk primarily arises from certain financial instruments
including equity investment, trade and other receivables,
rental deposits paid to a related party, amount due from
a related party, cash at banks and in hand, trade and
other payables and borrowings which are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities, including DKK, EUR, CHF,
RMB and US$. During both years, the Group did not
have foreign currency hedging policy but management
continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

financial liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing
closing rates at the end of the reporting period, are as

M. BBRERBEERQAES

(#&)

fim

41.2 SRR ()

RBEERUINESHEZ EREE
i B A S
BTN ¢

follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—f
Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure
tREE tREE BEiE8 PREE 2RAR Rk%E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT TAET AT TAT
Danish Krone (‘DKK”) ~ F% 52 E8 319,766 - 319,766 520,096 - 520,096
Euro (‘EUR’) B 182 - 182 94 - 94
Swiss Franc (‘CHF’) I A EP 2 - 2 2 - 2
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE 12 - 12 198 - 198
United State Dollar T
(‘'US$’) 947 - 947 15,790 - 15,790
Sensitive analysis BB 5T

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange
rate. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated
in US$ is disclosed as in the opinion of directors of
the Company, such sensitivity analysis does not give
additional value in view of insignificant movement in the
US$/HK$ exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period.

RN ETEB LA Bt K&
BERETHLETERAEHEA
EREREY ARARAEER
A ERETTAE T E RN R E
R BB NEEAXTINE
LERMEERTRABZHRED
A RERIMEE - B EH
BERBESURESN-
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

282

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitive analysis (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s results for the years and retained profits
in regards to a 5% (2021: 5%) appreciation in HK$
against DKK, EUR, CHF and RMB respectively. The 5%
is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

M. BBRERBEERQAES

fim

41.2 SRR ()

HBEDH (&)

TREMAEERWEFE 25
BERRE R ANE AT ERE
BT I T ERS R AR S BIAE
5% (ZEZ—F:5%) ZBRE °
5%y M E BEE A BIEINE R B
ABMERB 2R WREERE
NS OB B 2 R EFT -

2022 2021
—E- 8 =FH = —ke

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE T FAT

DKK %A 15,990 26,005
EUR B T (49) 5
RMB AR 251 10

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period
has been determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial years and held constant
throughout the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead)

41.2

41.3

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitive analysis (Continued)

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against DKK, EUR, CHF and
RMB would have the same magnitude on the Group’s
results for the year and retained profits but of opposite
effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to
be representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits (Note 26) and borrowings (Note 31). The Group
has not used any derivative contracts in order to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. As at 31 March 2021
and 2022, the Group does not anticipate significant
impact to bank deposits because the interest rates of
bank deposits are not expected to change significantly.
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the
interest rate risk.

The Group’s fair value interest-rate risk mainly arises
from borrowings as disclosed in Note 31. As at 31
March 2021 and 2022, borrowings were issued at fixed
rates which expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group has no cash flow interest-rate risk
as there are no borrowings which bear floating interest
rates. The Group has not used any financial instruments
to hedge potential fluctuations in interest rates.

M. BBRERBEERQAES

(#&)

41.2

41.3

il

SRR ()

MBEDH (&)

BT ERE BT AR
RARERZESHEHARERA
FEZEBENRFRBHEMNEAREE
MRZEE-

SNEEXRRARERFFRNBINZ
ZEBEMBATR-EE WL £
2053 AT 4 AR A% AT AR SR AN SR 18 P I
ZINE R

MEER

REB A EXRERFEERBIRITHE
(M eE2e) REE (HizE31) o &
SEVEFERAEMNTETIASOY
FHEEmE 2R ERRR R =—
ER-_T-_—_F=ZA=+—H &
SEBEFARITIERTIEIINEAY
2 RAARITHFERZFEREHT
SRLEBANEE  c NEEWES|FT
ERF AR ZBUR

REBZAABENERBREEZRE
ISR BE R —
FER-_FT-_—_F=ZA=+—8 %
ZEENREMEEIR @ AEE
[ AT =R B == i e
ERZE R E - AN K B &
&2 F KR g o AN E I A
FBE{] & Bt T B 8 308 71 7 RO
) o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

284

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.4 Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVTOCI as at 31 March 2021 and 2022.

The management would manage its exposure arising
from the investment by closely monitoring the
performance of the respective equity investments and
market conditions.

At 31 March 2022, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in the market price of this listed equity
securities, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value
reserve (other components of consolidated equity) by
approximately HK$15,988,000 (2021: HK$26,004,000).

41.5 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risks are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests
pledged deposits, and cash at banks and in hand. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND M. BERABREERAAEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead) (%)

41.5 Credit risk (Continued) 415 8RR (&)

The management of the Group considers pledged
deposits and cash at banks and in hand that are
deposited with state-owned banks or financial
institutions with high credit rating to be low credit
risk financial assets. In addition, trade receivables in
connection with bills settled through payment platforms
such as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are also
with high credit rating and no past due history. The
management of the Group considers these assets are
short-term in nature and the probability of default is
negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers as
at 31 March 2022. In respect of rental receivables,
sufficient rental deposits from tenants are held to cover
potential exposure to credit risk. Further, evaluations
are made for the customers with reference to their
repayment history and financial strength, as well as the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised as at 31
March 2022.

In determining the ECL for other receivables and
amounts due from non-controlling interests, the
management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, and concluded that
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other
receivables is insignificant. The management of the
Group has assessed that other receivables has not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no impairment has been recognised.

AEEEBEERAEHRRARAR
EEFHZ2EERITHE BEE
ZEEBERIARIRITRFER
CAEEERRESHBEE LN
ELE R T ERMELNE
XN FEEERERRE BKE
SRENEAREETA BT ER
HEL RZE_—F=A=+—
B AEEEEERAZSEER
REME BRI ARAREERN
R U IR E A9 2 AT B IR K o B
WHerm: ASERF2HFEE
SRS R NEMBEEERR It
SN AEETE %%ﬁzﬁﬁ
SRUBMEN  URBEFEEHE
KEREM S P EH TG - Bt
R - —F=—A=+—BUERE
REEEE -

TEE T8 HLth B M SR TE K I WA S 2 il
mp A TEHEEEER  ~&E
EREDF RBEROKRRATE
MER (ER) REAKER
W el 2 H fth fE U GRIE 2 ATEE B R
SRM -AEEEREECTE B
RG] EZJE@PEW%(IELX% P
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

286

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.5 Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of the ECL for loan receivables and related
interest receivables included in other receivables, loss
allowance of HK$55,472,000 and HK$918,000 are
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from loan receivables and respective
interest receivables are disclosed in Notes 24 (b) and (c).

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information and other information that is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at March.

As at 31 March 2022

4. BREBREERAAMBEFE
(%)

415 EERRK (&)

%%Aﬁ@ﬁ%%EZfW“

HERMEAERKFNENTEREE
Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁm BE_ZT_-_—F=F#
—t—HIEFERRZBEBER
55,472,000/ 7T 918,000/ 7T °
RSB E E A E AR R FE U
FMEMEAGERRNE —FT=
HIE T FE24(0) M ()R 5

TRINRZBAEEEERRF L
ZEEEEkGEREERR T2
%E@E?@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&?\d@%@ﬂ?$§}2
AﬂT’EZﬁﬁﬂiéf*ﬂr UREE=
AZERDEBRDS B

R-E-_—_F=HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
REFE 2HEHEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
LS K &2 ] L% )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR FER TER TE R
Trade receivables FEWE 5308 - - - 27,823 27,823
Loan receivables ERER - 89,943 - - 89,943
Deposits and other receivables e REMEWTE 136,211 1,489 - - 137,701
Amounts due from non-controlling e 2 iR E 25 7R
interests 40,309 - - - 40,309
Pledged deposits BEAEH 84,111 - - - 84,111
Cash at banks and in hand RIIRFERS 151,519 - - - 151,519
412,151 91,432 - 27,828 531,406

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43



B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND M. BREREERAAEFTE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continuead)
41.5 Credit risk (Continued) 41.5 EERK (&)
As at 31 March 2021 RZZEZ—=H=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 R EH
REER LHEBEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
P B R Ex2 83 B @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Trade receivables EWE SR - - - 18,489 18,489
Loan receivables EWER 90,000 - - - 90,000
Deposits and other receivables e REMEYFE 151,964 - - - 151,964
Pledged deposits BEAER 200,495 - - - 200,495
Cash at banks and in hand RIORFERS 246,540 - - - 246,540
688,999 - - 18,489 707,488

41.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

41.6 RENMHE

MEERBEANEERERITES
BEEHAEEEZEREAR - A&
EEHEEENENESFANRE
MEETARRERERZ REME
Bk AREZ BESBRBEE
FAGHEEERERE RN #EK
FoUARNEEHERERAES

o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

288

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group manages the liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring scheduled
debt servicing payments for long term financial liabilities
as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day
to day business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for the non-derivative financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. When the creditor has
a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability is
included on the basis of the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed to

pay.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities.

NEW SPARKLE ROLL INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED #18KEIMEBE R A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2022 43

M. BBRERBEERQAES

fim

41.6 REMERR (&)

rEBRBAREEERMCHNEE
ZIEHERH R AREBKBESE
HzBERARERARRL  FEE
BHERHESHE-

AT /RARETESRAE
RBEPRZFIHRE OB HBER -
EERAAREZRAGEENEH
R AR RERAKRE A ERER
B FAYE - WERER
DHEF  MISHEFRSOEEAN
SEABNRZREHEA-

DMTUNEMBEZARMARERE
AR ©



B RS R T (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEER A RE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead) (%)

fim

41.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 41.6 REMERER (£)

Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying  undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above
SHRER PR-FF
EEHSE BLREAE REREE —EgN L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAEL FTAEL AT TAEL
At 31 March 2022 R-B--%
=A=t+-H
Trade payables ENE 55E 142,849 142,849 142,849 -
Accrued charges and BB R REAM
other payables ANE 26,191 26,191 26,191 -
Amounts due to non- [ IR S 70E
controlling interests 11,420 11,420 11,420 -
Lease liabilities MEAE 393,001 530,505 60,366 470,139
Borrowings BE 1,064,691 1,165,163 930,352 234,811
Convertible bonds Bk ES 8,745 - - 10,000
1,646,897 1,876,128 1,171,178 714,950
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%
=RA=+-H
Trade payables ENE55E 28,306 28,306 28,306 =
Accrued charges and [ ERREAM
other payables AN 30,543 30,543 30,543 =
Amounts due to non- ER SRR AE 2R TR
controlling interests 9,999 9,999 9,999
Lease liabilities HEGE 390,546 522,884 74,355 448,529
Borrowings BE 449,912 483,069 361,404 121,665
Convertible bonds MR ES 8,135 10,000 = 10,000
917,441 1,084,801 504,607 580,194
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BEEBEER A RER

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
41.7 Fair value measurements
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” categorises
fair value measurements into a three-level
hierarchy. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continuead)

41.7 Fair value measurements (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

. MHEREER A ER

fim

(%)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E-® F=R #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2022 R-EBE-C
=B=+-—H
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets BRAREFAEMLER
at FVTOCI WAZEREE 319,766 - - 319,766
Investment in films  KEEF MEREHE
and television
program - - 63,737 63,737
Investment REWF
properties - - 437,425 437,425
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 E_H F=] BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEE THE AL AL
At 31 March 2021 R=-Z=—%
=A=+-H
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets BARERFAEMER
at FVTOCI WAZEBEE 520,088 - - 520,088
Investment in films  REEFZ MEREE
and television
program - - 65,023 65,023
Investment REYE
properties - - 379,998 379,998

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level

2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s

policy is to recognise transfers between levels of

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

REBEE_ZT-_—FKk=-F
——H#=ZA=+—HI#E
B E—HREZE_R2EL
mEER O IEEANELE
=R-AEEBIBERBNE
FEBCRERRBERRAL
BERE 2 EE-
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41.

42,

292

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.7 Fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

(i)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2021 and 2022.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as borrowings and convertible bonds, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain
the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

41.

42,

MERBEERA AT
(%)

fim

41.7 PREE (&)

HHURAEIRZ
TAZARALE

(i)

AEBR-_ZE-_—FR=-F
T HFZA=1+—HBEEAR
REHER AR EERA
BzEmSEENRETE
BERER-

EXERE

AEEEAEEZ T EBBERRRER
B ZEEFRRBREZERLE LA
YRBEEBLERERSBRREE-

AEBRBEERN 2 B EREREE
BUYHEELAE  BEFAHAREDR
R AEEXARBRRRIKN 2
B ARRBEERRBETHRD - NA
FE AKBEZBR BRIEFLES
o

AEBRABERBEL X (AEKARE
BRABARGR) BERER - EBARETIR
RAEMBERRBERAREER RATRRE
Hat B - BRBBETRE S M BRI R
RN ERBETE - ANKREZBRT
EERBELRERRAEKF-

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAIT

Total debt B 4%
Borrowings and convertible bonds BEE MR E 5 1,073,436 458,047
Total capital BN EEE 2,725,323 2,659,296
Gearing ratio ERBERE 39.4% 17.2%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

—E-—HF=HF=+—H 31 March 2022

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. &2 7] Z B B AR | &+
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T TE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LOIEINGIPA: 3 773,141 953,191
Current assets mEEE
Tax recoverable A] Uy [B] % IH - 3,575
Amounts due from subsidiaries SN ] 1,126,715 1,164,483
Cash at banks R1ITE & 718 9,684
1,127,433 1,177,742
Current liabilities mEaE
Accrued charges and FEET B K H b B 1 5UE
other payables 1,811 3,645
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A B B 2 5] 508 37,083 33,037
38,894 36,682
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,088,539 1,141,060
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREB & & 1,861,680 2,094,251
Non-current liabilities ERBAG
Convertible bonds AR EFH 8,745 8,135
Net assets EEFE 1,852,935 2,086,116
EQUITY =
Share capital fi& 7 10,944 10,944
Reserves 15 1,841,991 2,075,172
1,852,935 2,086,116
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R - —FNA=THEES=SE
on 30 June 2022 and signed on its behalf by: REERE YHATEERERES:
Zheng Hao Jiang Zhao Xiaodong
BREST AR
Director Director
EZE EZE
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

31 March 2022

THE COMPANY (continued)

43. AR T 2 MR R IEKEK (2)

Convertible Retained
bonds earnings/
Share Capital  Contributed Exchange equity (accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
TaRES REERA/
REE EXiE BARR MERE BnfE (RHBR) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TETT TET TiET THT TEL THET
At 31 March and 1 April 2020  RZZE=ZF=F=+-H
kmA—-A 1,573,808 3,508 352,158 (1,97) - 13,369 1,940,872
Changes in equity in 2021 I -FRa%
Loss for the year ’EEEHR - - - - - (6,354) (6,354)
Total comprehensive income  AFE2AMKALE
for the year - - - - - (6,354) (6,354)
Issuance of shares BREERTRG
through placement 49,367 - - - - - 49,367
Receipt of convertible bonds AT B - - - - 18,699 - 18,699
Conversion of convertible bonds  E# Al # 1k &% 89,340 - - - (16,752) = 72,588
At 31 March 2021 RZB=-#=A=1-H 1,712,515 3,508 362,158 (1971) 1,947 7015 2,075,172
At 31 Marchand 1 April 2021 R=F=—-%=f=1+—H
EkMA—A 1,712,515 3,508 352,158 (1,971) 1,947 7,015 2,075,172
Changes in equity in 2022 R CFRREE:
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (233,181) (233,181)
Total comprehensive income ~ AFE2AMALE
for the year - - - - - (233,181) (233,181)
At 31 March 2022 —Z--#-f=1+-AR 1,712,515 3,508 352,158 (1,971) 1,947 (226,166) 1,841,991
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BV EFE
Particulars of Investment Properties

RZE-_—_F=A=+—H At 31 March 2022

Location Held on Lease Term Usage
b B HEROES ik
Building 17 and Building 19, Medium Commerical

Xinghuo West Road, Chaoyang District,

Beijing, the PRC*

P EE R & H 2 A
HSEE A

17548 K195k 12

* for identification purpose only
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LR Y

Financial Summary

RESULTS ¥E
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“E-N\F ZE-NF ZE-FF —F--F Z¥CCH
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT AT AT FHT
Revenue ez 2,893,052 3,724,845 3,443,430 4,525,762 4,324,487
Profit for the year attributable to ARREEANER
owners of the Company KEE R 664,565 97,429 30,283 37,527 34,052
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\§ ZE-NF CZETF T CZEBEZZE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHEL AT FEL AT TER
Total assets BESE 3,907,033 3,933,651 3,597,068 4,086,152 4,727,684
Total liabilities BELS (883,853)  (1,560,457)  (1,594,148)  (1,426,856)  (2,002,361)
3,023,180 2,373,194 2,002,910 2,659,296 2,725,323
Equity attributable to AREEB ANELES
owners of the Company 3,006,150 2,366,637 2,000,722 2,654,955 2,562,472
Non-controlling interests JErE R 2 17,030 6,557 2,188 4,341 162,851
3,023,180 2,373,194 2,002,910 2,659,296 2,725,323
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